BOARD OF EDUCATION LA HARPE CSD #347 May 16, 2023
The Board of Education of La Harpe Community School District #347 held a regular School Board
meeting May 16, 2023 in the school library. President Dustin Detherage called the meeting to order at
6:01 PM. Roll Call was answered by Allen, Blythe, Collins, Deitrich, Detherage, Gebhardt and Walker.
Superintendent Janet Gladu, Dean of Students Ryan Hopper, and Board Secretary Marlie Deeter were
also in attendance.

Visitors in attendance: No visitors were in attendance.

A Moment of Silence was observed.

Public Presentations: No public presentations.

Financial Report:

Fund FY2023
Education $2,041,716.29
Building $49,675.81
Debt Service $98,454.21
Transportation $171,581.86
IMRF $40,795.52
Capital Projects 0.00
Working Cash $125,625.86
Tort $174,440.42
HLS AL $214,643.20
Total $2,916,933.17

FY 2022  $2,637,407.38
FY 2021  $2,220,128.78
FY 2020  $1,484,190.54
FY 2019  $1,161,070.86

Consent Agenda: The Consent Agenda included the Closed and Open Minutes of the April 26th Regular
Board Meeting and Special Meetings, Financial Report, Individual fund balances, Payment, and Closed
Session Records- deletion of items 18 months and older. A motion was made by Collins seconded by
Detherage to approve the items on the Consent Agenda as presented. Roll Call: Allen, yes; Blythe, yes;
Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes. Motion carried 7-0.

Approval of 2022-2023 Final School Calendar

A motion was made by Blythe seconded by Allen to approve the Final School Calendar with an
adjustment made for the Emergency Day used in March. Roll Call: Allen, yes; Blythe, yes; Collins, yes;
Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes. Motion carried 7-0.

Approval of Studies Weekly- Science Curriculum for K-5

A motion was made by Deitrich seconded by Blythe to approve the Social Science curriculum. Roll Call:
Allen, yes; Blythe, yes; Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes. Motion
carried 7-0.

Approval of Studies Weekly- Social Studies Curriculum for K-5

5-16-2023 Open Board Minutes



A motion was made by Collins seconded by Detherage to approve the Social Studies curriculum. Roll
Call: Allen, yes; Blythe, yes; Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes.
Motion carried 7-0.

Approval of McGraw Hill Health Curriculum:

Motion by Gebhardt seconded by Deitrich to approve the health curriculum. Roll Call: Allen, yes; Blythe,
yes; Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes. Motion carried 7-0.

Approval of Parent Sponsored Golf Team:

A motion was made by Blythe seconded by Deitrich to approve a parent sponsored golf team. Roll Call:
Allen, yes; Blythe, yes; Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes. Motion
carried 7-0.

Approval to Hire Five Part-Time Summer Hires:

Motion by Allen seconded by Walker to approve five part time summer hires. Roll Call: Allen, yes; Blythe,
yes; Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes. Motion carried 7-0.

Approval to Dispose of District Property; old student desks and unused furniture:

A motion was made by Deitrich seconded by Detherage to approve disposition of district property; old
student desks and unused furniture. Roll Call: Allen, yes; Blythe, yes; Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes;
Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes. Motion carried 7-0.

Approval of the Hazardous Route:

A motion was made by Blythe seconded by Walker to approve the hazardous route. Roll Call: Allen, yes;
Blythe, yes: Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes. Motion carried 7-0.

Approval of Policy Updates:

A motion was made by Collins seconded by Gebhardt to approve the policy updates. Roll Call: Allen,
yes; Blythe, yes; Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes; Walker, yes. Motion carried 7-
0.

Reports fo the Board:

Ryan Hopper shared with the board that 8" grade graduation preparation is complete.

Janet Gladu shared with the board that staff with 5 or more years of service will be handed awards at the
staff appreciation luncheon.

Marlie Deeter exited at 7:05pm.

Closed Meeting

A motion was made by Allen seconded by Collins to adjourn to Closed Session at 7:05 PM to
discuss items per 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1). The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline,
performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the District and ((2)) (14) closed session
minutes.

Roll Call: Allen, yes; Blythe, yes; Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes;
Walker, yes. Motion carried 7-0.

3-21-2023 Open Board Minutes 2



A motion to adjourn (voice vote)

A motion was made by Gebhardt seconded by Collins to accept the resignation of Ashlee
Goettsche effective 5/16/23.

Roll call: Allen, yes; Blythe, yes; Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes;
Walker, yes. Motion carried 7-0.

A motion was made by Collins seconded by Blythe to hire Ashlee Goettsche as a full time
guidance counselor effective 5/16/23.

Roll call: Allen, yes; Blythe, yes; Collins, yes; Deitrich, yes; Detherage, yes; Gebhardt, yes;
Walker, yes. Motion carried 7-0.

A motion was made by Detherage seconded by Gebhardt to adjourn the May 2023 board meeting
at 8:52 PM. (voice vote)

Board President Board Secretary

Approved

3-21-2023 Open Board Minutes 3



FUND

EDUCATION

BUILDING

DEBT SERVICE

TRANSPORTATION

IL MUNICIPAL RET.

WORKING CASH

CURRENT TOTAL

INVESTMENTS

NOTES:

NOW Account
Liquid Asset
Treasurer's Pool

percentage invested

CAPITAL PROJECTS

TORT IMMUNITY FUND

FIRE PREV & SAFETY

CASH & INVESTMENTS AS

First State/M.Market
Interest distributed to
each FUND based on

TAG L& L sl

LA HARPE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT #347

CASH BALANCES:NOW ACCOUNT

Balance

$41,523.21

$48,230.81

$95,340.86

$47,703.50

$40,795.52

$0.00

$125,625.86

$174,440.42

$214,643.20

$788,303.38

5/31/2023

Daily Rate

0.25%

5.08%

Karen Nudd

Date

R S

Receipts
4/30/2023

$502,117.00

$1,445.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

'$0.00

$503,562.00

Int./Month

$139.52

$9,381.38
$0.00

$186,688.04

$79,667.66

$15,894.00

$13,529.02

$10,811.78

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$306,590.50

Int./YTD
$2,978.77

$67,017.60
$0.00

TREASURER'S REPORT MAY 31, 2023

'Disbursements ‘Balance

5/31/2023

$356,952.17

$79,446.86

$34,174.48

$29,983.74

$0.00

$125,625.86

$174,440.42

$214,643.20

$985,274.88
$1,698,765.86

$2,684,040.74

INVESTMENTS

$0.00
$1,571,774.15

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$3,113.35

'$0.00
$123,878.36

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$1,698,765.86

F.STATE/M.MRKT.

L TREAS POOL

'F.STATE/M.MRKT.

IL TREAS POOL

F.STATE/M.MRKT.
IL TREAS POOL

F.STATE/M.MRKT.
IL TREAS POOL

F.STATE/M.MRKT.
IL TREAS POOL
F.STATE/M.MRKT.

F.STATE/M.MRKT.
IL TREAS POOL

F.STATE/M.MRKT.
IL.TREAS.POOL

IL. TREAS.POOL




aea

wo:O—.. m.__HN.l_

vL'0v.'689°C$

[E}01 puels

0z'Er9'rIzs

ovy'vLl

98'529'sZ1$

00°0%

vL£86'62$

$8'260'851L$

12°095'28%

(s8°166'629)

ZE'9ZY'PEE'LS

3ONVIVE ANN4d

00°0$

00°03

00°0$

0003

00°0%$

00°0$

00°0$

00°0%

00'0$

S3LTIgvIn vioL

ysed ‘M 03 ajqeded ueo

‘dsuea) o) ajqefed ueon

‘bBp|g 03 ajqefed ueo

-anp3 0} ajqeded ueo]

319VAVd ONNAHUTLNI|

d/V licihed

juswainay siayoea]

Suj ealy UIB)ISOM

ajoN uonediauy

s3lLgvin

0zEraVIzS

P Obr'vLLS

98'629'521$

0004

$1'€86'62%

#8'260°851.$

12°095'28%

(58°166°62%)

2e'9Zy've6' LS

S13aSSV V101

1o)Jey AauoN/ae)s ISl

9¢'8.8'¢Z1$

SE'ELL'ES

00°'0$

SL'PLLLLS'LS

|ood "seai] |

punj‘Aaid g aiij o} ueo

pund JyI O} Ueo

un4 uonepodsuel) 03 Ueo|

pung Buipjing 0 ueo

pung uopedNpP3 0} SUEOT

Apedoid

00°000°S$

pun jsaidw)

00'0S€$

Hyr-we[3/pung abueyd

00°05£$

yseo Anad

ZroryviLS

98°629'521$

00°08

$1'€86'6Z$

[TaZi%ax]

98'91Y'6.$

(58°1.6662%)

11'256'95€$

ueg ui yseo

0z'ero'rizs

Al3dvs ®

ALINNWII

HSVD

S103rodd

A3¥d Fuid

Ly0L

ONIMYOM

Iv.iidvd

dHWI

‘dSNVYL

‘AY3S 1930

oNIgTINng NOlLLYONa3

S13SSsV

£20Z ‘1€ Aely

NOLLISOd 40 LNJW3LV1iS

L¥e# LO1IM1SId TOOHIOS ALINNININOD 3diVH V1

_




1dY'20dv ™ ms\eoueul\gasps\adieHE\S\:C
"ou| ‘swaysAg eje pazijeloads

Srveces  [ejoL wodsy
¥1'¥8G'9 1ejol

L-0L¥-09S2-0¢ 00°'SY 6€£506 £2/0E/S €2/0E/S L $3I1ddNS WVIA0LSN3-WAO }-0L1-0¥52-0C q9..
\-2€€-0562-0F 680! 6€£506 £2/0E/S €2/0e/S L 13AVYL L-2€€-055¢-0 G9.7
1-0L-LOLL-0L 86711 6£506 €C/0L/S €2/0E/S L S3ANddNS "OaNIX 1-0-0L¥-10LL-0L G9/L
1-0L-0LEC-0) 66°EL 6E506 €C/0E/S £2/08/S L S3AddNsS L-0L1-01€2-0} g9l
1-0L-0€L2-0L OV 6€£506 €2/0E/S €2/08/S L S3NddNs HLTV3AH HOS L-0L-0€42-01 g9/
L-LL1-09G2-0L  2¥'6L 6€£506 €Z/0€/S €2/0E/S L L MSENEEL fo) 1-1L1+-0952-01 Go./.
L-0L¥-0¥52-0C2 61°SE 6£506 E2/0E/S €2/0E/S L NS IVIAOLSND - AFISNIH H3HINNAC L-0L-0¥52-02 ¥8..
1-0L-0¥S2-0¢ 88'tL 6€£S506 €¢/0E/S €2/0€/S . S3Iddns TvIao1snO - TN YNNOA L-01-0¥S52-0C €911
L-0L1-0L€2-0¢ 00°00F 6€S06 €2/0E/9 €2/0E/S L 1V1934ddV F3A0TdNS - XINNV JHL L-0L-01€2-01 29.L
1-019-01£2-01 6E£'S 6ES06 £2/0E/S €2/0¢€/S L STvAN SN - YIAYWNHS AGNVY 1-019-01€2-0} 192
1-019-01€2-01 V¥L'8E 6€506 E2/0E/S €2/0E/S L STIVANW SNE - YINYWNHS AANYH 1-019-01L€2-0} 0914
L-0b-0¥S2-0Cc 9v'8v 6£506 £2/0€/S €2/0€/S . 5317ddNS 1vIao1sn2 - TIIN YNNOQA 1-0 g.oqmau-ow 66
G1-062-00p-S521-0} 00'8¥P'L 6€£506 €2/0E/S €2/0€/S .l - SSTT1ANOH - ¥3gWN1dv3a1S3INOH ’ §1-00%-062-55¢1-01 862/
§1-12¢-00€-5521-0L  00°008'L 6ES06 E2/0E/S £2/0¢/S L AWI3Y SSY10-AQNNE 3ISSYO S1-00€-12e-8S¢cl-0l 1811
L-#-00%-0L22-01 <CO'SE 6EG06 €2/0E/S €2/0E/S L S317ddNS WALS - NVAY AH380d L-~-00%-0L22-0} 9cLL
V-01¥-01€2-0} 0005 6€S06 €2/0E/S £2/0€/S L mu>0.Es.u - @3Ano134d ® ndllnvy3a L-0L¥-01€2-01 ; ¥SlL
1-009-02S1-0L 00°00E 6€£506 €T/0E/S €¢/0E/S /L NOILVYH1SI9IH 1aay vs3l ¥2-€2 1-009-0251-01 €611
1-009-0251-01  00°008 6£506 €2/0E/S €2/0¢€/S L NOLLYY.LSIOFY YS! ¥2-€2 1-009-0251-0} ¢SLL
\-2£€-0¥5¢-02 80801 6E£506 €2/0E/S €2/0E/S L ADVITIN ¥dV - AIH4931S TIVHOIW L-Z2€€-0¥52-02 1G22
G1-06Z-004-562L-01 +9°/61 6€£606 €2/0E/S €2/0¢/S L S SS3ITINOH - IHOSLLI0D IFITHSY G1-00t-06¢-55¢}-01 0S..
L-LLy0SS2-0F L2 WbL'L 6€506 £2/0e/S €2/0E/S . LHOJSNYYL a3 03dS - LHVYMALS a3 L-LL¥-085C-0F 6¥LL
L-Z2€€-055¢-0 2991 B6E£S06 £2/0E/S €2/0E/S L STv3IN SNE - NYINIHS T8 L-2£€-05952-0 yA VA

L-0L¥-01€2-01 9¥'6€ 6£506 €C/OE/S €Z/0E/S zl

Mg 1108 ¥YONOH - Livyd NYSNS s ANNS LSTHWI »« L-0L1-01€2-01 9v/l]
# ajeguo  ajeq # #
#3UNo22Y 9EIS JUNowWy joaygy asuadx3z 3%dyy 'O'd  used uonduosag SWeN 10puap # 8910AU|.
£202/0€/S 0} £20Z/0E/S *8)eq uo ssuadx3

‘ Lve aso ediey e
: WdS1:92:21 €202/L0/90 :Pajuld

| 1o | abegd JaquinN 328y) Aq ajqehed sjun. .oy pied




Ld¥y'd pdigTms\soueul\gaspsiedieHensh:Q

AAo7 [es8U3D
— = =
pun €0L0F (51256001 5180615y GOG6OLL 00996062 RS (O

8NUPABY JO BAINOS  »  BY'86 29'16v'S 81°¢90'25€ a1'16l'sl 00'G1S'LSE £03iN0S [219pP0Y WoL4 BAUASY  000P
696670l 000 (00"06L'¥) 00'06L'% 000 000 ONIMOLNL 1H - ¥SS3 5-966¥-01
#866¥ 01 ZEVL 0096 00°¥0E'2 000 00°00}'€ ¥y ¥ss3 P-866101
€-866¥0L 000 00°'282'vS 000 000 00°282'%S 1 ¥ss3 £-966¥01)
-Z661-01 S6°82€ (p8'ECL'S) ve'eze's 000 00°005'2 JDIAY3S ¥O4 I3H/AIVOIdIN 1-266%-0}
1-L66V0L 000 00°005'L 000 000 00°005'L HOV3YLNO WAV aivOoidan 1-166¥-0)
1-2e60-0L GE'€0L  (00'952) 00°206'L 000 009¥9°Z “TVNO HOL/I T1LIL 1-Z€61-01
1-0291-0b ¥l'2gl  (00'8s5'ee) 0061646 000 00'}9€'¥9 HONO¥UHL MO14-03 TvIO3dS v3al 1-029%-0}

HONOYHL

1-009%0l 69'L6 0009 001452 000 00°109'2 MOTI-LNYHOENSMO0HISFAd v3AI 1-009%0}
1-00¥-0L £0°S¥L  (00'E0S'Y) - 00'€05'YL 000 00°000'0} 3344 ONYA B 3IVYS/AI T1LIL 1-00¥¥0}
1-66€¥-01 000 00°000'%4 000 000 00°000'7} dvay 1-66E¥-0)
G1-00eP01 86'9L 00664V 00'198'LY 000 00°025'19 120202/ ILLL S1-00EH-04
#1-00e#-01L 000 (00'geb'Ll) 00'SEL'LL 000 000 0Z-6102/1 31LIL #1-00€V-01
1-0zer-0L 000 (5P’ L¥v'9e) Si'LPP'9E 9E'126'E 000 1SVHivadd Tvy3a3d 1-0Z2¥-0b
1-0b2¥0) 8898 b L50'2L 69°2¥6'2hh Z8'692Z'LL 00°000'0€L HONNT Tvd3a3d 1-012¢ 0
S2UNO0S |eloped Wol4 snuaAay]

snuansy Jo 300 »  EV'E6 29°689'8¢ 8v'15L'6vS 00'9L1'¥S 00°L¥b'88s $92IN0S 9IRS WOL4 INUAATY 00D
LLG0LEOL L9'L6 00'bL€'L 00°0.0'}8 00'0LE'L 00'L¥+'88 12-0202/LNVHS AOOHATIHO ATdv3a 11-S0LEO)
1-09€e-0L 000 (at'129) 8b'129 000 000 HONNT 3344 JUVIS 1-09€€-0L
1-L00E0L 19'E6 00°0v6'LE 00'090'89% 00°908'9Y 00°000'00S aly 31vLS N3D 1-400E-04
$621N0S 6)€}S WOl SNUdASY

anuansyjoanos . SZSHL  (6Y°€60'502) 6v'£60'055' 19°'92¢e'8 00°000°GPE’} Anen |eisuas 0001
1-1-6661-04 000 (00'00%'€) 00°00¥'€ 000 000 ¥31S008 OULITHLIVAIIHLO -1-6661-04
1666401 SSGLL  (8l'evs'er) 81'8v5'€2€ eLell 00'000'082 31V1S3 NOSNHOr ® ¥3H1O 1-6661-01
1180 0062k (00G.8) 00'SLE'D 000 00°005'€ STYLNIY MoodLxal 1118101
}9-LLLL0L 0070 00°000'L 000 000 00°000'} AOHUr-SNOISSINGY 19112101
LG-1b2L-0) 00252 (00°025')L) 00'026'2 00'0 00'000°} GOHHr-SNOISSINGY 151 LLOL
t-#LLLL0L 000 00°000'} 000 000 007000} agHYr -SNOISSINGY L -LLLLOL
1-119}-01 00°0 (88'590'2) 88'690'2 02'ShL 000 STdNd-S3TVS HONN1 1119101
1-0L5L-01 000 (ez'z28'08) £2'228'9S #6'660'8 000 SLNIWLSIANI NO LSIHILNI ! 1-0151-0}
1-0£Zb-0b 9v'e8Z  (€0'LEL'Y6) E0'LEL'YYL 00'0 00'000°0S XYLOV1d3d dO¥d S¥3d dHOD 1-0€21-0L
1-10-0L2}-0} 000 00005 000 000 00°00S S3IXVL INOH IS0 1-40-012}-0L
1-0-0vLL-0L EesoL  (2Zozl't) zzozL'ee 000 00°000'12 A3IVONA3 vI03dS 1-10-0v1L-0}
1-10-0ELL-0) 9€°00L  (9E°86) 9£'860'L2 000 00°000'22 AATT 3SVIUNOILYONA3 1-10-0€LL-0}
1-10-0441-01 9200}  (6S°CI¥'E) 65¢IY'€96 000 00'000°096 AATT XYL HENO-NOLLYONA3 1-10-0LL1-0)
Ao [esoued

anuanay
186png aoueleg anuanay ERTELEN] 18b6png
10 % 10Bpng ‘aLaA ‘a‘Lm anuanay 1UN020Yy

0l punJj UOHRINPT

L€ aso adieH e
WVYZ0:85:0) £202/t71/90 :Paiulld
£202/)£/S 4o se Hoday

e Mpoday anuaAay e SO odieH e

-
&




1dy'd vdig ims\eoueuld\gasps\adieHe\s\:d

£202/1€/S 4o se wodey
€ 10 z obed

1-10-0121-0S
1-10-0611-09
b-10-PLLL-0S

pundy

anuaAay JO 80IN0S &

1-015€-0¥
1-005€-0¥

anueAdy JO 22UNOS =

166610V
1-0LS1-0p
1-2ivi-op
1-10-01210b
L-LOELLOY

pungy
anuanay JO 80IN0S .

1-0151-0€
1-10-0lcl0E
1-10-Z414-08

puny
SNUaABY JO BOINOS
}-0b1202

SNUBASY JO 80IN0S
y866¥02

£-866¥02
2-866¥-02

anuaASY JO BOINOS &
1-6661-02

015102

1-10-0421-02

bhOTLLLL0Z

12QUINNY IUN0I2Y S1EIS

000 0009 000 000 00'09
9g00} (ve'902) #£'902'85 000 00°000'8S
9e'00l  (80°052) 80'052'0L 000 00'000'0L
t020F (OLSiL9) OL0El 8z 000 D0 Ei¥ 182
sveol  (rL512's) $1'6y9'951 000 00'0.€'1G1
$8'66 1¥'192' €5'ECE'SL 000 00'165'8L
UL (LZEps's) 12'2ze' |8 000 00'6LL'2L
veoor  (96Try) 96'¥8P'0E} 000 00'2v0'0€t
0000} 000 00°000'69 000 00°000'69
000 007, 000 000 00°L
000 (00°052) 00°052 000 000
000 00°SE 000 000 00°GE
9e00L  (96°%E2) 96'¥E2'59 000 00'000'59
ELI0F  (BIELV E) 81965 0Z¢C 000 AN
grlolL  (81EV'2) 81°965'022 000 00°€zh'8le
000 00'0€ 000 000 00°0€
000 00702} 000 000 oo'ozh
oz'loy (81'€29'2) 81°965'022 000 00'€16'LL2
TSy — T
6V10L (€901L9) €9°9EL 121G 000 00920595
000 (0L'1L9'v5) 0L129'%S 000 000
000 (02°129'¥5) 0L'1L9'VS 000 000
r'E9 00°62.'86 00'LEV'LLL. 000 00°998'692
00'8L 00'2¥8'L 00°1€5'9 000 00'ELE'S
80'65 00°2£9'%5 00°€L8'8L 000 00°0LG'EE}
66'99 00°052'2k 00'€EL'SH 000 00'€86'LZ}
okl {e6',92'08) £6'L26'GVE 000 00°091'562
9g'zve  (00°000'09) 00'000'68 000 00°000'G€E
000 0008 000 000 000¢
000 00'0€} 000 000 00°0EL

9g'00L  {€6°226)
anuanay
yabpng 3JuUEe|eq

40 % 186png

¥

£6'126'09Z

anuansy

aLa

anuanay

00'000'092

186png
anuansy

S3XVL 3IWOH I a0
AT XYL HENI/AINO'AIN-VOIS
AATT XL HAND/JHNI

a3 93dS/dSNVYL
HYINOIY- " dSNVHL

1-10-0821-0S
1-10-0511-0S
L1005
Kao Jessuan

pung uogepodsuesl oy

$32UN0S 2JPIS WOJ4 aNUaASY 000

L-015e-0F
1-00S€-0F
S32UNO0S SJEIS WO BNUBASY

Ane Jelaue 0004

NOSNHOF '? Y3HLO/ dSNVHL 1-6661-0F
"LSIANI NO "LNIdSNvdL 1-0i51-0F
"1S1Q ¥3HL0-S3IT'SNVL (454514
S3AXVL INOH ITIEOW 1-10-0124-0F
AATT XYL HENO/NOLYIHOISNYAL L-LOEVLOF
Aae |eisuad)
dnoug pund Jo pund e3jAlas }qaq of
Ano eI0ULD 0001
1S3ANI NO'LNYSIOINHIS 1830 1-0151-0E
S3XvL INOH 31180N 1-10-0121-0€
AT XYL HENO/F0IANTS 1830 1-10-Z}IL-08
Ana |edeuas)
pung julen 3 ‘Pling 1ed0 0
spund Jo $32unos 0002
1NIW3LVEY 1-011 202

spund jo $83Inos

$32.N0G (eJOPaJ WOJJ SNUSAIY DOOY

v 4SS3
ass3a
11yss3a

“1S3 NOSNHOr 2 ¥3HLO0/NE0
AINIWLSNIANI NO'LNIFNEO
SAXVL INOH 31I80N

ANTT XYL HEN0/O078

866102
€-8669-0¢C
2866102
$92uN0§ |BIOpPad WOl BNUASY

AAoT [RJ2USD (00
1-6661-02

1-0161-02

1-10-0124-02

L-L0-LELL-02

Wnooaay

Lve asD adieH e

WVZ0:85:01 €£202¢/¥1/90 ‘Pajuld

Jodey anusaaay Jys aso odieH e



1d¥'d pdiq img\eoueuid\gasps\adieHe \s\:a

:fejo) podey
pung puny juswsaocadwy jejded 06
b anuoAdy Jo aN0S  « OE00L  (9E°18) 9£'860'L2 000 00°£10'42 £Aa je19UeD 00O
1015106 000 00E 000 000 00'e "LSIANI NO INIAT¥ 314 1-015}-06
1-L0-0124-06 000 00yl 000 000 00'¥b S3AXVL INOH TG0 1-1L0-0421-06
AT
1-10-8LLL-06 9€°00L  (9€'86) 9€'860'2¢ . 000 00'000'22 XVLHANO-ADUNT/ALIS/ATH 314 L-108LLL-06
[V N1ICTED)
pund GE00F (OV 0SS, 0F 039581 000 000k G814 pung juewBpn pue Ayunuus 3oL 08
anusnsy Joaaunos . 0£'00b  (0¥'0SS) 0v'099'G8) 000 00'0kb'G81 Ara [eIOUBD)  000L
1-0151-08 00 0004 000 000 0070} “1S3IANI NO LNVALINNINWI LHOL 1-0151-08
1-100121-08 000 00°00) 000 000 0000} S3XVL INOH IGO0 1-10-0421-08
1-10-0Z4L-08 9€00L  (0¥'099) 0p'099'68) 000 00°000'S8} ANTT XYL HENDALINNIWNI 1H0L " 1-10-0211-08
Ane] [easuas)
puny V000F- GV ZE0¥S Gy 020'LC pun YseD BUBHOM 02
anuoAay JO 82IN0S . 000 0L'129'%S (oL'129'vS) 000 00'0 ’ SpUNJ JO SIUNOS  000L
L-0L8-0L 000 0L'1L8'%S (0L'129'v5) 000 000 AN3IW3LYEY 1-0LL8-0L
spund Jo s8anos
anuaAsy J0 9N0S  « GE'Z04  (ST'PEY) ST'159'42 000 00°240'/2 Ana |RIsu2S 000
10L51-0L 000 00°€ 00'0 000 00'¢ S3IANI NO “INIFHSVYO "Hd0M 1-0151-0L
1-10-0b2L-0L 000 00¥L 000 000 (i3 18 S3XVL INOH IUG0N 1-1L0-0b2}-0L
L-10-GH-0L L20L  (S27159) §2'159'22 000 00700022 AT XYL HHNO/HSYO ONDINOM 1-10-SLL-OL
AAaT [esouag
punj 0200k (cveBe ZVosrech 000 00 ¥L0BZH pun4 ‘908 "90SI AW W 09
anuanay josonog . 0£00L  {(2¥'Z8E) 2r'9sy'ezl 000 00'7.0'821 Ane] jesouss  000L

101510 000 00'vL 000 ¥ 00°pi "1S3ANI NO'INVAHNI 1-0161-0§
anuaasy

18bpng gaue|eg anuanay anuaaay 1abpng
18bpng SRS ‘it anuansy uondussaq N9y

TR
[—Ii..ﬁltﬂ 'Il|l

05 PuN4 988 208/ 4 H''l

L¥E aSO sdiey e
WVYZ20:85:0} €£202/L/90 paluld
£20Z/1€/G 4o se Hodey

gl0g ofed Hoday anuaAsy Lie SO odieH e

(




Ldy'd pdig mg\eourul\gaspsiedieHe NS\

052007520l 000 (00'629'9) 00°629'9 000 00'0 ANNOYDAY1d/HOSTHd 0b-0L¥-¥52-S2LL-0L
L1-122-2€£-62L0F 000 (00°'582) 00'692 000 000 £202-220Z HLSNI AOHdWIHOS3Ad Lb-2ee-122-52Li-0b
1L-00b-022-52h-01  VEEL 8Z661'C ZL00E'YL 0Z'6€9'L 00°005'64 1j43N39 SNIVHOS3Nd 1L-022-004-G2L 10
04-004-022-GZH-0L 00’0 (ov'005'}) 0¥°005'} 000 000 JONVANSNIMISIY 1Y HOS 3ud 04-022-001-G241-0L
14-001-Zb2G2hh-0L 9LvL 16'9L £0'822 91'sZ 00'S0€ €15) £202-2202/ VS HOL HOS3Hd L1004 °2LZ'G2hL 0L
01-004-212-6ZL-0} 000 (99'6¥) 99'6Y 000 00'0 815) 22-420Z AUV TVS HOLN 3ad 0L'00L°ZbZ'S2LL 0L
11-0bi-LL2-SZLL-0F 000 00528 000 000 00'628 1143N36 SIHL-SY1HOS3dd L-LL2-0LL-SZLL-0L
L-00L-LbZ-G2LL0) EFLS 6L°28G 12°219 04’89 00'002'L 88€) £202-2202/ TvS HOL HOS3dd [N ] kAT ]
01-00L-112-6Z}1-0} 000 (9g'eel) 9E'EEl 000 000 €8€) 22-1202 AYVIVS HOLM Idd 017001 11Z°G2LL0b
Lb-00b-GbL-SZ1L-0L LL'BL 66'626'€ 10°020'vL loeve'l 00°000'8L £202-2202 “TvS 3AIv/HOSIAd LL-GHL-001-5Z11-01
01-004-GLL-521-0L 000 (00°zs1) 00251 000 000 2202-4202 ANYIVS 30IvA 34d 01-511-004-GZL1-0}
}1-00b-0b)-G214-0L GO'SL 6b'660'E} L5°00V'6€ £8'9¢€'y 00'005°25 £202-2202/ WS HOL HOS34d LL-0b4-004-S21L-0}
01-004-0LL-G21L-0} 0070 (05°ev¥'s) 05°Evp's 000 000 2202-1202 AYVIVS HOLM 3dd 01-041-001-G211-0}
01-652-004-624401 000 000§ 000 000 0005 dSNYYLASIY 1V HOS Jdd 04-001-652-5211-01
g¥i-10LL-0L 000 (L¥'008'L) 1y 008, 000 000 SAddNS LNVHO Y3al-dHv 8¥i-10L1-01
L-€IL0LL-0L 6672€ 01029 06'6Z€ 000 00'000't 1dNS 2 SHIvd3d ANvE L-EL-LOLL-0L
1-6-LLi-10LL-0L S8'69L  (8%°869) 8r'869'L 00709 007000} OISNIN TVHOHD % ANVE HYP 1-6-bLFLOLL-0)
L-8-LLy-10LL-0F 000 00°000'h 000 000 00°000'L "HO¥Nd ANNH ALAILOY 1-8-LL-10LL-O)
L-2-bbp-LOLL-0L LGOS \Wevl 65'2SL 000 00°005'} HYr - N313/83NddNS LyY 1-2-LbF-L0LL-0)
1-055-Lb-LOLIOL  61'G6 76'9L 80°€2S'} 000 007009} 1dNS HLTVAH 2 2d 1= L LOLE-0b

L LL-LOLLO0L  90'2E 8962} 4872 000 007002 8-2-9 S1Y IOVNONV V¥ LLF-LOLL-0)
L-E-bi-LOLL-0L  99'62 89'8yl ZE'1S 000 00'002 8-2-9 S3IANLS VI00S 1-E-LLP-LOLL-OL
L-Z-LL-LOLL-O0b  29'SY 1080} €216 000 00'002 8-2-9 IDN3I0S 1-2- L1010
b-LI-L0LL-0L 9v'85Z  (88'6LL'Y) 88°61L'9 000 00°009'2 8-2-9 HIVIN b-b-LiirloLk-0L
1-9-0i¥-10LL-0F 000 00002 000 000 00002 (LNVH9-NON) $3NddNS %-3dd 1-9-0L1-1041-01
150L¥10LL-0) 000 007002 000 000 00'002 JAVHO H1S-A1ddNS 1G-0l-10LL-01
1-0L7-10Lb-0L 00'8HL  (00'9E) 00°9€2 000 00002 S3AMNddNS 3AVHD HiYy 1#0L-10LL 01
1-e-0Lp-101L-0L 68'F5L  (LL'60L) L1608 00'0 00°002 $S311ddNS 3AVHD QHE -€-0bb-LOLL-0L
1-Z0Lp-10L0L 25708 (€0'LOL) £0°10€ 000 00°002 S311ddNS 3avyD ANz 1-2-0L1- 104401
1--0L-L0LL0L 6ELLE  (2222) L1222 000 00002 1dNs 3avo 1Sh 1-1-0Lb-LOLL-0)
1-0Lb-10LL 0L 81'8E 52’810V sLisy'z 000 0070059 1dNS TVHINIO/WI3 1-0b-LOkL-0L
1-0b-L0LL-0L PE'LY £ LI 1928 86} 00002 S3ddNS "OaNDi 1-0-0L-LOLL-D}
1-02Z-104L-01  ¥6'8L 86'GLE'LE 0ve9' Ll 8’62z’ Ll 00°000'6¥7} S114IN3E SNVHEM-WIT3 1-022-10LL-01
1-zlz-i0L-0b 9ot'i8 ye'9lE 99'€29'2 Z9°0€2 00°000'€ (A15) SFUVIVS HOL HAM/WI13 V212 1oL 0
1-b12-L04L-0b OL'6S YeEEY Y 99'995'9 62625 00°000'L} (g8e) SV IVS HOL HA/W33 VL2 10V 0L
1-G2L-L0LL-0} 99'/6 LY0SE £5'6v9'v) 05259 00'000'G1 S3AIV ? SHYATO NS HAr-W313 1-621-10LL-0L
1-0Z1-L0L-0L 625 (p9'lg8'01) ¥9'/58'08 26'992'8 00'000'02 HO1 8NS HAr-W313 1-021-10L1-0)
£-G1L-L0LL-0F 000 00'999'95 000 00'0 00°999'9S TYNOISSTH0udvalvd -l ¥SS3 £G11-1011-0b
1GH-LOL-OL 1028 09'¥89'2) 0¥'6eR'.S 05'6€8'L 00'026'0L S3AIV 2 SHHI1D WHIO HArWIT3 1GLL-LOLL-0L
L-0Lb-LOLL-0L 9€'88 8.°9€0'LS 22'€96'28Y 69'CLB'EE 00'000'06% SARVIVS HOL HAMWIT L-OL-LOLI-DL

wnn unooady ajers

dm‘ ..i.ﬂ.ﬁm&#ﬂ.l

1ebpng@

0%

)

T
ey >

aoue|eg

1abpng
uainy

uonduasag

uoponnsu|

Lv€ aso edieH e
NVY9Z:10:LL €202/¥1/90 ‘paluLd

g - mwoday ainyipuadxy zpg S adiel e

£20Z/1€/G 4o se Hoday
g jo | abegq

o=



14y d”pdig img\soueuid\gasps\adieHe\s\:Q

1-2h¥-80¥1-01
L-LL80PL-0L
+-0L#-80F1-01
}-00e-80¥1-0}
1-0LL-00¥1-01
§1-00€-01#55¢2L-0}
S1-001-044-65210L
G1-062-00¥552h-0}
G1-122-00¥-5524-01
G1-001-01€55Z1-0)
SL-00€-00EGSZL0}
§1-12¢-00€-5521 01
S1-00€-0226521-04
G1-004-022-6521 -0}
S1-00€-212-5524-01
§1-00L-¢12652i-0l
§1-00€-112-65210}
G1-004-112-952101
S1-001-0LL-G5240)
G1-00E-001-GSZ}-01
¥1-001-022-052L 0}
¥1-004-242-0521-0}
¥1-00L-112-052)-01
vi-122-011-0521-0)
¥1-001-011-052}-01
1001602101
- 0L-50Z1-04
1-€-01#5021-01
1-2-014-5021-01
1-60-0L#-5021-0}
1-2e€-5021-0}
L-00€-5021-01
1-022-5021i-01
1-212-5021-04
L-1250Z1-01
1-511-6021-01
L-€11-6021-01
1011502101
11-00€-0L#S2HL-0)
LL-00L-0byG2li-0l
11-962-00¥52H 01

14034
05’6
89’8l
000
58'v8
16'EL
GE'025
26’86
G2'GeT
000
000

FA Q]
000
66'28
000

[4 x4
000
86'5C)
0008
000
000
8y'2g
000
000
000
000
000
000
vL'8El
LL6
000
089
¥9'eL
€5'9¢
zLve
g6'16
00°091
[48¢:]
000
w'ly
o'ey

05°92€'Z
SE6.E'E
62'026'C
00°000'}
00°GLS'L
69861
(9z'50€'9)
91z
(oLr8.8'Y)
00'62Y'e
00°05L'S
L¥'606')
(g1ezl)
88'g89'1
(82
0892
(18°22)
(28°169)
SZZIS' I
(00'052)
(z672e5'L)
25’y
(a0'zrl)
(28'60€'E)
(05°8v0'6)
(00'168'9)
(00°'821'S5)
(00°L¥5'2)
(89'e64)
GL'LSy
00700}
L0°€EZ
88’ Lp'EL
9€'LLE
¥9'505'L
Z€°200'L
(00'051)
26°L56'E}
(66212
ye'zle
05 ¥6E

05'€L9'L
59'029'8y
1649
000
00's8Y'8
11°054'2
9Z'G0B'L
v L6t
9/'8lE'E
000

000
£5'6£9'6
61’621
[4% 744"
aLe
0zeLZ
18'22
zavse'e
GL°9€0'er
00052
76'2e8'L
8y'zs
80°2v1
28'60€'S
05'8v0'6
00'168'9
00'821'SS
00°L#5'C
99'€69
ag'8k
000
66'91
Z1'855'L€
ya'zsl
9E'v6
89°266'6L
00°00%
8¥'2r0'vL
66212
9l'eve
05'G0E

Si'8€
05'829'c
000
000
00'0.9
000
000
¥a'L61
16°0GY
000
000
0z'eve'l
000
02580}
000
ve9e
000

[4: 3144
gL'6va'9
000
000
00’0
000
000
000
000
00°168'9
00°e82
000
000
000
00'0
£0'100'€
1ol
89'EV
¥5'8v6'S
000
81°199'0
000
000

00°000'%
00'000'25
00'009'€
007000}
00'000'0}
00'606'2
00°00S'h
00'002
00'008'L
00'62b'c
00'0SL'S
00'6¥5'11
000
00016'6
000
00°000't
000
00'€99'2
00°6¥5'LS
000

000
00°00%
00'0

000

000

000
00'0

000
00°00S
00°005
00°00}
00'052
00°000'}S
00°00S
00°000'2
00°000'L9
00'052
00°000'88
000
00615

IAYMLIOSHIIL
LWHOV-OIT LH0ddNSHOIL
S3MddNS'HO3L

S3AVINUAS "HOUNA/HOTL
S3RVIVS HO3L

TdNS ANISWNOOA T1LIL
S3NddNsS- ILiL

SSITIWOH/ 3TLIL

ddNS/LSNI 40 AONdNI
UVYMLLOS/ FTLL

¥3S HOYUNd-AY3S WO/ ITLLL
LSNIAOHdWIF ITLIL

(89%) TvS - LHOIN QWAN3S WWOO
SLI43IN3d SNH F1LIL

(86€) TS - LHOIN QWAN3S WNOD
(815) £2-2202/SANVIVS-1 ILIL
888€) TvS - LHOIN aW/AM3S NWOOD
%y"0L-SHL/I A1LIL
€2-2202/SAIVTVS- I1LIL

VS - LHSOIN QWAY3S WNOD
SL{43N3g SN ITLIL

916) 22-120Z SAVTVS | I1LIL
%586 - SHL/1 ILIL

AaN3dILS AJA H0¥d | 31LIL
22-120Z SAVIVS | ILLIL

8 14vd v3ara3 93dS HOS 3dd
HONOHHL MOT4 8 Livd V3AI vHHY
HOS3d 9 Lvd YIAI VoY

HOIH Ar-S3NddNS
W313-53NddNs

TaAvHL-a3 93dS

AY3S A3LOVHINOD/QT 93dS
"SNVAN3E-a3 93dS

(g19) "TvS HOL-a3 93dS

(gge) “TvS HOL-a3 03dS

“TvS My310-a3 93dS

ONIHOLNL ANNOGIWOH/d3'03dS
VS HO1-03 93dS

£2-220Z dNS AY3S WNOD/HOSTdd
IdNS HOL/HIS3Yd
AY3S A00A/HOSTHd

12h-80PL-0)
L-LL-80VL0L
L-044-80VL0}
}-00€-80¢ 10}
1-0L1-0071-0}
GI-0L-00€-55Z1-01
S1-014-001-55210}
S1-001-062-552 10}
51-004-122-5521-01
GL-01£-001-G5Z10}
51-00£-00€-5521-0}
S1-00€-122-6521-01
51°00€'022'5521 01
51-022-001-G5Z1-0}
S1'00E°24Z'S5Z) 01
S1°004°212'5521°0}
S1°00€°112°9521 0}
Gb-112-00L-55Z10k
S1-011-004-552}-01
§1-001-00€-552101
1-022-001-05Z1-01
¥1'004°242'0521 0}
P1-14Z-004-052}-0}
71-0LH-122-0621-01
1-044-001-0521-01
1-0-0L-S021-04
VP 0H-5021-0)
}-E-0HP-5021-04
1201450210}
}-1-0Lp-G0Z )01
1-28€-50Z1-0)
1-00€-50Z1-01
1022502101
1ZLZ'S0ZL 0l

V' 1LZ502L 01
1-GHL-50Z}-01
1-ELL-50Z1-01
1-0L1-50Z4-01
L-0L¥-00€-G2LL0)
11-04-001-G2H1-0}
L1-004-952-G21L-01

1e6png aoue|eg | 196png

10 % 186png uonduasaqg WNo22y

.

0} pung uolEINPI

/¥€ asD edieH e
WV9Z:10:LL £Z0Z/¥1/90 Ppajulld

g - Moday ainjipuadxy zpe ASH adiel e

£202/1£/S Jo se Hoday
g 10 Z ebeg



1dy'd pdig pmg\eoueul\gasps\adieHe\S\:A

£20Z/1€/S 4o se Joday
g 10 ¢ ebed

y

}-0lE-0LECOI
|-2ey-0222-0}
}-0ev-0222-0!
L-0b¥-0222-01
1-022-02¢2-0}
1-011-0222-01
L-#00¥0122-0}
1-00%-0122-0}
1-122-0122-01
1-€-022-0122-0}
1-€-22-0122-01
1-€-112-0122-0}
1-€-001-0122-01
1-0L¥0512-01
t-0l-opi20l
1-022-0¥12-0}
L-0lL-clz-0vie-0l
1-212-0v12-04
1-0L4-H20VIC0}
b-H2-0v120!
1-0LLOrIZ0lL
L-0b-0ELZ2 01
1-00€-0€1201
+-00€-0412-0}

uopoung .
1-009-0251 0}
L-L€L¥-02S1-0t
-2Ly0251L0k
L-Li¥-025101
L-0L-0251-01
}-2e€-025101
1-022-0251-0)
1-212-0251-01
1-112-0251-0}
1-011-0251 04
L-019-01G1 0L
1-0¥S-80¥1-01
V-¥2-80¥L 01
¥2¥-80P1-01
1€iy80¥L 0L

laquinp 1Unoddy alels

A

§2'96 0082 00'662'L 00'2H'2 00'6.5'L
06°EL 8v'0El 75°69€ 00'0 00005
85'LL e 9}°GE 91'GE 00°002
002} 109/} 66'EC 000 00°002
06'¢L GZ'986'2 SLETE'L 9y'528 00016'6
L16'€0b  (La¥6L) 18'v6L'02 00°200'2 00'000'02
69’57l (v9'885'Y) po'e8s'vl v 1¥e 00°000'0b
000 00°008 000 000 00°008
8r'¥9 102082 6Z'EVS'Y 000 00°9%0'L
000 (120912 [IN¢ 154 66'819 000

000 (e1p) 'Ly e 00'0

000 (55°66) 6566 8i'l2 000

000 (00°092'6) 00'09L'6 00°02L'2 000

000 00002 000 000 00002
000 00°002 000 000 00°002
Lp'SL 80°LLE'8 26'2€5') 000 000166
000 00°0v) 000 000 oo'ovl
¥E'6l Z€'191 89'8¢ 000 00'002
000 00°00% 000 000 00°00%
¥6'02 2€'G6€ 89'%01 000 00°00S
vEVL ¥E €€8'6E 99'999'9 000 00°005'9¥
000 (90°692) 90'692 1oy 000
69'%S 00'985'L 00'v16'L 00'vLL 00°00S'E
z900L  (00'gsh) 00'651'52 00'662'2 00'000'S2
6t'26 00'688'€0} 00'602'6.2'} 91'95¥'0L) 00'060'€9€'}
grsel  (9z'19p) 8Z'19L'1 00°004'L 00°00€'}
19'.¢ 80°E6F'Z 26'906°L 000 00'000'%
§Z'92 00'066'2 00'050°} 000 00'000'%
2925 01'668'L 06'¥01'2 000 00'000'%
ZLGY EOLLL'T 16'828'}L 000 00°000'F
86'19 oy, £6'681 000 00°00€
zi'eol  {(o1'99) 01958’} av'9l 00'008'}
8L6LL  (68'28) 69°28 90 00'08
#5'65 9819} ¥1'8€Z | 0e'8 00°00%
80zt  (19°6v5'P) 9'6+5'92} 2r'8Zs 00'000'22
000 000 00'0 000 00'000'L
000 00°005'} 000 000 00005}
00'0 (€2'9.2'0€E) z'9.2'08 000 000
89°0L 741117 GLv68'6 00'0 00°000'}

000

196png
0%

000

aoueleq

000

000

0070
18fipng
uslngy

"AM3S HO¥Nd-ONA3 40 a8
STVRIALVN AV

SHOO08 AMYHEIT

S311ddNS AMVEIN
SNYANIE-ASYHEIT

AHVIVS - AdvEl

$317ddNS (00F¥)-Al T1LIL

dns (2e6p) Il I1LIL

ONALSNI ACHdWIZESY)/I TLIL
(89%) ¥OLNLN ILiL

(gse) yoLnwi 31LiL

(888¢) ¥OLNL/I FTLIL

HoLN/N T
$31NddNS-HO33dS
$3NddNS-"HOASd
‘SNI/ANI-HOASd

1143N38 DAN-SUL/HOASd
(815) AMVIVS-ADOTOHOASd
1143N38 SIHL-SYLU/HOASd
(98€) AUV TVS-AD0TOHOASd
AV TVS-ADOTOHOASd
$311ddNS HLTVAH'HOS
SIS HLTVIH

AY3S HOUNd YIHUOM TVIDO0S

SISNIdXT WIHLO - HAr
TTvELINSYE SAOE HAr
1Tva3sva SACH Hir
TIVEAITIOA STHIO HAr
IS STAIO Hur
I3AVEL-HAP

(89v) AAVIVS OILITHLY HYF
(a18) AMVIVS OILITHLIY HP
(98€) AMVTVS OLLITHLY HYF
AYYIVS OLLITHLY HAr
'HOUNd/ ¥31S008 JILITHLY
S3SVYHIUN dINDF/HOAL
1202/dv3ad
0Z0z/dv3yd
SYIVdIA/HOIL

uondiiosag

1-0l€-0LE20l
V-2ey-0222-01
1-0ep-022201
1014022201
}-022-0222-0}
1-011-0222-0}
1700012201
1-2-00¥-012201
1-2-122-0122-01
1'€'022°0422°01
L'e2ieolzzol
VELzolezol
1-€-001-0122-0}
}-0L-0S5120}
1-0L-0vi2-0)
1-022-0v12-01
1-212-0LL-0¥i20)
1'2iz’arieol
L-112-011-0P1 201
L'1Zovizol
1-041-0¥12-01
1-0Lp-0E1L201
1-00€-0€120}
1-00€-04420)
sasjaeg poddng

uonanysul 000k

1-009-0251-0}
-ELy-025101
L-2L¥-025101
L-11-0254-01
1-01 025101
1-2e£-0251-01
1°022'0251°01
}'212°02s51°0}4
Liieozsiol
1-041-0251-04
104015101
1-0¥5-80F101
1924807101
V-52v-80F) 0}
L€1-80P1-0)

WNoJ3y

0L pung uonesnp3

2¥€ asD edieH e
NVY9Z:L0:LL £20Z/7L/90 ‘pejuld

g - Moday ainjpuadx3z g aso adieH e



Ld¥'d vdig yms\eoueuid\gaspsiadieHe\SI:Q

1-008-02520) S1°96 00°00S 00°005'2h 000 00'000'E} 11aNv/S30IAY3S TvOSid 1-00€-0252-0}
1-26901520L 000 00'642'} 000 000 00'622'L aNOA ALIT3AI ¥34II00HE 1-259-0152-04
|-Ze€-01G201 000 00'6.8 00'0 000 00'5.8 AL 1-ZE€-0152-0}
1-00€-0L520} 000 00'061 00'0 000 00'05} S3JINYIS AISVHOUNd 1-00€-0152-04
1-022-0152-0} ¥8'68 ¥6°900'L 90'€06'8 9b'28 00°016'6 SNI 3N38 33A01dW3 1-022-0152-0L
L-0L-0L52-01  LZ'S6 61911L'2 GZ'€22'6S 00°059'% 00°000'85 HIdIDIN00B-AUVTVS 1-0L4-0152-01
1-022-06¥20L 000 (po'6£L'0) PO'6EL'9 92'¢99 000 "SNI'IN34 - SLNIANLS 40 Nv3ad 1-022-06¥2-04
1-zbZ2-06¥20L 000 (ov'zez) ov'z62 85°92 000 Sy (86€) AV TVYS-ONINd'WIT3 1'Z12 06V 01
. Syl
1-142-06v2-0F 000 (o¥'16) Ob'46L ¥6'bL 000 (86€) AVIVS-"SINIANLS 4ONVIA 111 2°06V2 0}
1-0b-062-0L 000 (19°94¥'05) L9'91¥'05 £C'E8s'Y 000 ANVTVS INJANLS 40 Nv3d 1-0L1-06¥2-0}
1-0v¥9-0b¥2-0L 08'L9 00’16} 00'60€ 000 00°00S . $334 % SING-"ONINA' WA 1-0¥9-0L¥2-0b
1-0LP-0Lb20F 9261 (ptL8e) pr198'2 Lol 00°005'2 $31NddNS I01440'W3 13 1-0L¥-0L¥2-0}
L-0vE-0kP2-04 000 (se'64%) S6'6LF 000 000 39Y1S0d-" W33 - L-0vE-012-01
1-Ze€-0L¥2-0b 000 00'00€ 000 000 00°00€ TEAVHL-ONIMd W31 L-ZE€-01P20b
1-00€-04¥2-0} 000 00°00L 000 000 00'001 3SNIdX3 "OSIN ¥3IHLO 1-009-01¥2-04
1-1-022-0bv2-0F 000 000k L 000 000 00°0Lb' 1L 'SNI'INIE-ONRId'WIN3 1-022-0L 204
}-022-0Lb201 1655  (25'992'6) 25'€0g' L1 6L°€02'L 00°2€0'2 (99) AMVTVS-"ONINd' W33 1'022'04¥2'0L
1-ZL20L¥20L P18l £8°0£8 21¥8L zZa6l 00°640'L (g5€) AYIVS-ONIMd' WA (AT AR 2 A}
1-LZ0Lp20L  Li8l 056942 05'86% G9'ES 00'%99'C (86€) AYYIVS-"ONINd' W33 L'ib2olreol
LGH-0PZ0L 90722 (bl LIV'E) vLLIV'EE 0£'896'¢ 00°000'0E AMVTYS-03S W313 1-GH-01¥2-0)
1-0LL-0b20L L9'LY 10°062'¥8 66'60L'9L L99LY'E 00000191 AV IVS-ONIMd' WA 1-04-0L¥2-0L
1-0v9-0Z€2-01 8669l (L0°€ZS) 102’} 000 00008 $3342 $3nd 1-0¥9-02€2-0b
1-01#-02€2-0} 000 (55°80€) §5'80€ ‘000 000 dIOSANS/ 1dNS 301430 1-04-02€2-01
|-2€8-02€2-01 000 00'052 000 000 0005 RETCATH }-Z£€-02€2-01
1-022-02820L 2,601 (L0'2L6) L0°2L6'0b 66'959'} 00°000'0} SNI3N3E 1dW3 1-022-02€2-0}
}-0L1-212-02€2-04 00°0 L6l (vel) 000 000 "HINOD AOTdWNI MIN/SHL 1-212-044-02E2-0
1-Z12-02€2-0L 9v¥'Z6 L0328 €2'LY9 0085 00°00L (A5€) AMVIVS 1dNS 1'Zb2'02E2° 0L
1-0%4-142-02€2-0F 000 ¥L1G (pL1LS) 000 000 3SN3dXT LI33N3A SHL 1-LL2-0Lb-02€2-01
1-1b2-02€2-0} E€SP9 20°€96 86'15.'L 00251 006422 (86E) AMVTVS LdNS L'Lhz'0zez 0l
1611026201 vGLiZ  (L0°2G1'12) 20°251'6€ L9819 00°000'8) NLS d0-09/A03S 1dNS 1-G11-02€2-0)
L-0LL-02€2-0L 18602 (gL 562'65) 2LSBT'ELL 00°000°0} 00°000'¥S ANVIVS 1dNS 1-011-02£2-0}
1-069-0b€2-0} €1'8S 72'298's 8L'/EL'S 000 00'000'¥4 NOLLNIANOD-OSIN 1-069-01€2-0b
1-0v9-0L€2-0L 0L2vk  (00%S8) 00°¥58'2 00'p28'L 00'000'2 $334'9 S3NA 1-0v9-0LEZ-0}
1-0L9-0L€20L vO's¥l  (¥5°02L) $5'022'2 Z€'6S 00005t H3IHLO/ SN 1-019-01€2-0L
1-0b-0l€20L 9E'69 8Z'G65'Y zLvov'ol Z9'16L 00°000'GY CEREENTS 1-04$-01€2-0)
1-0GE-0b€Z-01 LG')S SG'/¥8 S¥'206 000 007052’} ONISILYIAAY }-0SE-0L€20)
1YES-0LE2-0L OF'VE 99'6¥0'L ¥£'055 000 00'009'} 39V1S04-"0Na3 40 a8 1-0¥E-01€2-0b
1-Z€€-0LEZ-0L 000 0000} 000 000 00'00} 13AVHL-a3 40 a8 1-ze€-01€2-0b
164€-01€2-0L 000 00705 000 000 00'0S “SOHO JHIM 2 NvE 161€-01€2-04

1-81€-01€20} 02'€€S'2 08'996'Y 00008~ Tv95371-'0Na3 40 ad 1-8l€-0bcz0l

18b6png ajuejeg / 18bpng

1e6png f FUESle)
S . 3

* 0L pund uogeanp3

L€ QS adieH e
Wv9Z:10:LL €202/7L/90 ‘Pajulld
£202/1.€/S ‘40 Se uoday

610 b abeq >g - poday ainypuadxy Lyg dSO adieH e

on




Ldy d pdig jmg\eoueulf\gaspsiadiee\sh:d

pund 1029L (05 LIV 6} 097055 V8 9976964 OO EChSs L T 5

uopouny . 107290 (09°L¥'6LE) 09'055'vER 99'299'6L 00°€€}'SIS saajuag poddng 0002
1-009-0v52-02 000 (ecvsL't) €E'pSL'L 000 000 ‘dX3 ¥3IHLO-WE0 1-009-0¥52-02
Z-0vS0vS2-02 052ve  (¥1'L9'20€) vl LvE' L2y 000 002LLYel S1O3r0Yd dv9 Z ¥SSI-WE0 Z-0¥5-0¥52-02
1-0pS-0pS2-02 25009 (0L7150°LS) 0'150'19 0L'129'%S 00'000°'0L AV1LNO TYLIdVO-WE0 1-0¥5-0¥52-02
g€l 0psZ-02 282 6£'698'02 19°509 000 00°GLp'12 S3NddNS INVHD ddv vaal 8¢y ovse-0z
Z-lL¥0vsz-02 000 (00'v60'b2) 00'+60'L2 000 000 $311ddNS 9018 Z ¥SS3-WE0 Z-0ps2-02
L-bbrO¥ST02 ESES 9l L¥E'El ¥9'850'9} SS¥8L'L 00°000'0€ $3NddNS LINIVW/SHIVATY L-Lbi-0pG2-02
L-0L-0¥SZ0Z €0°L0Z  (6E°€52'G) 6E'ESH'OL 69°210't 00'002'S $3ddns TvIdoLSNO-WA0 1-0bt-0bS52-02
\bEe-0rsz0z Zh'e0k  (L9'sh) 19°'GPS 19°GHS 00°00S 3SN3dX3 MONHL LINN }¥EE-0pG2-02
1-Ze€-0v52-02 €166 8€'68 Z9'vi6'L 80°801 00'000'2 TaAvEL 1-2€€-0v52-02
}-82€-0vGZ02 L1696 b4 AA%A 8.'/81'9 51°€09 00°000'L JOVM3IS 7 HILVM-ILLIVNEO 1-82€-0v52-02
}-12E-0¥S20Z SSL0L  (POELZ'M) 0'ELZ'EB 1009 00700028 21410313 TIL/NEO 1-22€-0¥52-02
1-12€-0v52-02 ¥E'L9 ¥5'297'Gl 9¥'LES'VT 1088€') 00°000°'0F ONLVIH-ILN 1-Lge-0vse-0e
Z-00E-0¥52-02 000 00'929'¢ 000 00'0 00'9.9'¢ SIONAIS ISYHOUN Z ¥SSF-NE0 2-00€-0¥52-02
1-008-0vS2-02 2.6V 6L'7L9'LE 18'G2E'LE oe'lg'y 00°000'€9 S3DINNAS G3SVHOUNd 1-00€-0p52-02
Z-022-0¥52-0Z 000 00'05¥'L 000 000 00°05¥'} S1I43N3E 2 ¥SSI-NE0 2-022-0¥52-0¢C
1-0zz-0psz0Z 8922k  (eLee6p'S) ELEVE'SE 8E°'9Lb'C 00'058'6} ‘SNI/AN3E-WE0 1-022-0¥52-02
1-021-0v52-02 000 00°000'L 000 000 00°000'} SNV TS ENSME0 1-021-0¥52-02
2-0L1-0vS2-0Z 90'SS 0g'erb'L 05294t 000 0o0lz'e SARIVIVS Z ¥SSI-WE0 Z-0L4-0152-02
1-011-0vS2-0Z 69021  (¥0'069'02) $0'069'021 9e'66.'8 00°000'00% SIEVIVS OTI-WE0 1-041-0¥52-02
sa9iAes poddng

pund 20 ¢6L VP02 Z0'986 V8l 009LLVIZE A CITATE) G

uojouny s GO'6S 69'125'22 1E'8LY'2E 6£'252'8 00'000'SS gebleys pawnuesbosduoN 000V
1-02€-0ZL7-01 S0'6S 69'125'22 le'aLp'ze 6£262'8 00°000'SS 03SIOM-SLNd NOLLINL 1-02€-0244-0b
sebieyn pawwesboiduoN

uopound  « 6EVE 62'LLG'EY LL'80L'EEL L¥'LL2'99 00°989'9LL saojnes woddns 0002
1-009-09920b 88'LHL  (L0°€08) L0'€05'8 eE'LY6 00°009'L IVINIY ¥31d0/ 00dd Viva 1-009-0992-0}
1-009-09520b 94°0Lk  (0€7198) 0E'19€'L 000 007008 SISNIdX3 ¥IHLO OSIN 1-009-0952-01
1-0¥S-0952-01  00°0 00°000'S 000 000 00°000'S AYLLNO TVLIAVD 1-0¥5-0952-04
L-LP-09G2-04 0166 00'1€9 00'69€'69 zLShL'S 00°000'0L SW3LI @004-S3NddNS b-L1#-0952-0)
1-047-095Z-04 68201 (€E'68L) £€'68L'01 000 00°000°0} (@004 NON)Y3IHLO-1dNS 101409620}
}-2€€-09520F 00'S6 000l 00'06} 000 00'002 T3AvEL 1-Z€€-0952-0b
1€2£-08620L 000 00'000'0} 000 000 000000} JONVYNILNIVIV/SHIVETY 1€2£-0952-0}
}-00€-0952-01 080} 00°09F'Y 00°0¥5 00'0Ll 00°000'G SIDINYIS HOUNG/VIYILILVO 1-00£-0952-0}
1-022-0962-01 86'€9 szgeL'ol GL'¥90'61 26°059'} 0000862 SNI aN38 33A01dN3 1-022-0952-0}
}-0L4-0952-01 85718 arzis'yl 25'186'05 £€052'Yy 00°005'29 S3YIVS VIN3LIIVO 1-044-0952-01

L-0pE0FSZ 0} 6EVD 59'v9Z'| SE'GES'D 00°00}'8 IANOHITAL-TLN \-0ve-ovse-ol

186png ajuejeq 1a6png
13gWNN JUN029Y 81B1S 10 % 186png a | wsung IR0y
L IR =L 1 = = . ’ " " i e — %

© 0L pun4uoneanpI

L€ aso ediey e
WV9Z:L0: 4L €202/1/90 Pejuid
£202/L€/§ )0 se Wodey

me oF g - Hoday ainjipuadxy 2y¢ AsD odieH e

\




Ldy'd vdid img\eoueuif\gasps\adieHe\S\:A

#1-001+12-0524-05 00°0 (0z'1E1) oziel 00'0 000 (4W) 102Z-210Z STIHYTVS | T1LIL #1001 '712'0521 08
) 12602405 1208 02'292 08290} 09'96 00'62¢'} AINO 2XVIIGIWHOL a1 +12-5021-05
1-€12-60Z}-06 9Z'€8 19°0E2} 6E611'9 S0°SGh 00'05€'L vOI4/S3dIv a1l }€12-502}-05
1-212-50Z}05 08'¥9 22°066'F 8Lv81'6 6E'GH9 00'GLL'PL JyWyS3aiv al 1-242-502405

1L-00b-¥12GZLL-06 8609 (957 LI) 95°L1S 8829’ 0009} (W) 1202-0202/ TvS HOL HOSTHd 1L°00L ¥12'521L°0S

01-00L-12-G211-05 2961 1'905 65€21 000 00°0£9 (MIN) 026102 AYVTVS HOLM 3dd 01°004%12°G2LL°0G
11-004-€4252L-06 LLivS  (¥Geds) ¥5'€90'L 99'6Z) 007002 (¥4) 12-0202 “TvS IAIV/HOS3Nd L00L'ELZ'GZLL0S

01-00L-€12-62LL0S 920 65'Z¥6 Sb'e 000 00'576 (¥4) 0Z-6102 AMVIVS 3AIVH 3dd 01’00} EL2°G2HL 05

11-001-212-62b 05 £128E  (G6'vaL‘L) S6'v09'1 $T8LL 00'02% €EE) $2-0202 “TvS IAIV/HOSTud 1L°004°212°6211 05

01-001-212-G24b-0S 020 94'968'L ¥o'€ 000 00°006'} A€E) 02-6102 AMVIVS 3aIVA Iud 01°00L°242'S2LL'0G
}pi2-L0L-0S €028 £SELY') 1v'92L'9 ¥L'209 00°002'8 ATNO G3IW-HOL HYr/W313 L-#42-10LL-0S
L-eLZ-L0L-08 S6'l2h  (g0'Lee) 50°06H'S 12299 00'68%'y voly/s3aly ‘was L-gh2- oL -0S
1-2i2-L0b-0S 06'26 L4 16'906'9 61058 00700'L SHNYS3aY WA L-2i2-10b}-0S

uoniangsuj
puny 1906 6P OLC ve ISwOPGEe  C0625Eh 00 VPO6SC T (9
uopound . /908 6°'9€2'v2 LG'POP'SES Z0'625'E) 00°19'652 sasjuag poddng 0002
}-009-0562-0v LEE8 69°5lY 1€¥80'2 00151 00°005'2 3SNIdX3 ¥IHLO 1-009-0552-0b
1-065-0662-0F .8'V6 ¥2:000'F 92°080'7L 000 00°1€0'8L STIOIHIA-AVILNO TVLIdVO 1-055-0652-0%
1-PLy-05520F LZGE 08'88%'L 0z'li8 000 00°00€'2 INOHd ¥YINTIII/dSNVHL 1-¥1-0852-0F
J-Eb¥06520v 02'9¢Z  (00'29€'t) 00'29€'2 000 00'000' L S39N1 7 SIHIL V-€1-0962-0v
1-2b¥0552-0v 000 (aL8l) 8.8l 00'0 000 3SV3U9 7 110 1-21-0552-0F
1-LL-0652-0F vEE€0L  (61°992°L) 61'892'6E 8.,°6€8'2 00°000'8€ 73S310 % ININOSYD 11105520t
|-2e€-0652-0v €0'9el  (90'ZL) 90’212 Wiz 00002 J3AVHL L-2E€-0552-0p
L-G1E-0662-0F 000 007000’} 000 000 00'000'} SIOINMIS HOUNA/ dSNVHL 1G1E-0852-0F
}-01€-05520v LO'Z6 Lg'vEl 616951 0058 00°00L'} S3ADIAYAS HLTvIH 1-0LE-0852-0F
1-00€-00€-0652-0v 92'/9 ESELZ'E 1¥'92L'9 18082 00°000'04 SLYVAIVdIY ¥Oav 1-008-0552-0F
1-022-0652-0F 26101  (pi'061) ¥¥'004'0} 88'8vZ'} 00°016'6 ‘SNI3NIS-dSNVAIL 1-022-0552-0%
1-212-0552-0F 000 (1e°22) lese €56 000 (815) AMVIVS "OFU-dSNVHL 1'212°0852°0F
1-112-0652-0v 0070 (£6°¢L) €6'€L 18'52 000 (888€) ANV VS "O3H-dSNVHL 11120552 0%
1-011-085¢0F L2'G8 £1°9€6'01 18'€90'86 PLYo8'8 00°000'GHH AUVIVS 'O34-dSNVHL 1-0L1-085Z-0F
seaiaes Yoddng
pund 0000k 000 02 65P 912 00P685F OGBSV aIE D T TS (3
uogound . 0000k 000 02'65¢'912 0068'GH 02°65¥'9L2 SaojAIes 3930 000§
1-669-00¥S-0E 00700k 000 00005 000 00°00S (334 IN39V) ¥3HLO-IOINY3S 183d 1-659-00¥5-0€
WY3L
1-069-00€5-08 00°00} 000 00°000'€8) 000 00°000°€8} ONOT TVdIONIYd-SIIINSIS 1830 1-069-0085-08
WaaL
1-129-0025-0¢ 00'00L 000 02'656'Z¢ 00'v68'G1 02'696'2€ ONOTVISNIdX3 LNIFFOIANIS 1830 1-129-0025-0€

18bpng
10 %

gaue|egq
1abpng

1a6png
JuaLng

$601AI9S 1q2Q

L¥€ SO adieH e

WW9Z:10:LL €£202/¥1/90 ‘Peiulld

g - woday ainjipuadx3y Jye ASDH adieH e

£202Z/1€/G 4o se yoday

g J0 9 abed
o



Ldy d pdiq mg\eoueutf\gaspsiadieHe\s\:A

1-00€-29€208 82'v6 90°858 100454 000 00°000'G} SNI NOLLYSNIdWOD .SHINHOM 1-00€-29€2-08
saaialag Hoddng
o < T 9 T - ﬂ ﬂlll
pung €£26 10€9.6 €6'LL5 LIV 81801 00'LvE L2) pung ‘aag 20Sr AW 0§
uogoung . 1866 | ZX:i14] 92'615'9L 66'€.6'9 00'899'9. seojaeg poddng 0002

1¥12-0962-08 000 (68°0) 680 680 000 (HIN) SIRIVIVS YINFL34vD V'¥12'0952°05
L£12-0952-05 6628 6%'66L 15'006'E £1'52¢ 00'00L'v VOIA/SY009 }€12-0952-05
1-212-0952-05 8€'L.L ¥£'680'C 99'042'S WLy 00'00€'L JUWIISH00D 1-212-0952-08
1-#12-0552-05 000 L) (VA4 0E'L 000 (4N) AMYTVS "OTH-dSNVHL L'p12°0652°05
L€12-085205 €0°GlL  (96°9.6) S6'9L¥'L 1149 00°005'9 voI4-¥3AINa Sna 1€12-0552-05
1-Zb20852-08 ¥l (15216'Y) 16°LL6'S (FAY 00°000'F JUWI-43AINA SNd 1-212-0552-05
1-€1L20v52-06 VWS (2e'zeZ't) 78'2¢2'6 18'219 00°000'8 VOI4VIQOLSND 1€12-0¥52-05
1-212-0¥S2-05 8FL6 1S¥90'} 6V'GEV'LL 10°€06 00°005'2H JHWITYIQOLSND 1-Z212-0¥52-0S
L-€42-04G2-05 1096 S'6L) ss'yee'y 2L°65€ 007000y VOI4rddNg 1€12-0152-05
1242015205 SI'6L 1£'899't 69'1€€'9 76705 00'000'9 RN 1-212-0452-0S

} 120620 000 (90°LeL) 90°'LEL 95'99 000 AINO'Q3IW/SLNIANLS 40 Nv3d L¥12-06¥2-0S
L-¥12-04p2-06 OF2.L vl vey 9g'Zil'L yS'6Y 00'2€5'1 AINO'GIW/ONIMd W33 112014206
LELZ0LP20S P99l (S0'9ip) S0'916'2 B85 €0€ 00'005'2 VOI4/03S "ONIiid W313 1 €12-0412-05
1-212-0bP2-0¢ SELLL  (6Z'2ER) 62'2€2'y G8'06€ 00°008'€ SN O3S ONIId W33 1-212-01#2-0S
L-¥12-02€2-05 29°€6 0280} 08'2v9'L 006kl 00°15L'} ATNO 3HVOIQaW/ LdNS L-P12-02€2-08
1-€12-02€2-05 66'90}  (19'G61) 19'666'2 29°'69% 00'008'2 VYOI/I01440°INTD 1€12-02€2-05
1-Zlz02€e05 29e0b  (15°65h) 1G'5SP'p 90'999 00°00€'Y J4WIE0I4407IN3D 1-212-02€2-05
1-€12-0222-06 90'90L  (¥806) ¥8'065'L 9L'esl 00'005'} voldrdan 1-€42-0222-0S
1-Z12-0222-0 8166 1161 62°08E'2 rAAY4 00700%'2 JHWIEEN 1-212-0222-05
1-€+12-0122-05 000 (se’1ol) SE'101 w'8e 000 (W) doLNWI 3LIL 1EP120122°08
1-€€12-0122-05 000 wLiv2) L2 #1°8G 000 (d4) ¥o1nu/i ALk LEEIZ0L2Z 05
1-£212-0422-0 000 (ov'982) 0v'982 G528 000 (gee) yoLNL/I I1LIL V'E'ZI2 042205
LLZ0vL2-08 2TVl Z€'€85 89'96 000 00089 AINO MVOIGIWHIASH L¥12-0v12-0S
saojaes Hoddng

uogouny « €0°)8 EEPI9'6 19'850'L¥ 6L°LE9'E 00'€L9'0S uopongsu] 000

1¥12-026106 S6'9F 52'692 SLVET 99'L 007005 KINO"QIW/SOILTTHLY HYP V12-0251-05
L€12-0251-09 80°/8 oz'6zh 08'0.8 000 00°000'} VOIVSOILTTHLY HAr L€12-025105
1-Z12-025L-05 L0°0) 0£'669 0,001 000 00'000'L SHWISOILTTHLY HAP L-212-0251-0S
1¥1200¥1-05 198 Z5eEl 8zl 000 006kl AINO "Q3W/HOL HO3L 1-¥12-00p1-05
L-£12-007105 000 (zeess) ZE'E8S 9z'lS 00'0 VOI4/HO3L 1-€12-00p}-0G
G1-00€-¥12-652}-0§ 000 (e8'2) 88'2 000 000 (2N) V'S - LHOIN QWAN3S WNOD S1'00€ #2562 08
5100441265206 L¥ER 0L'ZEL 0€°299 1676 00°008 (4I) 12-0Z02/SANNYTVS- TTLIL S1'00}'¥12'S521 05
§1-00€€12-552106 000 (2g'¢) Z8'€ 000 000 (dd) VS - LHOIN QH/AY3S WNOD S1°00€°€12'SG2} 05
G1-00}-€12-S621-06 000 00°002 000 000 00°002 (d4) 12-0202/SANHVTVS-1 I1LIL S}°00}°€L2'552) 05
§1-00€-212-G521-0 000 (ev's) ev's 000 000 (8€€) TS - LHOIN QX/AY3S WNOD 61°00£'2+2'552) 05

G1-001-Z2425521-05

00'052

000

00'052

(8E€) 12-020Z/STNVTVS-1 TLIL

G1'001°242'5521'0S

1efipng
usiuny

186png Auanoy

0% 16png

aoueeq
uonduasag

05 Pund ‘99 908/ 4"Y'IN|

/¥€ asD adieq e
WVY9Z:10:LL £202/¥1/90 PSluld

g - poday ainjipuadx3y Jps qSH adieH e

£202/1.£/S 4o se poday
g Jo / abed



1d¥'d vdiq pms\eoueulf\gasps\adieHe\s\:G

C—— e - —~ T T e s —— L T T O ol
2966 Y9 E6E €l 95110629 € 81'888 YOE 02'S0V 2PS'E :jejoL Hodey
g YT e ————————— e — .
puny  95bz  0D09B 8L 000V 9 000 0000052 T L
uogound  «  9G'VZ 00'098'81 oo'obL'9 000 00°000's2 seo|aleg Hoddng 000z
1-00€-0£52-06 95VZ 00°098'8} 00°0F}'9 000 00°000'S2 ‘AY3S HOUNd /AL3HVS ¥ AJdd Jdid 1-00€-0€62-06
sadaes yoddng
“. - T T g AR CeNROT
pundy  GZOF  OL79660F O£ 80%L 000 0055081 Bin.j A ar: pue Kyunaimane® os
uopound . GZ'0F 0£'296'60L 0€'280'%L 000 00°550'v8l i segjaleg poddng 0002
1-004-/9€2-08 000 00°655'LLI 000 000 00'55S'LLL AY3S ‘AY3dNS 'LOIUSNI ‘QF/LHO0L 1-001-29€2-08
1-00€¥9€2-08 9521}  (1£8E9'S) LE'9Ee'2S 000 00°005'9F ‘dX3'SNI ALTYNSYI/ALYIdO¥d |-00€e-¥9€£2-08

L-00E-€9€208 Y1250 (50'L09'2) 00°000'S "dX3' SNI INTWAO TAWINM/LHOL }-00€-€9€2-08

18bpng asjue|eg 186png
13qWNN JUN093Y a1ES 10 18bpng i uauny

. o

LvE QSO adiey e
WV9Z:L0:LL £202/t1/90 :Palulg
£202/1€/S 40 se podey

wm g sbed g - oday ainyipuadx3 /¥¢ ASH wn.i: e

(N




1d¥'20dY ms\edoueul\gAspsiedieHET\S\:C
-ou| ‘swalsAg ejeq pazieroads

1-0LE-01€C-0} 0008 09506  €2/vi/e ezivLi9 vt SIILNA HAANSYIHL QAnN NIEYH 1-0LE-0LEC-01 €202/v1/90
S0°'e96 leyoL
L-82€-0¥52-0¢ S0'€96 65506  €2/¥H9 £CivLI9 ¥i 10 1704 1QAY ? IOVEAVO-IILN/NBO SH17 - TVSOdSIa NOSHOVI 1-82¢€-0vSe-0¢ 056%9
00°0LS IejoL
1-00€-0¥52-02 00°0LS 85506  €Z/VL/9 £2/v1LI9 14 SOLSIASY HINOW XIS  "HON3 TVLNIWNOYHIANT TvIAI 1-00€-0¥5¢-02 LEETY
(154 fejol .
1-06£-01€2-01 LL'El 16606  €2/vL/9 €e/ivL9 14 3OILON 139ang 1-06€-01€2-01 £202/01/50
1-06€-01€2-01 00'8C 15506  €2/¥L/9 €eivii9 i) SAIE 1ANd  TIND NOSHIANIH-MOOINVH L-0Ge-01€2-01 £202/1€/S0
St'9¢S lejoL
L-LL#-0962-01  S¥'92S 96506  €2/¥L/9 £TIvL9 14 VIN3L34vD FYIvE OaWIg/SNIVEOHLHYT b-bL#-09G2-01 €20Z/1€/S0
£6°€21'0€ {eyoL
1-00€-29€2-08 Lv'68 GGG06  €Z/VL/9 £2IvLI9 ¥1 3NIdWOD .SHINJOM - HOAHSd - Od 1-00€-29¢2-08 €202/S1/90
1-022-0v12-0L 96°ZH6'E GG506  €2/vL/9 €e/vLi9 142 "SNI/ANIE-"HOASd - 00 1-022-0v12-0l €202/51/90
L-0bL-LL2-0VIC-0L  LLLET GGG06  €2/vL/9 €T/vLI9 vi 1143N39 SIHL-SHI/HOASd - 0d 1-112-0}L-0v 120} €202/51/90
1-0b1-212-0vV2-0L  2l'ovi GGG06  €¢/vL/9 €CivL9 4] 1143N39 O3AN-SHI/HOASd - 04 1-Z12-0LL-0v42-01 €20¢/S1/90
L-0L1-112-0¥12-0L ¥6'88L GGS06  €2/VL/9 €2/vL9 14 1143N38 SIHI-SH1/HOASd - 00 b-L12-0LL-0viC-0} £202/51/90
b-¥12-0¥12-0S Lveee 66506  €Z/vL/9 €e/ivL9 vl ATNO FHVOIGIWHIAS - Od 1-¥12-0v42-05 €202/51/90
1-0LL-0v12-01L 2€7e6L'ST SGS06  €2/VIL/9 €T/vLI9 Vi AUV IVS-ADOTIOHOAS - 04 lee#ds’a sviva L-0L1-0vig-0l £202/51/90
S6'89Y'2 leyoL
L-LL¥-0¥52-02 G661 ¥8506  €2/vL/9 €T/vLI9 ¥ SLyvd ¥39andos L-LL-0¥S2-0C €20¢/EHS0
1-LL-0v¥52-02  00'61F'2 ¥9606  €2/vl/9 €219 14 YINVYITO L13dHYO ONI LIINN3E »e0 b-LLP-0vS2-02 £202/02/50
00°0v IejoL
1-00€-0952-0  00°0% £6506  €2/vL/9 €2/vL9 14 ONIAVYS VId3134vD ATHINOW 153d ? JLINYTL S3dd0OD 1-00€-095¢2-01 1€0€L1L
18¥8L'S leyoL
1-1Z€-0¥S2-02 I8YSL'S 265606  €2/vi/e £eivh9 vi OINLOTIFTLN/WNEO  ADYINIMIN NOILYTIILSNOD 1-42€-0¥52-02 £202/52/50
89°/S leyoL
1-009-0SG2-0v 89°/S 16506  €2/vL/9 £2/vii9 145 8# 1831 sng "ONI SHOLOW NOSHVD 1-009-055¢-0% £€202/60/90
0e'ZsL'L leyoL
I-£2€-0952-01 00°0LY 09506  £2/¥L/9 ECivLIg Vi HIVdIN ¥IZ3IFHH NEYTYM 1-€2€-095¢2-01 veell

L-€2€-0962-0} 0E'CBI 05506 e2IvL9 €CIvLI9 1 H3Z3394 3HO0d OML VI¥3L3dVD NOILYHIDIHITY S.ATONAY L-€2€-0952-01 K44 Y2
# ajeg uo ajeq # # ~ =, —

#3UNoo9y 91€}S junowy yo8ygy asuadxy ¥oayld ‘O'd  udleg uondiiosaq LN 10PUaA NSV #wo_g:_.

. £20Z/¥1/9 0} £202/¥L/9 :8leQ uo asuadx]
¥€ aso ediey e
WV6¥:617:0L £202Z/7L/90 :pajuld

S G laquinN )28y9 Aq ajqeled sjur.. 29y pled




1d¥°20dY ms\eoueui\gaspsiedieHe \S\:d
"ou| ‘swelsAs ele(g pazijeads

L-LLy-80VL-0L  8L°GLS €1506  €2/¥L/9 €CvLI9 ¥} 1330 DNILSOH SIS T00HOS ¥3MOd L-Lip-80v1-01 9pLSYE

L-LL¥-80VL-0L 007068’} £1606  €T/VLI9 ecivii9 142 ONILSOH SIS TOOHIS ¥3aMOd 1-LL7-80V1-01 9pLSYE

1-Li7-80VE-0L  0072S0'C €2506 €LV €Z/PLI9 ¥I  IONYNILNIVIN SIS TOOHDS ¥3MOd  O11dNOAD TOOHOS ¥3MOd 1-LL-80PL-0L 9PISYE
18°0E6°L |ejoL

L-LL-0vS2-02  Z8°08S'L 2/506  €2/VL/9 €2V 147 SHIV4IY YHIWYD  SIDIAYIAS ALIMNOIS HVIA ¥3d L= -0¥SC-0C 12l2y0e
6€°¢C ejoL

L-6-LL#-L0LL-0)  6€'CC 12606  €2/vL/9 €TivLI9 4] OISNIN TYHOHD 9 ONVE HYl . "ONI 'NOS B ¥3dd3ad 1-6-4L¥-101L-0L 005061 59¢
00°eY [eyoL

L-12€-0v52-0c 00ty 0/606  E€CT/VL9 £2ivLi9 42 ONILYIH-LLN SVO HOOJIN L-12¢e-0v52-02 €20¢/L1/S0
00801 Iejol

G1-001-0L4-GGZ1-0) 0080V 69506  €2/¥L/9 €eIvLI9 142 €2-2Z 1aav 91 - GaMSNIV *ONI 'NOSYV3d SON G1-0L¥-001-95¢L-01 £20¢/90/90
00°688 lejo}

1-8L€-0L€2-0} 00°688 89506  €T/VL/9 €Z/vLI9 142 IWwOITONA3 40 a8 YNNL ‘NNVYYE ‘AOVHL 'HITIW 1-8L€-01€2-01 856€01
1€°026'L |eloL

b-LL-0¥S2-0C  6L°€LL 29506  €C/PLI9 €eivLi9 i $317ddNS 9419 301440 TYHLIN3O 1-LL¥-0¥52-0C €9/S.

L-LL-0PS2-0C 2579611 19506  €Z/vL/9 £e/vLi9 ¥l 301440 TVHINIO - S31ddNS 9a1d SAYYNIW =1L -0vS2-02 60PS.L
00°0S fejol

1-00€-0Elc-01 00°0S 99506  €2/¥L9 €TivL9 14 IVOIASH ONIM vOO393d  SOINITO TvOIQ3N TVINOW3NW 1-00¢-0¢€12-01 €202/€2/S0
(5747 leyoL

L-LL-0¥S2-02 v vL 59506  €2/vL/e €e/vLI9 Vi 3Avd ¥IMONW NMY1 OLNY S.NOLTIN L-LL-0vS2-02 9elly
LoeLlL'y eyoL

1-0GG-LL¥-10LL-03  00'00S') 9606  EC/VL/9 €CivLi9 14 ONINIVHL WNTNIIFHND HLTYAH 1-9-LL¥-LOLL-0L  LOOEL86LE8CL

1-085-LL7-L0LL-0L  L02L2'E 9506  €2/vL/9 €2/vL9 145 ANINOEND HLV3H TUH-MVEOIW 1-9-LLp-L0LL-0} 1005212821
GE'Y6E 1oL

1-82€-0v52-0¢ SE'V6E £€9506  EC/PL/9 £2/vL/9 14 IOVMIS 2 HILYM-TILN/NEBO SHHOMYILYM IdHVYH V1 1-82€-0v52-0¢ £202/1€/S0
LS'€EE8 fejol

L-0¥E-0¥S2-01 LS'EE8 29506  £2/v1/9 €eIvLIe 142 ANOHAIFLLN ‘00 INOHJI 3L AdHVH V1 1-0v€-0¥S2-01 £202/1€/S0
riiv'e lejoL

L-LL-09G2-01L 2V LLY'E 19506  €2/vL/9 ordi 475 Vi Yi¥3134v0 H¥ID0HO THOA b-LL-0952-01 £20c/1€/50
00°08Y lelol

# ajeq uo 3ieq # #

#1UNooay 91e1S  JUNoWyY yoayy asuadx3y N2a3yy  "O'd  udled uonduassqg aweN 1opuap ‘NS w.mo_o>:_

£20Z/¥1/9 0} £20T/17L/9 :81eQ UD ssuadxy
L¥€ aso ediey e
WV6P:67:0L €202/¥1/90 :peiuld

¢ o ¢ dbed laquinN }23y) Aq ajqefhed sjur. 1oV pled




1dY°20dY ms\eoueud\gAsps\adieHe \S\:Q
*ouj 'swieishg eyeq pazieroads

98 €LY 265 |ejol poday
1£69 1eloL
b-LL-0bST-0Z  LE°69 08506  €2/L/Q  €ZLI9 vl Av¥ds ong *ONI 'S4 TYHLINTO 1S3M }-LL-0VS2-0T /1G910ES)
96°1.08'9 [eroL
|-02E-0ZLp-0L Lv0ZC'E 61506  €TWLI9  E€TWLI9 71 NOILINL TdY 1-0Z€-0Z17-0} £202/91/50
|-0Z6-0ZLy-0b 6 L8S'E 62606 €L €Z/MLI9 vl NOJLINL AV ‘@3'03dS TN LNID 1SaM 1-02€-02L¥-0} £202/60/90
00°'SYE'E 1ejol
1-006-0vS2-0Z O0'GPE'E 8506  €e/wl/o  €2/vL/9 vl SUIVATY LINN OVAH WAD  SNOLLNTOS LIMAYNHILAY INL 1-00€-0¥52-02 08114
00'820'} Jesol
1-006-0§12-0b 00'8.0'L  1/G06  €2/vLI9  €THLI9 ¥l $SL/SONINIIHOS NOISIA 2 ONIMV3H  NVO - 92# 301440 TYNOIOIN 1-00€-0€42-01 90-0E50
00°0S€ lejoL
1-00€-0€12-0L  00°0L 91506  EIWLI9  €ZWLI9 1 SINRYJMIONIA TIISSNY }-00€-0€12-0} £202/90/90
1-008-0E12-01  00°0L 9/506  €2WLO  EYLS 71 SLNIMJHIONIH ¥ILHOd V 1-00€-0€12-01 £202/LE£/S0
}-00€-0812-0b  00°0L 9/506 €T €ZWLI9 vl SINIMdYIONIS ¥3L1H0d d L-00€-0€12-04 £202/LE/50
1-00€-0E+Z-0}  00°0L 91506 ETWLI9  STVLI 1 SINRdHIDNIA 1137438 1-00€-0€42-0} £202/LE/50
}-00€-0£12-0L 00°0L 9/506  €2WL9  €ZPLI9 1 SINIMJYIONI SHONIH 9z#2NAa3 40 301440 'O 1-00€-0€ 1 Z-04 £202/91/50

Ly'5l9'81 lejol

—_———

L-LLt-80FL-0)  0S'8Lb'E 61506  €2/vL/9 €2/vLi9 143 JOIOANI LOVHLINOD ATHLNOW 1-LL-80vL-01 15649

L-EL-80VL-0L  11'229'8 G/G06  €2/¥L/9 €eivLi9 vi 103rodd 3aviodn XHOMLIN L-E1#-80¥1-01 0r/89

L-EL-80VL-01 98'V/S'9 G506  €Z/VL/9 €Tivii9 145 193rodd 3avyodn YHOMLIN NOILNTOS ¥HOMLIAN ALIVYNO L-EL¥7-80VL-0} 1¥.89
eLLLL)L IejoL

L-LL-09G2-0L  €LLLLL 2606  €2/¥LI9 £T/VLI9 4 V{ISETEELA) AHIYA SWHYH FIFIvid L-11-0952-01 £202/42/S0
8L ISL'Y lejoL

# ajeq uo aje # #

#JUN0J0Y 3JEIS junoy yooyoy asuadx3 328y "O'd yoieg uonduasaq JWEN IOpPUBA ‘N'S'V # 8o10AU}

£202Z/¥1/9 0} £20Z/¥1/9 :9¥eQ uo asuadx3
’ [¥E aso ediey e
WV6¥:6:0L £Z0Z/7L/90 ‘PeIuLd

gJo¢ 8beg laquinN 23y9 Aq ajqeled sjur. 19V pled




ISSUE 112

June 2023

Update
Memo

Please distribute to board
members and appropriate staff.

Contents
Instructions.........ccocvvecanercnncee. p-1
PRESS Terminology ......cccceeuue p.2
PRESS Issue 112 Topic

Bundles p-2
Progress Report .......cccecceerennen p-3

Revisions to Policies, Administrative
Procedures, and Exhibits (numerical
table) p-3

Next lssue: Legislative Update

Online Instructions

Please follow these four easy
steps to log in to PRESS:

1. Go to www.iasb.com and click on the
button on the top navigation.

2. Enter your email address and password.

* |f you do not know your password,
do not create a new account; reset
your password using your district
email address. Use the “forgot
your password?” link. Make sure
to check your spam folder for an
email from info@iasb.com, if you do
not see it in your email inbox.

« If you are still having difficulty
logging in, please contact your
District’s Superintendent or Admin-
istrative Assistant to make sure you
are listed as an authorized user on
the District Roster.

* [f you continue to have difficulty
signing on to www.iasb.com, please
contact Michael Ifkovits at
mifkovits @ 1asb.com.

. Click the button on the
top navigator bar. This will bring you to
your account page

4. Under "My Account Links," click
on "PRESS Login."

Lo

ILLINOIS ASSOCIATION

OF SCHOOL BOARDS

RESS

Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

This publication is designed to provide information only and is not a substitute for legal advice rom
the Board Attorney. i vou have any questions, please contact Issue 112 Lead Maryam Brotine, Assisiant
General Counsel and Assistant PRESS Editor, 630/629-3776, ext. 1219, Kimberly Small, 1ASB General
Counsel and PRESS Editor, 630/629-3776, exl. 1226; Debra Jacobson, Assislant General Counsel and
Assistant PRESS Editor, 630/629-3776. ext. 1211

Please share this PRESS Update Memo with all board

. For answers to com-
members and appropriate staff.

mon questions about

Two other important components of PRESS may be using PRESS, see

viewed and downloaded from PRESS Online: Com- O&A: Getting the
mittee Worksheets and the updated Policy Reference Mos of Your
Manual (PRM) pages. PRESS Subscription,

now available on

The Committee Worksheets, found by selecting a PRESS
[ASB’s website.

Issue at the top of the PRESS Online Table of Contents,
show suggested changes to PRESS material by striking
out deleted words and underscoring new words a.k.a "tracked changes”.

Updated PRM pages can be found in the IASB POLICY REFERECE MANUAL
Table of Contents. For visual instruction about how to download PRM pages and
use them to update your policy manual, please go to www.iasb.com/policy/to
view the PRESS video tutorial located under the header entitled: PRESS - Policy
Reference Education Subscription Service.

PRESS Bundles

Each bundle summarizes the global reasons for changes to all materials that are listed.

Specific details about how each piece of material changed, e.g,, legislation, ad-
ministrative rules, PRESS Advisory Board feedback, quality assurance, five-year
review items, etc., are explained in numerical order in the Revisions to Policies,
Administrative Procedures, and Exhibits table beginning on p. 3.

Please spend time reviewing the PRESS Online Committee Worksheets for these
materials, which will provide further, more on-the-spot detailed explanations in the
footnotes, along with added comment boxes by the PRESS Editors when necessary.

Have feedback on PRESS materials?
Click on the PRESS Feedback Button, located on the header
bar of PRESS Online. For answers to more immediate questions
about PRESS content, please contact a PRESS editor directly.

A policy service from the Illinais Association of Schaol Boards
Copyright © 2023 lnots Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved



Progress Report - The contents of this table frequently change.

Topics Our Response

Final Title IX Regulations Expected Soon Relevant PRESS materials, including
policy 2:265, Title IX Sexual Harassment
Grievance Procedure, and its accompa-
nying procedures will be updated once
the final regulations are issued.

The U.S. Department of Education is expected to release final Title IX regulations
shortly. These regulations would replace 2020 Title IX regulations and would require
extensive updates to existing policies and procedures governing discrimination based
on sex, including sexual harassment.

School Wellness Policy Updates Coming This Fall Policy 6:50, School Wellness, will be

. dated in the fall 2023 PRESS 1 .
In response to a request from the ISBE Nutrition Dept., 6:50, Schoo! Wellness, will be URcalecTiiating id SHSUS

updated to include a new subhead for other school-based activities that promote stu-
dent wellness. Including this subhead will allow districts to clearly show that this topic
is addressed in policy as required by 7 C.F.R. §210.3 and as detailed in [SBE's Local
Wellness Policy Content Checklist at www.isbe net/Documents/Local-Wellness-Policy-
Content-Checklist,pdi

Revisions to Policies, Administrative Procedures, and Exhibits

Certain PRM materials in a PRESS [ssue may be labeled in the PRESS Bundles, Revision Table and Committee Worksheets
with one or more of the following categories:

NEW. This material is brand new to the PRM.

RENUMBERED. This material has been assigned a new number within the PRM, usually due to the addition of NEW
material.

RENAMED. The title of the material has been amended.

REWRITTEN. The material has undergone significant revisions. To preserve the readability of the Committee Worksheets,
suggested changes are not shown as tracked changes.

REFORMATTED. Non-substantive changes in formatting, e.g., list renumbering, have been applied for consistency
throughout the PRM. To preserve the readability of the Committee Worksheets, such formatting changes are not reflected
as tracked changes.

Number and Title Revision Descriptions
2:80, Board Member Qath The policy is unchanged. The footnotes are updated in response to a five-year review. D
and Conduct An option is added to footnote 3 if a board wants to designate a local official to admin-

ister the oath of office.

2:80-E, Board Member Code The exhibit is unchanged.
of Conduct
2:170, Procurement of The Legal References and footnote 1 are updated in response to a five-year review.

Architectural, Engineering,
and Land Surveying Services

4:45, Insufficient Fund Checks The policy, Legal References, and footnotes are upclated in response to a five-year review. D
and Debt Recovery




Revisions to Policies, Administrative Procedures, and Exhibits — continued

6:240-AP, Field Trip Guidelines

The procedure and footnote 1 are updated in response to a five-year review.

7:15-E, Notification to Parents
of Family Privacy Rights

The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review.

7:150-AP, Agency and Police
Interviews

The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review.

7:275, Orders to Forgo Life-
Sustaining Treatment

The policy and its footnotes are updated in response to a five-year review.

7:280-E3, Prevention of
Staphylococcal Infections for
Schools e

REWRITTEN. The exhibit is updated and rewritten in response to a five-year review.

o O O O o

7:300-E2, Certificate
of Physical Fitness for
Participation in Athletics

The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review.

O

7:305, Student Athlete
Concussions and Head Injuries

The policy, Legal References, and footnotes are updated in response to a five-year review.

O

7:305-AP, Program for
Managing Student Athlete
Concussions and Head Injuries

The procedure is updated in response to a five-year review and P.A. 102-1006, requiring
that emergency medical dispatchers be included in the group of first responders who an-
nually review the school-specific emergency action plans for interscholastic activities.

7:330, Student Use of
Buildings — Equal Access

The policy, Cross References, and footnote 1 are updated in response to a five-year re-
view.

7:330-E, Application for Student
Groups that Are Not School

Sponsored to Request Free Use
of School Premises for Meetings

The exhibit is updated in response to a five-year review.

8:25, Advertising and
Distributing Materials in
Schools Provided by Non-
School Related Entities

The policy is unchanged. Footnotes 1 and 5 are updated in response to a five-year re-
view.

8:95, Parental Involvement

The policy is unchanged. Footnote 1 is updated in response to a five-year review.

PRESS Issue 112 Trivia

61 PRM pages ® 14,653 words ® 30 PRM materials




BetoberMNovember20--3Jun

|

”\J
lJ
('

2:80

School Board

Board Member Oath and Conduct

Each School Board member, before taking his or her seat on the Board, shall take the following oath of
office: 1

I, (name), do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will faithfully discharge the duties of the office of

member of the Board of Education? of (name of School District), in accordance with the

Constitution of the United States, the Constitution of the State of [llinois, and the laws of the State

of Illinois, to the best of my ability.

I further swear (or affirm) that:

[ shall respect taxpayer interests by serving as a faithful protector of the School District’s assets;

I shall encourage and respect the free expression of opigion by my fellow Board members and
others who seek a hearing before the Board, whilé respecting the privacy of students and
employees;

I shall recognize that a Board member has no legal authonty as an individual and that decisions
can be made only by a majority vote at a pubfic Board meetings

I shall abide by majority decisions of the Beard. whidé@retaining the right to seek changes in such
decisions through cthical and constructive ghansels;

As part of the Board of Education, [ shall accept the responsibility for my role in the equitable
and quality education of every student.in the Scheol District;

I shall foster with the Board extensi¥e partigipation of the community, formulate goals, define
outcomes, and set the course for (ira@meof School District);

I shall assist in Lstabllbhug a stiucture @nd an environment designed to ensure all students have
the opportunity to ai@in theif maximum potential through a sound organizational framework;

I shall strive to ensure @continddusassessment of student achievement and all conditions affecting
the education of our elialdren. in compliance with State law;

I shall serve ag/éd@eation’s key advocate on behalf of studemis and our community's school (or
schools )0 advanccthe vistom for (name of School Districty, and

I shall strive to work together with the District Superintendent 1o tead the School District toward
fulfilling the vision the Board has created, fostering excellence for every student in the areas
of academic skills, kowledge, citizenship, and personal development.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy: they should be removed betore the policy is adopted

1 Although the policy is not required by State or federal law, each board member, before taking his or her seat on the
board, must take an oath in substantlally the form given in the statute as reprinted in this sample policy. 105 ILCS 5/10-16.5-
B . Districts often ask whether this applies only to newly elected board members or to all
members elected and/or re- elected To assure compliance, those members that are newly elected or appointed and returning
by re-appointment and/or re-election should take the oath as the board determines it should be administered, i.e., examine the
board’s policy or its current practice for administering the oath of office.

This policy contains the verbatim oath because many of its provisions have policy implications. However, if a board
prefers to remove the oath from the policy, it should replace the first sentence with this alternative:

Each Board member, before taking his or her seat on the Board, shall take the oath of office as
prescribed in Section 10-16.5 of the School Code.

2 Replace “Board of Education” with “Board of School Directors™ throughout, when applicable.

2:80 Page [ of 2
< Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Mlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.



The Board President will administer the oath in an open Board meeting; in the absence of the President,
the Vice President will administer the oath. If neither is available, the Board member with the longest

service on the Board will administer the oath. 3

The Board adopts the Illinois Association of School Boards’ Code of Conduct for Members of School
Boards.* A copy of the Code shall be displayed in the regular Board meeting room.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-16.5.

CROSS REF.: 1:30 (School District Philosophy), 2:20 (Powers and Duties of the School Board,;
Indemnification), 2:50 (Board Member Term of Office), 2:100 (Board Member
Conflict of Interest), 2:105 (Ethics and Gift Ban), 2:210 (Organizational School
Board Meeting)

The footnotes are not infendéd@Bbe part of the adopred policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted

3 Optlonal State law allows the board to determine how the oath is administered. 105 ILCS 5/10-16.5 —amended-by
- i 118, Use the following alternative if a board does not want anyone to administer the oath:

Each Board member who is taking office shall read the oath during an open meeting and swear
or affirm to follow it as indicated in the oath.

If the Board's practice is to have a local official administer the vath. revise the paragraph as follows:

The Board President may designate a local official, such as a judee, 1o administer the oath at an
open Board meeting, Otherwise. Fthe Board President will administer the oath during an open
Board meeting; in the absence of the President, the Vice President will administer the oath.

4 Although national and state associations have developed codes of conduct, each board may find it helpful, as part of its
self-evaluation process, to consider what behavior members expect from each other. The resulting ethics statement may serve
as an important step in new member orientation. Additionally. [ASB provides S¢ hool Board Member Opportwnities and
Expectations, a summary of the treatment that all board members arg entitled to expeet as members ol the school board. For

IASB resources, see www iasb.comyconlerence- lnmmu and-events/iraining/training-resources) .

2:80 Page 2 of 2
© Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

inois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



OctoberNovember2048]June 2023 2:80-E

School Board

Exhibit - Board Member Code of Conduct

As a member of my local School Board, [ will do my utmost to represent the public interest in education
by adhering to the following standards and principles:

1.

2.

3.

10.

11.

12.

2:80-E

I will represent all School District constituents honestly and equally and refuse to surrender my
responsibilities to special interest or partisan political groups.

I will avoid any conflict of interest or the appearance of impropriety which could result from
my position, and will not use my Board membership for personal gain or publicity.

[ will recognize that a Board member has no legal authority as an individual and that decisions
can be made only by a majority vote at a Board meeting.

[ will take no private action that might compromise the.
the confidentiality of privileged information.

I will abide by majority decisions of the Boar
such decisions through ethical and constructi

d or administration and will respect

taining the right to seek changes in

will participate in Board discussions j honest anl respectful manner, honoring
differences of opinion or perspective.
I will prepare for, attend and actively partic in School Board meetings.

; 0 act on the specific issues before the Board,
ble tate, national, and global education issues.
I will respectfully listen to those g Helite with the Board, seeking to understand their

elationship with the Superintendent, respecting the

¢ Board, implement Board policy, and administer the

District.

[ will modg I8 garning and work to ensure good governance by taking advantage of

Board m reie ppportunities, such as those sponsored by my State and national
. ns, and encourage my fellow Board members to do the same.

Board focused on its primary work of clarifying the District purpose,

Page L of 1
©2622-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Minois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



May/ure-2048 une 2023 2:170
School Board

Procurement of Architectural, Engineering, and Land Surveying Services 1

The School Board selects architects, engineers, and land surveyors to provide professional services to
the District on the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications, and in accordance with State
law.

LEGAL REF.: 40 U.S.C. §1101 et segS4+.
50 ILCS 510/, Local Government Professional Services Selection Act.
105 ILCS 5/10-20.21.
Shively v. Belleville Twp. High Sch. Dist. 201, 329 Il1.App.3d 1156 (5th Dist. 2002),
appeal denied.

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State law controls this policy’s content. The Local Government Professional Services Selection Act describes the
required selection procedure. 50 [LCS 510/. A district may not, prior to selecting a firm for contract negotiation, seek formal
or informal submission of verbal or written estimates of costs or proposals in terms of dollars, hours required, percentage of
construction cost, or any other measure of compensation. Id. at 310/5. [f the district has a satisfactory relationship with a
person or firm, the relationship may continue. 59-H-E$1d. at 510/4 through 6.

Construction_-manager services, unlike general contractor services, are significantly different from construction work
because they involve a professional activity (i.e., assisting the owner with the project’s planning, costing, and management).
As such, a construction-management contract is exempt from mandatory bidding by virtue of the professional services

exemption. Shively v. Belleville Twp. High Sch. Dist. 201, 329 Il App.3d 1156 (5th Dist. 2002).

2:170 Page 1 of |
©2622-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



October/November2048June 2023 4:45

Operational Services
Insufficient Fund Checks and Debt Recovery

Insufficient Fund Checks !

The Superintendent or designee is responsible for collecting up to the maximum fee authorized by State
law for returned checks written to the District that are not honored upon presentation to the respective
bank or other depository institution for any reason. The Superintendent is authorized to contact the
Board Attorney whenever necessary to collect the returned check amount, fee, collection costs and
expenses, and interest.

The footmotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State law controls this policy’s content. 810 ILCS 5/3-806 authorizes a $25.00 collection fee whenever a check is not
honored upon presentation because the individual does not have an account with the bank, the individual does not have
sufficient funds in his or her account, or the individual does not have sufficient credit with the bank.

This fee may be considered punitive considering several banks rarely charge this amount for an insufficient funds check.
To allow more flexibility for the superintendent and his or her designees to charge the full collection fee of $25.00, a portion
thereof, or none of it, the first sentence states “up to the maximum fee.” Boards choosing to allow this flexibility should discuss
equal protection issues with the board attomey. As a general rule, any flexibility should be applied with uniform rules to all
individuals and/or groups to avoid triggering the Constitution’s Equal Protection Clause.

Boards that wish to charge the maximum fee in all circumstances should delete the words up fo in the first sentence: “The
Superintendent or designee is responsible for collecting wp-te the maximum fee authorized by State law for returned checks
written to the District that are not honored upon presentation to the respective bank or other depository institution for any
reason.”

4:45 Page | of 3
©2022-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Hlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Delinquent Debt Recovery 2
The Superintendent is authorized to seek collection of delinquent debt owed the District to the fullest
extent of the law. 3

A Local Debt Recovery Program may be available through the [llinois Office of the Comptroller (I0C)
inthe—furure, To participate in it, an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) between the District and the
[OC must be in existence. The IGA establishes the terms under which the District may refer a delinquent
debt to the IOC for an offset (deduction). The I0C may execute an offset, in the amount of the
delinquent debt owed to the District, from a future payment that the State makes to an individual or
entity responsible for paying the delinquent debt.

The Superintendent or designee shall execute the requirements of the IGA. While executing the
requirements of the IGA, the Superintendent or designee is responsible, without limitation, for each of
the following:

1. Providing a District-wide, uniform, method of notice and due process to the individual or entity
against whom a claim for delinquent debt payment {(glaim) is made. Written notice and an
opportunity to be heard must be given to the indiyidlual or entity responsible for paying a
delinquent debt before the claim is certified to Lb IC. for offset. The notice must state the
claim’s amount, the reason for the amount.due, the elaim’s date or time period, and a
description of the process to challenge the, chaim. If reimbussable meals or snacks provided
under the Hunger-Free Students® Bill of Rights Act are the basis of the District’s delinquent
debt claim of no less than $500. the nofﬁ must be sent to a student’s parent(s)/guardian(s)
only after: (a) the student owes the Dlstrﬁ mote than five meals and/or snacks; (b) the
Superintendent or designee madegi) repeatedieentacts to collect the amounts owed, and (ii)
reasonable efforts to collect the amount dae for at least one year: and (c) the District requested

The foomotes are not intended to be BaY ofithe adopted’policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted

2 This section is optigmalibur beuamserhe policy s title refers to debt recovery. at least the first sentence should be retained.
D letion of this sectigifmay Jm abilitv 1o enter the 111, Office of the Comptroller's (10C) Local Debt Recovery
Program (LDRP) @ collecting deBbE@aved t08chool districts by persons receiving pavments from the State. This section helps
the board's momm%n.uu.lu n by hnmnu the LDRP's important components. [t also serves as an element of due process
by informing rht, nublmc. the J]»m debtors that the district may collect debt through the LDRP
The H& 22410 operates an Offset System for collecting debt owed to the State, political
subdivisions ofthe State. and) selicol districts by persons receiving payments from the State. Seeking debt recovery through
an offset of a future payment the State makes to a debtor is optional. The requurements in this policy for obtaining an offset
are either in statute or the [0C’s mtergovemmental agreement (IGA). 15 ILCS 405/10.05 and 10.05d. The first step to
participate is to 2 —Ceontact a beealDebrReeovery-Proeram{LDRP4 manager with the
10C to request an IGA uuh the iOC s ul“t ic -‘-&j{-}‘ﬂ Progmm managers work one-on-one with districts and matiers are nur-du.c.
on a case-by-case basis. The LDRP's gesematnumber_for local governments is 312-814-3090855:881-23
Mw Contact the board attomey for ad\/lce and assistance. MHWWH

: g Maeanuae 10 o censeitie aes alorssiact A e v bmas s thamuabbie and sl dicreiar ' e dabropc thottha dicemes
Ao e v r e - A Se e RO U PRECESS By HE BT SRS PUBHcERE- e aivifRct & S

The Hunger—Free Students Bill of Rights Act (HFSBRA) (105 ILCS 123/-added-by-P-A-+50-+392) allows districts with
participating schools under the National School Lunch and Child Nutrition Acts (defined in 7 C.F.R. Parts 210, 220, and 245)
to seek an offset under the State Comptroller Act (15 ILCS 405/) when they have made reasonable efforts, for at least one
year, to collect a debt owed for meals and snacks in the amount of no less than $500 from a student’s parent or guardian.

3 There are methods other than the [OC’s LDRP to collect delinquent debts owed to the school district, i.e., small claims
court, private collection agencies, etc. [f the district decides it will not ever seek to enter the [OC’s Local Debt Recovery
Program, keep the first sentence and delete everything after it.

4:45 Page 2 of 3
¢ 225 20 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Hlinois Assouallon ot School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



the student’s parent(s)/guardian(s) to apply for meal benefits pursuant to policy 4:130, Free
and Reduced-Price Food Services, and they either: (i) did not qualify, or (ii) refused to apply.4

2. Anindividual or entity challenging a claim shall be provided an informal proceeding to refute
the claim’s existence, amount, or current collectability; the decision following this proceeding
shall be reviewable.

a. If a waiver of student fees is requested as a challenge to paying the claim, and the
waiver of student fees is denied, an appeal of the denial of a fee waiver request shall
be handled according to 4:140, Waiver of Student Fees. If no waiver of student fees is
requested, reviews regarding payment of the claim shall be handled according to this
policy before certification to the IOC for offset.

b. Ifapplication for meal benefits pursuant to policy 4:130, Free and Reduced-Price Food
Services, is requested as a challenge to paying the claim, and the request is denied, an
appeal of the denial of the request shall be handled according to 4:130, Free and
Reduced-Price Food Services. If no request for meal benefits is received, review of the
claim’s payment shall be handled according to this policy before certification to the
IOC for offset. : :

3. Certifying to the IOC that the debt is past due and legally enforceable, and notifying the TOC
of any change in the status of an offset claim fordelinquent debt.

4. Responding to requests for information from gl IOC to faeilitate the prompt resolution of any
administrative review requests received byithe 10C.

LEGAL REF.: 15 ILCS 405/10.05 and 10.05d. Sgate Comptroller Act.
105 ILCS 123/, HungesEree Studeats’ Bill of Rights Act.
810 ILCS 5/3-806. Um semmereial Code.

The foutnotes are not infeligded to bgiffart of the adopted policy: they should be removed betore the policy is adopted.

4 Optional. For districts hat do net participate in free and reduced-price meal programs under the National School Lunch

and Chlld Nutntlon Acts (defined in 7 C.F.R. Parts 210, 220, and 243), delete this sentence and +05-H-CS-123/, HungerEree

from the Legal References. Inclusion of this sentence does not obligate a district to pursue all

such delmquent debt claims. The district has discretion in this area, provided its recovery efforts are pursued on a non-
discriminatory basis. Note that historically. the IOC has been reluctant to pursue school lunch debts under the LDRP

For participating districts that do not want this sentence, delete it.

For participating districts that wish to retain this sentence, the HFSBRA -2 A
allows school districts to determine a lower amount than five meals to trigger contact w1th a student ] parent/guardIan to
collect owed monies. 105 [LCS 125/10.

For districts that want to set a lower amount than the equivalent of five meals, delete five and insert: [number]. Be sure
that this sentence’s number matches the required notice in 4:130-E, Free and Reduced-Price Food Services; Meal Charge
Notifications. Before the board and the superintendent engage in a conversation about lowering this number, the superintendent
may want to consider a conversation with his or her staff regarding the logistics of contacting a student’s parent(s)/guardian(s)
more than once per week (five lunches (the law states one free lunch or snack per day)) as setting a lower number may be
impracticable for staff members to implement.-

4:45 Page 3 of' 3
[SRLIB2 Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
Mllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



MayAure 2048 une 2023 4:50-E

Operational Services

Exhibit - School District Payment Order

This statutory order authorizes the Treasurer to pay a School Board-approved bill or obligation before
the meeting minutes are officially approved. Several items may be attached to this form.

Order Date:
The Treasurer, , of School
District in County, shall pay to the orde;
the sum of § , for
By order of the é School Board.
Board President ; Date
Secretary Date
4:50-E Page 1 of |

©2022-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Merpe 2H8 June 2023 4:55-E

Operational Services

Exhibit - Cardholder’s Statement Affirming Familiarity with Reguirements for Using
District Credit and/or Procurement Cards

Cardholder’s name

Cardholder’s address

Cardholder's Pposition

Name of individual who authorized issuance of card.

[ affirm that [ am familiar with the Board’s polie§ ®n using credit and procurement cards, that [
understand my responsibilities regardingghc use of sach cards, and that I agree to adhere to all
requirements regarding such cards. %

Cardholder’s signature - Date

I provided a copy af#liis-Statcment along with a copy of-the Board policy 4:55, Use of Credit and
Procurement Ccyds, to the eadholder who signed this statement.

Office personnel Sigmatuse . Date

4:55-E Page 1 of |
(] Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



FebruaryMaper 2049 June 2023 4:60-E

Operational Services

Exhibit - Notice to Contractors

On District letterhead.
Date
Notice to contractor:

You are receiving this notice because you may or will be performing public works for the School
District as that term is defined in the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act (IPWA). 820 ILCS 130/2.

This notice applies to the public works described as:

The IPW A requires contractors and subcontractors to pay laborgss. workers, and mechanics performing
services on public works projects no less than the prevailing rate of wages (hourly cash wages plus
fringe benefits) in the county where the work is perfomﬂd Any prevailing rate of wages as they are
revised by the Ill. Dept. of Labor (IDOL.) shall applyf%o this conteact. You are notified that any rate
changes to the prevailing wage rate are available onPDOL s official website. For information regarding
current prevailing wage rates, please see tha ﬁ}OL swebsite ar: https://labor.illinois.gov/laws-
rules, Lonme..d prey dllmu -wage- rates html CiamAn S D Casmitisis

—- =

All contractors and subcontractors rem'ﬁl}i‘ffg?mj\ces ﬁt the public works must comply with all
requirements of the IPWA, including but net limsted tayall wage. notice, and recordkeeping duties.

The above paragraph was or will ®&included in the project specifications and the contract. 820 ILCS
130/4(e). If the work is awasdled without a public bid, contract, or project specification, the notice was
or will be included in the‘purchase @rdes selated to the work or in a separate document, such as this
notification. 820 ILCS 130/4¢f.

4:60-E Page 1 of |
© _Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
MMlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



~

Mipbe 2000 une 2023 4:80-AP1

Operational Services

Administrative Procedure - Checklist for Internal Controls !

The District’s system of internal controls shall include the following:

1. All financial transactions must be properly authorized and documented. This includes:

d

No check is issued without pre-approved documentation for the expenditure pursuant to
the Local Government Travel Expense Control Act, 50 ILCS 150/10-added-byPA_00
604, e.g., 2:125-E1, Board Member Expense Reimbursement Form; 2:125-E2, Board
Member Estimated Expense Approval Form; 5:60-E1, Employee Expense Reimbursement
Form; and 5:60-E2, Employee Estimated Expense Approval Form.

No bank account is opened or established in the Distsict’s or a District school’s name or
with the District’s Federal Employer ldentlf’cauoahumber without pre-approved
documentation.

No credit or procurement card is assigned to'an indivigdual without pre-approved
documentation. All use of a credit or progurement card mwst be in compliance with Board
policy 4:55, Use of Credit and Procugment Cards, and administrative procedure 4:55-
AP, Controls for the Use of District €redit and Procurement Cards.

Every recetpt to and expenditure from agevolving fund and a petty cash fund are
supported with clear documentation and otherwise comply with Board policies 4:50,
Payment Procedures, and 4:80, Aégounting and Audits.

A record is made of all checks issued andiall paymenis made by credit or procurement
cards that includes deseriptive qu‘mauon sufficient to allow assignment of the
appropriate code,

2. Financial records aid data miist be acemrate and complete. This includes:

O
O
a
O

Data entries are tilmaly made.

Cash handlliilag is properly recorded.

Chegks are ﬁeq'm:tlaﬂynumbend and missing checks are accounted for.
Fiamcial reporting deadlines are followed.

3. Accounts payable must be accurate and punctual. This includes:

a
a
a

Payments dig miade on a timely basis.
A thorough eXplanation is provided for any over/underpayments.
Payroll and benefits are reviewed and continually updated.

4. District assets must be protected from loss or misuse.

i

The District implements a Fraud, Waste, and Abuse Awareness Program. See 4:80-AP2,
Fraud, Waste and Abuse Awareness Program.

The foomotes should be removed before the material is used

1 This administrative procedure is intended to generate discussion conceming internal controls among relevant district
staff members and the district’s auditor. [t must be customized to reflect conditions in each district. [ts effectiveness will
be greatly enhanced if the employee responsible for each control is identified. A board that wants to take a significant oversight
role regarding internal controls may want to list the numbered sentences in its policy 4:80, Accounting and Audits, as required

inclusions in the superintendent’s program for intemal controls. For an additional resource. see the [l State Board of
Education's buernal Control Hundbook (updated July 2017}, available at; www.isbe.net Pages School-Finance-Historical-
Reports.aspx.
4:80-API Page | of 2

< Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

Minois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Valuable technology assets are safeguarded from theft or loss.

A backup and recovery system is developed for electronic systems.

Only authorized individuals have access to various systems.

Passwords are kept secure and frequently changed.

Keys are kept secure and accounted for.

District property is not borrowed or otherwise used for private purposes.

District personal property having a monetary value (excluding, for example, trash, out-
dated equipment, consumed consumables, and spoilage) is discarded only with the
Board’s prior approval.

oooogoao

5. Incompatible duties should be segregated, if possible. This includes:

0 Transaction approval is separated from disbursement approval duties, as well as record-
keeping duties so that no single individual or two individuals control all phases of the
claim payment process.

O Reconciliation of checking accounts and credit cards is performed by an individual who
does not have check-writing authority, and if possible. by someone who does not record
checks and credit card payments in the District’sidbooks.

0O Other controls are used if segregation of dutigs s Wapossible.

6. Accounting records are periodically reconcileg This includes:

O All accounts are balanced monthly.

O All statements from checking accousits and credit cards are reconciled monthly.

O Expenses are verified against receipts. .

O Out-of-balance conditions are investigated.

7. Equipment and supplies must be safeg@marded. This includes:

O Inventories are periodically talken and tspestions are frequently made.
O A reliable record is lkeptidentifying what technology assets have been provided to
specific employegs. :

O  Access to supplies is limited and ¢ontrolled.

8. Staff members with financial or Business responsibilities must be properly trained and
supervised, amdimust pegform their responsibilities with utmost care and competence.

O Responsibilitiesmatchjob descriptions.

O  If required by Stake law, staff members are appropriately bonded.

0 Staff'miembers arg held accountabie for complying with Board policies and
administrdtive pfocesses or procedures that have been established to safeguard the
District’s fimancial condition.

0O  Staff members are appropriately trained and evaluated.

O Staff members are encouraged to notify their supervisors or the Superintendent of risks,
losses, and/or concerns.

9. Any unnecessary weaknesses or financial risks must be promptly corrected. This includes:

0 Internal control concemns raised by the District’s independent auditor in connection with
the annual financial audit or by the Tll. State Board of Education in connection with its
administration of the Grant Accountability and Transparency Act or a monitoring visit
are properly addressed.

O Internal or external auditors are annually engaged to assess risk and/or test existing
internal controls for those areas not included within the scope of the annual financial
audit; concerns are promptly addressed.

4:80-AP1 Page 2 of 2
< Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



EebruaryMuareh-2049]une 2023 4:100

Operational Services

Insurance Management 1

The Superintendent shall recommend and maintain all insurance programs that provide the broadest
and most complete coverage available at the most economical cost, consistent with sound insurance
principles.

The insurance program shall include each of the following: 2

1. Liability coverage to insure against any loss or liability of the School District and the listed
individuals against civil rights damage claims and suits, constitutional rights damage claims
and suits, and death and bodily injury and property damage claims and suits, including defense
costs, when damages are sought for negligent or wrongfudacts allegedly committed in the scope
of employment or under the Board's direction or related to any mentoring services provided to
the District’s eertfied-licensed staff members; Sc.hool Board members; employees; volunteer
personnel authorized by 105 ILCS 5/10-22.34, 5/ 10-22.34a, and 5/10-22.34b; mentors of
eertified-licensed staff members authorizedddir 105 [LCS S2JA-5 et seq. (new teacher), 105
ILCS 5/2-3.53a (new principal). and 2-3__.‘35 (new_superintendeénts): and student teachers. 3

2. Catastrophic accident insurance at the mandated/Benefit level for student athletes in grades 9
through 12 who sustain an accidental injury Wil participating in school-sponsored or school-
supervised interscholastic athletiggyents sanctianed by the I1l. High School Association that
results in medical expenses in excess 0F$30.000. #

The footnotes are not intended to b pm'ofthe adopted bolicy‘ they should be removed betfore the policy 1s adopted.

I State law Lomrqhﬁrs‘m’ s t.‘dem The Health [nsurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) guarantees
the continuity of health mhumm.e'hnemeﬁ: individuals changing employment. It also contains provisions promoting the:
(1) standardizatiomand efficiency forthe clectronic submission, processing, and payment of health care claims, and (2) security
and privacy requiremenis for health formation. See 45 C.F.R. §§160 and 164. School officials are urged to consult with
their insurance providess and legal counsel to devise a compliance plan.

2 Other types of dlalnw.ssetl insurance should also be listed here. such as. insurance programs for employees and
their dependents (authorized bw 105 ILCS 5:10-22.3a). Note that: (1) any employee or retired employee insurance program is
a mandatory subject of bargaining, and (2) State law provides persons entering into a civil union with the obligations,
responsibilities, protections, and benefits afforded or recognized by Iil. law to spouses (750 ILCS 75/).

General hability and propertv insurance policies tvpically do not cover cvber risks. For more information. see
https://rems.ed gov/docs/ Cyhersecurity K-12 Fact Sheer 508C.PDF, at p. 4.

3 A board’s duty to indemnify and protect specific individuals is found in 105 ILCS 5/10-20.20. A board’s duty to insure
against loss or liability is found in 105 ILCS 5/10-22.3. The lists of individuals to be protected are identical in both statutes
except that mentors was added in 2009 to only the indemnification statute. As the best method for providing indemnification
is through insurance, this policy includes mentors in its list of individuals covered by the district’s liability insurance.

4105 ILCS 522-15 requires each school district having grades 9 through 12 to maintain catastrophic insurance coverage
for student athletes participating in interscholastic athletic events sanctioned by the I11. High School Association (IHSA). The
minimum level of coverage must provide aggregate benefit levels of $3 million or 5 years, whichever comes first, for injuries
with total medical expenses exceeding $50,000. The law authorizes [HSA to promulgate a plan of coverage under a group
policy that provides the necessary coverage. [f a district opts out of [HSA’s group policy, it must offer alternative coverage
and submit to THSA a certificate from the provider stating that the insurance complies with the plan of coverage approved by
[HSA.

4:100 Page | of 2
© Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use,



3. Comprehensive property insurance covering a broad range of causes of loss involving building
and personal property. The coverage amount shall normally be for the replacement cost or the
insurable value.

4. Workers’ Compensation to protect individual employees against financial loss in case of a
work-related injury, certain types of disease, or death incurred in an employee-related situation.

Student Insurance 3

The Board shall annually designate a company to offer student accident insurance coverage. The Board
does not endorse the plan nor recommend that parents/guardians secure the coverage, and any contract
is between the parentfs)/guardian{s} and the company.

LEGAL REF.: Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, Pub. L. 99-272, §10001, +6&
Star222 26 U.S.C. $4980B(f)-ethe LR-SCode, 42 U.S.C. §300bb-1 et seq.
105 ILCS 5/2-3.53a. 5,.2-3.33b. 5/10-20.20, 5/10-22.3, 5/10-22.3a, 5/10-22.3b, 5/10-
22 3f, 5/10-22.34, 5/10-22.34a, 5/10-22.34b, 5. 21 A-5 et seq., and 5/22-15.
215 ILCS 5/, 11l. Insurance Code.
750 ILCS 75/, I1L. Religious Freedom Peotegtion and Civil Union Act.
820 ILCS 305/. Workers’ Compensatfon Act.

CROSS REF.: 7:300 (Extracurricular Athlegss)

The footnotes are not tntended to be part of the adopred policy: they should be removed before the policy ts adopted.

Delete item #2 if the district: (1) does not maintain grades 9-12, or (2) qualifies for an exemption from the mandatory
coverage (contact [HSA or the board attorney for information about claiming an exemption). A district maintaining grades K-
8 may, but is not required to, provide accident and/or health insurance on a group or individual basis for students injured while
participating in any school-sponsored athletic activity. If so, the following may be added to item #2 (for unit districts) or may
replace item #2 (for elementary districts): “Accident and/or health insurance on a group or individual basis for students in
grades kindergarten through 8 participating in any school-sponsored athletic activity.” [f item #2 is deleted and the option is
not used, the board should omit the citation to catastrophic accident insurance (105 ILCS 5/22-15) in the legal references.

5 Optional. Until May 2014, this paragraph was included in sample policy 4:170, Safety.

4:100 Page 2 of 2
Jell Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

Mlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

)

€



EebstaryMareh 2049 June 2023 4:160-AP

Operational Services

Administrative Procedure - Environmental Quality of Buildings and Grounds

Hazardous and/or Infectious Materials

The Buildings and Grounds Supervisor is responsible for the District’s compliance with State and
federal law concerning toxic, hazardous, and/or infectious materials.! This includes requirements in the
federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OHSAOSHA) Hazard Communication
Standards (29 C.F.R. §1910.1200), adopted by the State Toxic Substances Disclosure to Employees
Act (820 ILCS 255/, otherwise inoperative). See information on OHSA—-OSHA’s website at
wen-osha-govi-dsethareom-deschtmbwww. osha. gov hazcom.

Pesticide Application on School Grounds 2

The Buildings and Grounds Supervisor is responsible for compliance with the Lawn Care Products
Application and Notice Act (415 ILCS 65/3) and shall.

1. Provide an annual schedule of pesticide application to the supesvisor of each District building.

2. In coordination with the supervisor of gach Bistrict building (including each Building
Principal), notify employees and students and their parents/guardians in each building. The
notification must:

a. Be provided at least four business days before a pesticide application on school
grounds. :

b. Be written of by teléphone. If written, the notice may be included in newsletters,
calendarsor other gorrespondence currently being published.

[dentify the miedded date of the application.

d. Pgovide the name and telephone comtact number for the Buildings and Grounds
(Supervisor ofether School personnel responsible for the pesticide program.

Prior notice is not'ggquired if an imminent threat to health or property exists. If such a situation arises,
the Building and Grounds Supervisor must sign a statement describing the circumstances that gave rise
to the health threat and émstre that written or telephonic notice is provided as soon as practicable.

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

1 Alternatively, these duties may be given to another staff member, in which case that staff member’s title should replace
“Buildings and Grounds Supervisor” throughout this procedure.

2 Notice to parents/guardians of students is required before pesticides are applied on school grounds (see the Lawn Care
Products Application and Notice Act, 415 [LCS 65/3(f)). Notice to employees, while not required, is included in this procedure
because notice to employees is mandated by the Structural Pest Control Act, 225 ILCS 235/10.3. Item #! is not legally
required. {tems #2a-d are required > ! . The district may alternatively maintain a registry of
parents/guardians requestmg written notification 0fpest1c1de application and notify only those people in the registry. Be sure
the notice provision is consistent with board policy.

4:160-AP Page | of 4
©2622-2022 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Pesticide Application in School Buildings and Structures 3

The Buildings and Grounds Supervisor is responsible for compliance with the requirements in the
Structural Pest Control Act (225 ILCS 235/) and shall:

1. Provide an annual schedule of pesticide application to the supervisor of each District building.

2. In coordination with the supervisor of each District building (including each Building
Principal):

a. Maintain a registry of all employees and parents/guardians of students.

b. Notify those employees and parents/guardians of students before pesticides are applied
in or on each building. The notification must:

i. Be provided at least two business days before a pesticide application in or on
school buildings.

ii. Be written. The notice may be includedidn newsletters, bulletins, calendars, or
other correspondence currently being published.

iii. Identify the intended date of the application.

iv. Provide the name and telephefte contact number for the Buildings and Grounds
Supervisor or other schoel personnel responsible for the pesticide program.

Prior notice is not required if an imminent threat teshealth or property exists. If such a situation arises,
the Building and Grounds Supervisor must sign a statément describing the circumstances that gave rise
to the health threat and ensure that writteélt Rgtice is provided as soon as practicable.

The Buildings and Grounds Supervisor i$ respomsible for the District’s integrated pest management
program and the District’s comphliance withithe Structural Pest Control Act. 225 ILCS 235/.

U Applicable if the Superiniendent detémines that ar integrated pest management program is
economically feastble:

The Buildings and Grounds Supervisor or designee shall: (1) develop and implement a program
incorporating ghe Deparmentief Public Health guidelines; (2) notify the Department, on forms
provided by#the Department, thata program is being implemented: (3) repeat the notification every
five years after the initiad notification: and (4) keep copies of all notifications and all written
integrated pest Manageméft program plans.

U Applicable if the Superintendent determines that adopting an integrated pest management
program is not economically feasible because such adoption would result in an increase in pest
control costs:

The Buildings and Grounds Supervisor or designee shall: (1) notify the Department, on forms
provided by the Department, that the development and implementation of an integrated pest
management program is not economically feasible; (2) include in the notification the projected pest

The footnotes should be removed before the material 15 used

3 ltem #1 is not legally required. The registry identified in item #2a is required by the Structural Pest Control Act, 225
[LCS 235/10.3. However, for ease of compliance, the procedure automatically puts all employees and parents/guardians in
the registry. Change #2a as follows if the superintendent prefers to limit the registry to only those who expressed interest in
being notified: “Maintain a registry of all employees and parents/guardians who have requested to receive notice before
pesticides are applied to school property.” The notice described in item #2b, i-iv, is mandatorsrequired by 100 S 233 !
Be sure the notice provision is consistent with board policy.

4:160-AP Page 2 of 4

©2622-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

[Itinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



control costs for the term of the pest control program and projected costs for implementing a
program for that same time period; (3) repeat this notification every five years after the initial
notification until a program is developed and implemented; and (4) attend a training course,
approved by the Department, on integrated pest management and repeat attendance every five years
thereafter until a program is developed and implemented in the District’s schools.

The Buildings and Grounds Supervisor or designee shall maintain copies of all notifications that are
required by the Structural Pest Control Act and provide the Building Principal(s) or designee(s)
sufficient information to allow him/her/them to inform all parents/guardians and school employees at
least once each school year that the District has met its notification requirements.

Training and Necessary Equipment

Each Building Principal and noncertificated staff supervisor shall ensure that all staff members under
his or her supervision receive training on the safe handling and use of hazardous materials as required
by 105 ILCS 5/10-20.17a. Emergency response and evacuation plans must be a part of the training,

Before an employee is given an assignment where contact withdlood or bodily fluids or other hazardous
material is likely, the employee must be provided the negessary training, including training in the
universal precautions and other infection control measuregto prevéat the transmission of communicable
diseases and/or to reduce potential health hazards @ required by 23 [ll. Admin.Code §1.330. The
appropriate supervisor shall maintain an attendamee record of an employee’s participation in the
training.

Substitute Non-Hazardous Materials

District staff shall comply with State law govesping toxi€art supplies in schools. 105 ILCS 135/. This
includes substituting non-hazardous material for hazardous substances whenever possible and
minimizing the quantity of hazasdeus substasees stored in school facilities. No art or craft material
containing a toxic substance sill be'@rdered'ar purchased for use through grade 6; material containing
toxic substances may be used in grades 7 through 12 only if properly labeled according to State law.

Infectious Materials

The Buildings and'Ground§Supemisor shall prepare and distribute to all employees an Occupational
Exposure Congfel Plan to eliminale or minimize occupational exposure to potentially infectious
materials.4 The Plan shall comply with the Bloodborne Pathogens Standards adopted by State and
federal regulatory agemcies amd an updated copy given to the Superintendent annually. The Plan shall
address the following Issues:

1. Exposure determination. Positions that do not subject the employee to occupational exposure
are generally exempt from the Plan and the Standards.

2. Implementation schedule specifying how and when risks are to be reduced. The Standards are
very specific on risks reduction, e.g., Universal Precautions must be followed; engineering and
work practice controls are specified (hand washing, restricted food areas); personal protection

The tootnotes should be removed before the material is used.

4 The federal regulatory agency administering the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) issued Bloodborne
Pathogens Standards (29 C.F.R. Part 1910.1030) that were adopted by the [il. Department of Labor (56 [Il.Admin.Code
§350.700). The Standards were developed to reduce the risk of occupational exposure to bloodborne pathogens. According to
the Standards, “occupational exposure~ means reasonably anticipated skin, eye, mucous membrane, or parenteral contact
with blood or other potentially infectious materials that may result from the performance of an employee’s duties. The
Standards require employers to institute a written Exposure Control Plan containing the elements in the sample procedures.

4:160-AP Page 3 of 4
G222 2021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Mlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attormey before use.



equipment must be provided; housekeeping requirements are specified (regulated waste
disposal and laundry); vaccination requirements (all employees who have occupational
exposure must be offered, at employer expense, the hepatitis B vaccine and vaccination series);
communication of hazards to employees through labeling and training; and recordkeeping.

3. Process for ensuring that all medical evaluations and procedures, including the hepatitis B
vaccine and vaccination series and post-exposure evaluation and follow-up, are available as
required by law.

4. Procedures for evaluating an exposure incident.

Emergency Response Plan

The Building Principal shall ensure that proper procedures for the cleanup of potentially hazardous
material spills are followed including the following:

1. A building custodian is responsible for the actual cleanup,

2. Personal protective equipment, chemical neutralizafion kits, and absorbent material are
available in each building at all times, and

3. Spill residue is placed in containers designated.for such ptpose and disposed of in compliance
with local, State, and federal law.

Evacuation

The Building Principal shall ensure compliance with #lie Schoot Safety Drill Act. 105 ILCS 128/. This
includes, among other things, ensuring thatevacuation sules are posted in each room and discussed
with each class using the room during the first days.of the school year. The evacuation rules indicate
the primary and alternate exits and the evaesation arca 6 which students should proceed upon leaving
the building.

The Building Principal shali€onductevacuation driils according to School Board policy 4:170, Safety,
and administrative proceduré4: | TO=API Gomprehensive Safety and Security Plan.

LEGAL REF: 29 C.F R §1910.1030. Occupational Exposure to Bloodborne Pathogens, adopted
by thelll. Department of Labor at 56 H1.Admin.Code §350.300.

29 C.F.R. §1910.1200, Occupational Safety and Health Administration Hazard
Communication Standards, adopted by 820 ILCS 255/1.5, Toxic Substances
Disclosure to Employees Act.

105 ILCS 5/10-20.17a and 5/10-20.49.

105 ILCS 135/, Toxic Art Supplies in School Act.

105 ILCS 140/, Green Cleaning School Act.

225 ILCS 235/, Structural Pest Control Act.

415 ILCS 65/, Lawn Care Products Application and Notice Act.

23 [ll.Admin.Code §1.330.

4:160-AP Page 4 of 4
20222023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



OctoberMNovember20-+djunc 2623 5:230

Professional Personnel

Maintaining Student Discipline !

Maintaining an orderly learning environment is an essential part of each teacher’s instructional
responsibilities. A teacher’s ability to foster appropriate student behavior is an important factor in the
teacher’s educational effectiveness. The Superintendent shall ensure that all teachers, other certificated
[licensed] educational employees (except for individuals employed as paraprofessional educators), and
persons providing a student’s related service(s):2 (1) maintain discipline in the schools as required in
the School Code, and (2) follow the School Board policies and administrative procedures on student
conduct, behavior, and discipline.

When a student’s behavior is unacceptable, the teacher should first discuss the matter with the student,
if appropriate.3 If the unacceptable behavior continues, the tgicher should consult with the Building
Principal and/or discuss the problem with the parent(s)/guasd¥an(s). A teacher may remove any student
from the learning setting whose behavior interferes with the lessomor participation of fellow students.4
A student’s remeval must be in accordance with Boz#:bolicy and administrative procedures.

Teachers shall not use disciplinary methods that gy be damaging to students, such as ridicule, sarcasm,
or excessive temper displays. Corporal punishment fincluding slapping, paddling, or prolonged
maintenance of a student in physically painful positioms, and intentional infliction of bodily harm) may
not be used. Teachers may use reasonablé forge as neededito keep students, school personnel, and others
safe, or for self-defense or defense of property. &

The footnotes are naffifitended to B8t oflie adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted

1 State or fedevallaw controls tis policy's content. This policy contains an item om which collective bargaining may be
required. Any policy i impacts @pon wages. hours, and terms and conditions of employment, is subject to collective
bargaining upon request bythe employce representative, even if the policy involves an inherent managerial right.

This policy is consistent with the minimum requirements of State law. The local collective bargaining agreement may
contain provisions that exceed these requirements for employees covered by it. If this policy s subject matter is superseded by
a bargaining agreement, the board policy can state, “Please refer to the applicable collective bargaining agreement(s).” For

employees not covered by a collective bargaining agreement, the policy should reflect the board’s current practice.

2 33 [l Admin. Code 31.280. “Persons providing a student’s related service(s)” includes both certificated [licensed] and

non-certificated [non-licensed| emplovees. 105 [LCS 5/24-24.

3 School officials determine whether a behavioral intervention is appropriate. See 105 TLCS 5/10-22.6(b-20) —amesded

4 Teachers must be given the authority to remove disruptive students from the classroom. 105 ILCS 5/24-24.

An in-school suspension program may focus on promoting non-violent conflict resolution and positive interaction with
other students and school personnel, and districts may employ a school social worker or a licensed mental health protessional
to oversee in-school suspension programs. 105 ILCS 5/10-22.6(1)~added—bw—E A 1001035 Consult the board attorney
regarding whether a teacher needs to be present for an in-school suspension program overseen by a school social worker or
licensed mental health professional, and whether other licensed school support personnel (such as a school counselor or school
psychologist) may oversee an in-school suspension program.

5 Required by 105 ILCS 5/24-24. See sample policy 7:190, Student Behavior, for a discussion of corporal punishment.

5:230 Page | of 2
© Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/24-24.
23 Tll.Admin.Code §1.280.

2:150 (Committees), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:230 (Misconduct by Students
with Disabilities)

CROSS REF.:

Page 2 of 2

5:230
©2022-2023 Policy Retference Education Subscription Service

Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Masene 20408 lune 2023 6:10

Instruction

Educational Philosophy and Objectives !

The District’s educational program will seek to provide an opportunity for each student to develop to
his or her maximum potential. The objectives for the educational program are to:

Foster students’ self-discovery, self-awareness, and self-discipline.

Develop students” awareness of and appreciation for cultural diversity.

Stimulate students’ intellectual curiosity and growth.

Provide students with fundamental career concepts and skills.

Help students develop sensitivity to the needs and values of others and a respect for individual
and group differences.

Help each student strive for excellence and instill a desire to reach the limit of his or her
potential.

7. Encourage students to become life-long learners.

8. Provide an educational climate and culture fige of bias conceming the protected classifications
identified in policy 7:10, Equal Educationa! Opportunities.

In order for the Board to monitor whether the edugational program is anaining these objectives and to
be knowledgeable of current and future resource nwd's the Superintendent shall prepare an annual
report that includes:

1. A review and evaluation of the pmsenf earrieulurm.

2. A projection of curriculum and reseurce needs.

3. An evaluation of, and planie elimmate, any bias in the curricutum or instructional materials
and methods concerming the elassifications referred to in item 8. above.

4. Any plan for new @frevised instsuctiomal program implementation.

5. A review of present amefitture facifity needs.

e

&

CROSS REF: 1:30 (Sehool District Philosophy). 3:10 (Goals and Objectives), 6:15 (School
AccountaBility). 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities)

The footnotes are not intended™o be part of the adopted policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted

1 For more information about detecting ends and efficiently monitoring district performance, see IASB’s Foundational
Principles of Effective Governance, at: www 1asb.comprineiples.cfm,
The items in both the objectives and monitoring lists are only examples. Each board should customize this policy, and
re-visit it periodically, to ensure it is responsive to the district’s needs and is effective and dynamic.
Alternative or additional objectives for the educational program might include one or more of the following:
1. Have all students meet or exceed State standards in their academic pursuits.
2. Provide meaningful learning activities for all students who have the capacity to learn.
3. Provide opportunities for students to develop emotionally, morally, and socially as well as to gain knowledge and
skills to develop and maintain healthy minds and bodies.
4. Foster an appreciation for the efficient use of natural resources.
Cultivate students’ understanding and appreciation for democracy and the history of the United States.
6. Have students take responsibility for their own actions including understanding their role in creating a positive
learning environment as well as being active participants in the leaming process.
7. Provide opportunities for students’ parents/guardians to participate in their child’s academic achievement and school
performance.

wn

6:10 Page I of |
© Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey betore use.



Mesdane 2048 une 2023 6:40-AP

Instruction

Administrative Procedure - Curriculum Development

Faculty Curriculum Committee

The Faculty Curriculum Committee assists in the District’s curriculum planning process and provides
the Superintendent with recommendations and supportive summaries. The Committee shall serve in an
advisory capacity only.

The Faculty Curriculum Committee will:

1. Engage in two-way communication with teachers in order to address questions and concerns,
keep everyone informed, and cooperatively strive for continuous improvement.

Provide system wide coordination of curriculum and sgudent learning experiences.

Identify and categorize problems related to curriculum.

Research instructional methods and curriculum, gﬁz‘mg.available resources.

Engage in long-range planning for the continueus improvément of the curriculum.

The Superintendent or designee appoints Commitiée members and directs the Committee. providing
specific tasks and #sme—framestimeframes.

Sl

Curriculum Guides and Course Qutlines

Development of guides:

1. Curriculum guides are best developed by théstaff and teachers who are to use them.

2. When entire staff participation is net fgasible, the Superintendent or designee will direct staff
representatives and/ox lt{;%kﬂ department heads to study, create, and revise the guides.

3. Completed guides witl be given to thé&Superintendent.

Use of guides:

1. Curriculum gmiges serve.as a framework from which a-teachers will develop units of study,
individualifesson plams, 2@ approaches to instruction that will serve the-students” particular
needs ata particular tine. The guides shall be used to map the logical sequence of instruction.

2. In subject§where seqiience is important, such as mathematics, teachers shall be expected to
adhere to theguide. B subjects where sequential learning is less important, tke-teachers may
be given a greatgsdlegree of freedom in respect to sequence.

3. Inall cases, sufficient latitude shall be permiited to provide the-teachers with time to teach the
current, topical, and incidental issues that add to motivation and meaningful teaching and
learning.

4. The Building Principal and/or department heads shall see that optimum use is made of available
curriculum guides.

6:40-AP Page 1 of |
< Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Nlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Setober-MNovembar2d-+%/une 2023 6:120-AP1, El

Instruction

Exhibit - Notice to Parents/Guardians Regarding Section 504 Rights

On District letterhead.
Date:

Dear Parent/Guardian:

Re: Section 504 Rights

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, commonly referred to as Section 504, is a
nondiscrimination statute enacted by the U.S. Congress. The Act’s purpose is to: (1) protect the rights
of individuals with disabilities in programs and activities that regeive federal financial assistance from
the U.S. Dept. of Education (ED), and (2) ensure that disabled students have educational opportunities
and benefits equal to those provided to non-disabled students.

An eligible student under Section 504 is a student whaithas a recordef having, or is regarded as having,
a physical or mental impairment which substantially ¥imits a major [ife@ctivity as defined by 34 C.F.R.
§104.3.

This notice describes the rights ensured by Section 34 to those disabled students who do not qualify
for special education and related serviges under the dndividuals With Disabilities Education Act
(IDEA).! The intent of this notice is to keep youfully informed concerning decisions about your child
and to inform you of your rights if you disagree with@my decisions in reference to Section 504. If vou
have questions about the identifieation. assegs@tent. and placement of children eligible for Section 504,
please contact the District's Séétion 304 Coowdlinator at [insert phone number and location].

Please keep this explanation for hmﬁ‘*“
Parents/Guardians andéas smdﬂ have the right to:

1. Be int'orw'! by the8choolBistrict of your rights and procedural safeguards under Section 504
in an wderstandable Janguage. 34 C.F.R. Part 104. The purpose of this notice is to advise
parents/guardians andfer students of these rights.

2. The servic®§hof agdimterpreter. for parents/guardians who are deaf or do not tvpically
communicate M' ir spoken English and who participate in a Section 504 meeting. 105 ILCS
514-6.01. '

=3 A free appropriate public education designed to meet a student’s individual educational needs
as adequately as the needs of non-disabled students are met. 34 C.F.R. §104.33.

The foototes should be removed belore the matertal is used.
‘l . . P o -

= - o vear—=School boards must post on their website, if any, and incorporate into their
student handbooks/newsletters, notice that students with disabilities who do not qualify for an individualized education
program under the IDEA may qualify for services under Section 504 if the student: (1) has a physical or mental impairment
that substantially limits one or more major life activities; (2) has a record of a physical or mental impairment; or (3) is regarded
as having a physical or mental impairment. 105 [LCS 5/14-6.01, amended by P.A. 102-1072486—2 This notice must
identify the location and phone number of the person in the district to whom inquiries should be directed. Id. [l must also stare
that any parent who is deaf or does not ypically communicate using spoken English and who participates in o Section 504
meeting with a district representative shall be entitled to the services of an interpreter. Id.

6:120-AP1, El Page | of 3

< Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
MMlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



3.4. Free educational services except for those fees that are imposed on non-disabled students or
their parents/guardians. Insurers and similar third parties are not relieved from an otherwise
valid obligation to provide or pay for services provided to a disabled student. 34 C.F.R.
§104.33.

4.5. A placement in the least restrictive environment to the maximum extent appropriate to meet
the student’s needs. 34 C.F.R. §104.34.

5.6. Facilities, services, and activities comparable to those provided for non-disabled students. 34
C.F.R. §104.34.

6-7. An evaluation prior to an initial Section 504 placement and any subsequent significant change
in placement. 34 C.F.R. §104.35.

7.8 Testing and other evaluation procedures conforming to the requirements of 34 C.F.R.
§104.35(b) as to validation, administration, areas of evaluation, etc. The District shall consider
information from a variety of sources, including aptitude and achievement tests, teacher
recommendations, physical conditions, social and cultural background, adaptive behavior,
physical or medical reports, student grades, progress rgports, parent/guardian observations,
anecdotal reports and standardized test scores. 34 C.E.R. §104.35(c).

%.9_Placement decisions made by a group of persons, i, a Section 504 committee, including the
parentsy/guardianéss and persons knowledgeable abemt the student, the meaning of the
evaluation data, the placement options, andhe lcgal requirements for the least restrictive
environment and comparable facilities. 34 €.F.R. §104.35(c).

910, Periodic reevaluation of studentgWho hayebeen provided special education and related
services. 34 C.F.R. §104.35(d).
1l A notice prior to any action by the Biistrict in regard to the identification, evaluation,

or placement of the student. 34 CFRy§104.36.

H=i2 Examine refevant recordse34 C.FERu§104.36.

An impartial hearing regardingthe student’s identification, evaluation, or educational
placement including am@ppertunity for parental participation in the hearing and representation
by an attorney. and@ feview procedurés 34 C.F.R. §104.36. 2
[Insert details regarding wie distrige's hearing and review procedures.] 3

The footnotes shouldihé removed Béfore th&imaterial is used.

2 Although compliance with [DER procedural safeguards is one means of meeting this requirement (34 C.F.R. §104.36),
IDEA procedural safeetiards go aboseand bevond Section 504 requirements. Consult with the board attorney to determine if
IDEA procedural safeguards should be used for Section 504 disputes.

3 Section 504 does not preseribe hearing and review procedures. leaving the procedures used to the district’s discretion.
Consult with the board attorney to determine appropriate local procedures. Possible procedures include this option (based
upon Section [X, Impartial Hearing Procedures, of Sample Section 504 Procedures at: www.1asb.cony law/sec304.cfm):

If you disagree with the District relative to the student’s identification, evaluation, or educational placement, you
must notify the District’s Section 504 compliance coordinator or designee and attempt to resolve any differences
informally. If informal procedures fail, you may request a hearing before an impartial hearing officer. The due
process review procedures set forth in the IDEA and in Article 14 of the School Code shall not be employed unless
you are contesting or asserting a right to special education services under the IDEA or Article 14. Your request for
a hearing must be submitted in writing to the District’s Section 504 compliance coordinator or designee within 10
days of the date of the decision to be reviewed. The District’s Section 504 compliance coordinator or designee shall
then appoint the impartial hearing officer.

You shall be provided with written notice of the hearing, which shall include the time, date, and location of the
hearing and the identity of the hearing officer. Generally, the notice will be sent at least five business days in advance
of the hearing. The notice will inform you that you have the right to: review any relevant records before the hearing;
be represented by counsel at the hearing; and participate in the hearing. The decision of the impartial hearing officer
shall be in writing and be issued within 10 days after the hearing. Either party may seek review of the hearing
officer’s decision by a court of competent jurisdiction.

6:120-AP1, El Page 2 of 3
© Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



13-14. File a grievance under Board policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure, regarding
any complaints that allege action prohibited by Section 504.

H4-13. File a complaint with the District’s Section 504 coordinator or designee concerning
Section 504 matters other than your student’s identification, evaluation and/or placement. The
Section 504 coordinator or designee will investigate the allegations to the extent warranted by
the nature of the complaint in an effort to reach a prompt and equitable resolution.

4+5-16. File a complaint with the Office of Civil Rights. The Illinois regional Office of Civil
Rights is located in Chicago at:

Chicago Office
Office for Civil Rights
U.S. Department of Education

Q—fﬁ“ﬁ)ﬂﬁ—(—eﬁ{eﬂohn C. Kluczynski Federal Building
restvh #e—+473200 S. Dearborn Street, 37th Floor

Chlcago IL 606046—'—

Phone: 312/730-1560

Fax: 312/730-15766+

TDD: 17521 2172800 877-8338
Email: OCR.Chicago@ed.gov

If you would like more information about the differences between Section 504 and IDEA, see
Protecting Students with Disabilities FAQ aboug Section 504 and e Education of Children with
Disabilities, available at: www?2.ed.oovabout o@"es. listlocr 504 fag.html.

Sincerely,

Superintendent

6:120-AP1, El Page 3 of 3
(@] Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



6:190

Instruction

Extracurricular and Co-Curricular Activities 1

The Superintendent must approve an activity in order for it to be considered a District-sponsored
extracurricular or co-curricular activity, using the following criteria:

1. The activity will contribute to the leadership abilities, social well-being, self-realization, good
citizenship, or general growth of student-participants.
Fees assessed students are reasonable and do not exceed the actual cost of operation. 2
The District has sufficient financial resources for the activity.
Requests from students.
The activity will be supervised by a school-approved spansor.
Non-school sponsored student groups are governed by Schaal Board policy, 7:330, Student Use of
Buildings - Equal Access. 3

A nto] B

Academic Criteria for Participation

For students in kindergarten through 8th grade, seléction of members O participants is at the discretion
of the teachers, sponsors, or coaches, provided.@at the Selection criteria conform to the District’s
policies. Students must satisfy all academic standard§and must comply with the activity’s rules and the
student conduct eode. )

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopliéd poliey: teyBhould be removed before the policy 1s adopted

L Each schoel beard in a disrric;ﬁnfrl"l}[ains aﬁbfgrades 9-12 must have a o pass-no play policy. 105 ILCS 5/10-
20.30. State or federal law controls some aspeets of this policy’s content. The criteria for determining whether to sponsor a

specific activity is a local boardidiecision. exeept thar art ISBE rule requires that: (| | programs for extra classroom activities
provide opportunities for all smdefiss: (2§he desires Bf the student bodv be considered: and (3) co-curricular activities be
carefully supervised by a school-ap sponsor. 23 Hl.Admm.Code §1.420(]).

As State law does st defingextracusticular or co-curricular. a board may desire to exptain these terms in the policy, such
as by including the falowing optiomat she‘@inning of the policy:

Extracussgular or co-currignlar activities are school-sponsored programs for which some or all of the activities are
outside the mstructional dg. They do net include field trips. homework. or occasional work required outside the
school day toe & scheduled class. Co-curricular activity refers to an activity associated with the curricuium in a
regular classroom and i$ generally required for class credit. Exoracurricular activity refers to an activity that is not
part of the curriculme fs not graded, does not offer credit. and does not take ptace during classroom time; it includes
competitive interscholastic activities and clubs.

In January 2013, the U.S. Dept. of Education, Office for Civil Rights, issued a Dear Colleague Letter conceming the
participation of students with disabilities in extracurricular athletic activities. It clarifies the types of accommodations and
services that districts must provide pursuant to Section 504. See www2.ed.gov aboutioffices listocr letters/colleague-201301-
304.himl,

2 Optional. Assessing fees that are reasonable and do not exceed the actual cost of operation is a best practice thai aligns
with School Code provisions seeking to minimize cost barriers to students and parents/suardians. See 105 ILCS 52-3 7laid).
5/10-22.18b. and 5/10-23, [Rd.

3 Non-curriculum related extracurricular activities that meet during non-instruction time in secondary schools trigger the
Equal Access Act (EAA) (20 U.S.C. §4071 et seq.). The EAA prohibits the school from denying fair opportunity or equal
access to any students who wish to conduct a meeting within a limited open forum on the basis of the religious, political,
philosophical, or other content of the speech at such a meeting. The U.S. Supreme Court interpreted “non-curriculum related
student group” as any student group that does not directly relate to the body of courses offered by the school. Bd. of Ed. of
Westside Community Sch. Dist. v. Mergens, 496 U.S. 226 (1990).

4 High school districts should omit this paragraph.

6:190 Page | of 2
‘© 2122 2075 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Nlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



For high school students,3 selection of members or participants is at the discretion of the teachers,
sponsors, or coaches, provided that the selection criteria conform to the District’s policies. Participation
in co-curricular activities is dependent upon course selection and successful progress in those courses.
In order to be eligible to participate in any school-sponsored or school-supported athletic or
extracurricular activity, a student must maintain an overall __ grade point average.® Any student-
participant failing to meet these academic criteria shall be suspended from the activity for ___ calendar
days or until the specified academic criteria are met, whichever is longer. 7

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-20.30 and 5/24-24.

CROSS REF.: 4:170 (Safety), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:40 (Nonpublic School
Students, Including Parochial and Home-Schooled Students), 7:240 (Conduct
Code for Participants in Extracurricular Activities), 7:300 (Extracurricular
Athletics), 7:330 (Student Use of Buildingg - Equal Access), 8:20 (Community
Use of School Facilities)

The footnotes are not inten ¢ part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

5 Elementary districts should omit this paragraph.

6 Each board in a district that maintains any of grades 9-12 must have a no pass-no play policy. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.30.
The policy must specify a minimum grade point average (left blank in the sample policy) AND/OR a minimum grade in each
course, such as passing (see alternatives below). The policy must provide a suspension period — stated in sample policy as
“___calendar days or until the specified academic criteria are met, whichever is longer.” The procedure for implementing this
policy is an administrative, management function. Alternatives follow:
Alternative 1: ...a student must maintain an overall ___ grade point average and a passing grade [or minimum grade
of __]in each course the student is enrolled.
Alternative 2: ...a student must maintain a passing grade [or minimum grade of ] in each course the student is
enrolled.
Alternative 3: ...a student must satisfy the [llinois High School Association’s scholastic standing requirements
[doing passing work in at least 25 credit hours of high school work per week].

7 Alternatives include:
Alternative 1: ...shall be suspended from the activity for __ calendar days. [Delete the rest of the sentence.]
Alternative 2: ...shall be suspended from the activity until the specified academic criteria are met.

6:190 Page 2 of 2
©2022-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attorney before use,



Mbaryerre 20k une 2023 6:220-E1l

Instruction

Exhibit - Authorization to Participate in the Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT)
Program; Responsible Use and Conduct Agreement
This form accompanies policy 6:220, Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT); Responsible Use and

Conduct. It must be signed before a student participates in a BYOT Program. Please submit this form
to the Building Principal.

Student School year

To be read and signed by the student-participant and his/her parent/guardian:
Dear Parents/Guardians:

Our School District allows students to participate in a currigiilum-based Bring Your Own Technology
(BYOT) Program. You must authorize your child’s paiti€ipation in the program by agreeing to the
following terms and discussing them with your child, igeluding usmgthe Internet through the District’s
electronic network during instructional time (Children’s Internet Protection Act (CIPA) (47 U.S.C.
§254)). This authorization and agreement needs 49 be signéd only once while your child is enrolled in
the District. :

Your child must also sign the Student Auwghorization Jar Access to the District’s Electronic Networks
agreement to participate in the program. I yowhaxe not read and signed this document or do not know
whether one is already on file in the Distrigt, contaet gour Building Principal. You may also ask your
Building Principal for any other fomms or exBilits referenced in the BYOT authorization and agreement
below. '

The violation of any laws 8f.Board. mmﬂe participating in the program may result in the loss of
your child’s privilege to participae n the program. Remember that you are legally responsible for your
child’s actions. If vou#ghes to allaw your child to participate in BYOT program, sign the authorization
and agreement below and refiam it ¥your school.

The teacher’s rol@in the program is that of instructor in your child’s classroom. Teachers cannot spend
time fixing technicabdifficulties with BYOT devices. Parents/guardians and their children share the
responsibility for rechmigak$tipport and providing a properly charged BYOT device. If a BYOT device
has technical difficulties: ¢1) a District-owned device may be provided, if available, or (2) students may
be asked to partner with another student who has a functioning BYOT device during a lesson. The
District will also expect you and your child to keep the BYOT device free from viruses, malware, and/or
any other harmful programs that could damage the District’s electronic network. Finally, the right to
privacy in your child’s BYOT device is limited while it is on any school property.

Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program Participation Authorization and
Responsible Use Agreement

I hereby request that my child be allowed to participate in the District’s BYOT program. (Please
indicate agreement by initialing the checkbox.)

O [ have read this BYOT Participation Authorization and Responsible Use adgreement. |
understand the program is designed for educational purposes and that during instructional times, my

6:220-E1 Page | of 2
Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

filinois Association of School Boards. Al Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

©



child may access the District’s Internet only through its electronic networks to minimize access to
inappropriate material.

a [ will hold harmless the District, its employees, agents, and Board members, for any harm
caused by materials or software obtained via the District’s network and compliance with federal law(s)
(including, but not limited to CIPA requirements).

O I have previously signed the Student Authorization for Electronic Network Access form. 1 have
also read and discussed with my child the following documents: (1) the Responsible Use and-Conduet
portion of policy 6:220, Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Programs; Responsible Use and
Conduct; (2) 6:220-E2, Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program Student Guidelines; and (3)
6:235-E5, Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act.

O [ understand that my child and I share the responsibility for technical support, providing a
properly charged BYOT device, and keeping the BYOT device free from viruses, malware and/or any
other harmful programs that could infect or harm the District’s electronic network.

O I understand that the District does not provide liabilj
not responsible for any damages.

rotection for BYOT devices, and it is

d I understand that my child’s privacy righ
property are limited as outlined in Board policy.

T device while on any school

a I consent that my child may share ano
asked to share his/her BYOT device with anoth
classroom teacher.

t's BYOT device, or in the alternative, be
dent, from time to time as directed by the

Parent/Guardian (please print) Date

Parent/Guardian signature Student signature

d parent/guardian who is not participating;

: ate in the BYOT program sponsored by the School District for the
remainder of this schigl yg#. -In order for me to participate in the BYOT program at a later date, I
understand that I must S§§€act the Building Principal and sign the above Bring Your Own T echnology
(BYOT) Program Participation Authorization and Responsible Use Agreement-Ferm.

Parent/Guardian (please print) Date
Parent/Guardian signature Student signature
Enclosures: 6:220, Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Programs; Responsible Use and

Conduct; 6:220-E2, Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program Student
Guidelines; 6:235-E5, Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act

6:220-E1 Page 2 of 2
©2022-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.



Mayfure20-4% une 2023 6:220-E2

Instruction

Exhibit - Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program Student Guidelines

This exhibit accompanies policy 6:220, Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program, Responsible
Use and Conduct. It should be sent home with students along with 6:220-E1, Authorization to
Participate in the Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program; Responsible Use and Conduct
Agreement,_and 6:235-E5, Children's Online Privacy Protection Act. It outlines BYOT guidelines.
Building Principals may want to include this in the student handbook. Modify this exhibit to reflect the
District’s and any building-specific guidelines.

The purpose of the District’s BYOT program is to extend and enrich the learning environment. The
following guidelines apply to students who participate in the program:

»  Access only the District’s Internet gateway. The Distriegfilters access to materials that may be
defamatory, inaccurate, offensive, or otherwise inappropsiate at school pursuant to policy
6:235, Access to Electronic Networks. Makeé no attempts o bypass the District’s Internet
gateway. Similar to when a filter is disabled or malfunctions. it is impossible to control all
Internet material, and a BYOT participantmay.dfscover inappropriate material. It may also be
discovered if andor when sharing a BYOT device with another student. Report inappropriate
content and conduct to your classfeem teacher.”

e Follow the standards of your parefits/gardians. The District respects each family’s right to
decide whether or not i@pasticipate. Pistrict-provided technology may be an alternative.

e Access only authd&q:d data exfiles on the computer or Internet sites that are relevant to the
classroom curriculumibaid suggested by a teacher. Students are strictly prohibited from
infecting the District”s network(s) with a virus or malware program designed to damage, alter,
ardestray. or otherwise compromise the network, and hacking, altering, or bypassing security
policieSier measures, Esine-Installing and updating anti-virus and anti-malware software and
keeping operating8vstem on BYOT devices_updated is encouragedrequired. The District
may examire any B¥YOT device that it suspects is causing network problems or may be the
source of an attagk or virus infection.

s Use of a BYOT device is subject to policy 7:190, Student Behavior.

» Transmit only appropriate content while using the District’s electronic network. At no time,
may a photographic image or video of any person on campus be made, posted, or shared. unless
authorized by the teacher for instructional purposes. Any reasonable suspicion of an activity
that violates law or Board policies will be treated according to policy 7:140, Search and
Seizure. Bullying, harassment. or sexual material will not be tolerated and will be managed
pursuant to policiesy 7:180, Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and
Harassment. or 1:20. Harassment of Students Prohibited. as appropriate, Retrieval of devices
that become involved in a law enforcement investigation is the student and parent/guardian’s
responsibility.

6:220-E2 Page | of 2
Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service

[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



¢ Charge all BYOT devices prior to school every day. Tumn off and keep BYOT devices in the
sight of the teacher during assessments, unless otherwise directed by a teacher. Immediately
follow any teacher’s instruction to shut down BYOT devices or close the screen. All BYOT
devices must be in silent mode and put away when directed by teachers.

o Sharing BYOT devices with other students is allowed only when a parent/guardian has
approved this in writing through the Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program
Participation Authorization and Responsible Use Agreement Eermand the teacher has directed
it.

6:220-E2 Page 2 of 2
©2022-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[Hlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Mayheae 20408 une 2023 6:240

Instruction

Field Trips !

Field trips are permissible when the experiences are a part of the school curriculum and/or contribute
to the District’s educational objectives, 2

All field trips must have the Superintendent or designee’s prior approval, except that field trips beyond
a 200-mile radius of the school or extending overnight must have the prior approval of the School
Board.3 The Superintendent or designee shall analyze the following factors to determine whether to
approve a field trip:4 educational value, student safety, parent concerns, heightened security alerts, and
liability concerns. On all field trips, a bus fee set by the Superintendent or designee may be charged to
help defray the transportation costs. 3 '

Parents/guardians of students: (1) shall be given the opportuaifly to consent to their child’s participation
in any field trip; and (2) are responsible for all entrance fées, fo0d. lodging, or other costs, except that
the District will pay such costs for students who qualify for a fee waiver under Board policy 4:140,
Waiver of Student Fees. All non-participating studeals shall be provided an alternative experience. Any
field trip may be cancelled without notice due toy@n unforgSeen event or condition.

Privately arranged trips, including those led by Drstriet staff members, shall not be represented as or
construed to be sponsored by the Districker school. Thg District does not provide liability protection
for privately arranged trips and is not respenstblefor any damages arising from them. 6

The footnotes are L intended to beSgart of the adopted policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted

I Thisisan optional policy. The following is an optienal section for including cfass rips; add to the bottom of the policy
and add “and Recreationtad €lass Telps™ to the policy’s title.
Recreational Class Trips
Recreational class trips are permissible provided they do net interfere with the District’s educational program.
The provisions in this policy concerning field trips, except those regarding educational value, are also
applicable to recreational class trips.

2 As an altemnative, substitute the verb “encouraged” for “permissible.” State law also permits educational tours as a
course supplement but does not authorize the use of school funds for such tours. 105 ILCS 5/10-22.29.

3 According to 105 [LCS 5/29-3.1, “[t]he school board may provide transportation for pupils on bona fide field trips in
Illinois or adjacent states.” The superintendent or designee is delegated the responsibility to approve field trips after
considering the factors in the policy.

105 ILCS 5/29-6.3 allows districts to transport students in multi-function school activity busses (MFSABs) for school
sponsored activities.

4 These are at the local board's discretion.

S Transportation fees are permitted by 105 ILCS 5/29-3.1. Such fees cannot exceed the cost of transportation but may
melude a reasonable allowanee for vehicle depreciation. [d.

6 This paragraph is optional. It seeks to distinguish privately arranged trips from those that are controlled and sponsored
by the district and provides a disclaimer.

6:240 Page | of 2
(Y] Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/29-3.1.

CROSS REF.: 4:140 (Waiver of Student Fees), 6:10 (Educational Philosophy and Objectives),
7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:270 (Administering Medicines to
Students)

6:240 Page 2 of 2

©2022-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Nlinois Association of' School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Mayhe 2040 une 2023 6:240-AP

Instruction

Administrative Procedure - Field Trip Guidelines 1

Actor Action

Teacher(s) or administrator | Submits a trip proposal to the Building Principal. The proposal must
who seeks consent for a specifically describe each of the following:
school-sponsored trip with

The trip, including possible dates, location, and experience
students

1

2. The trip’s educational value

3. Transportation requirements

4. Supervision plans that include, among other things, plans for at
least two adult supervisors#o be present with every grouping of
students

The students who will be imvolved

The alternative experience that will be provided non-participating
students

7. A summary g and evaluation of any previous similar trip

o

Building Principal Prepares a recmenﬁlnon for the Superintendent or Board, as
appropriate, using the following factors to analyze the trip proposal:

Educational value
Distance 10 b&mayeled
Locatien -
I dravel arangements
Fees
- Pareni.concerns
l Insurance carrier’s liability feedback
Safety considerations
Heightened security alerts
Whether trip ts an annual event

Appropriate teachier(s) and | Makes final transportation arrangements.

Building Principal . , . . .
Recruits parents/guardians for supervisory roles, as appropriate.

Collects signed consent forms and fees from all participating students’
parents/guardians.
Makes sure all supervisors have a list of the following:

1. Names of all student participants and supervisors
2. Names and specifics of students with special needs

Fhe foomotes should be removed before the material ts used

1 Be sure these procedures are consistent with the board pOlle See sample policy 6:240, Field Trips . In addition,
S e s e et e st e et S-paHes— e dhe e class tr]ps are |nc]uded widl's
, add to the title, “and Recreatlonal Clasa Trips.”

6:240-AP Page 1 of 2
Ilhnmb';;-somanon of School Boards. All R|5hts Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Actor

Action

3. Name/phone number of emergency contacts for all students and
supervisors

4. Date/time and specific destination of trip

5. Departure/arrival times both to and from destination

6. Name and phone number of transportation company and primary
contact in case of emergency

7. Name/phone number of contact at destination

Once at destination, where to go in case of an emergency

9. Make final supervisor assignments and inform all supervisors of
their individual assignments

=

Parent(s)/guardian(s)

Decides whether to consent to their student’s-child’s participation.

If the student is participating, pays all applicable fees for entry, food,
lodging, transportation, or otheggosts. The District will pay such costs
for students who qualify free and reduced school lunches_in
accordance with policy aiver of Student Fees.

Teacher(s) or administrator
proposing the trip

After a trip, evaluat
the evaluation.

e trip an vides the Building Principal with

6:240-AP

Page 2 of 2

©2622-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[inois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Masluse 20408 une 2023 7:15-E

Students

Exhibit - Notification to Parents of Family Privacy Rights !

Date

Re: Student Survey Participation

Dear Parents:

Your child will be asked to complete a survey as described below:

Survey description:

Anticipated Survey date(s ). =

Survey grade/participants:

Parents/guardians may request that their child not participate in surveys that -.amm one or Imure ql

the following eight areas:

1. Political affiliations or beliefs of the student or student’s parent; wuasthian:
Mental or psychological problems of the student or student’s fa
Sexwst behavior or attitudes;
[llegal, anti-social, self-ineriminating. or demeaning behavior:
Critical appraisals of others with whom the student has@lase family relattomships:
Legally recognized privileged relationships. such as withlsiwvesss doctors. oFministers:
Religious practices. affiliations, or beliefs of the student xamdx_mf- suardians: or
Income other than as required by law to determine program lilgxﬂt\; :
The school will not penahze any student whose pm.rdun wu, this option. -in addition. a
parent/guardian may review surveys asking tions #@bout the' ‘ﬁ:ne areas as well as other
instructional materials. School Board policy 7485, Student @nd Family Brivacy Rights. confaias a more

thorough explanation of these rights and m:!th oblalmgﬁu ?ﬁng Principal.

Opt-Out Instructions (Note. This notice and f’m right transfers from parenisiguardians to any
student who is 18 years old.)

e A

[f you do not want your child n.parlu.lpnu. m‘-‘a u.:.tlﬁ,\t.omau your child’s Building Principal no
later than If‘uﬂu not hear from ¥ by this date. we will assume that you de not object
to having your child pamc:lpdmh:ht. surveys deseribed above.

Request 1o Review

If you wish to review any survey inslrdmdﬁ nstructional material. please submit your request to the
Building Principal. You will be notified ofthe time and place where you may review these materials.

Building Principal contact information:

The foolnotes should be cemaoved belore the matenal s used

! The Prolection of Pupil Rights Act grants parents/guardians the right t previes surveys and 1o prohibit their child’s
participation. 20 U,5,C, §1232h(c). This form does not contain the mandatory notifications if a board adopts optional
pravisions concerning invasive physical examinations. Sce /ns 2, 9, and 13 in sample policy 7: 15, Student and Fumily
Privacy Rights.

7:15-E Page 1 of 1
o] Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Wllinots Association of School Boards, All Rights Reserved
Pleasc review this material with your school board attormey before usc

Commented (MB1]: "Secunl” s changed (o "u'-. (i

match stalutory langudge

]



Oetsbarvaesmbes 20 Ly 2 7:150-AP

Students

Administrative Procedure - Agency and Police Interviews

The T11. Council of School Attoneys. with participation from the DuPage County State’s Attorney’s
Office and Regional Superintendent of Schools, developed Guidelines for Interviews of Students at
School by Law Enforcement Authorities to assist law enforcement authorities and school officials in
determining when it is appropriate for law enforcement authorities or the Ill. Dept. of Children and
Family Services to interview students while the students are at school or participating in school-related
activities. The document is available on the Illinois Association of School Boards website:
www.iasb.com/law TCSAGuidelinesforInterviewsofStudents.pdf.

7:150-AP Page | of |
© Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
MMinois Association of School Boards, All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



October20+7June 2023 7:275

Students

Orders to Forgo Life-Sustaining Treatment !

Written orders from parent(s)/guardian¢s) to forgo life-sustaining treatment for their child must be
signed by the student’s physician and given to the Superintendent. This policy shall be interpreted in
accordance with the Illinois Health Care Surrogate Act. 755 ILCS 40/. 2

Whenever an order to forgo life-sustaining treatment is received, the Superintendent shall convene a
multi-disciplinary team that includes:

1. The student, when appropriate;

2. The student’s parent¢sy/guardian{sy;

3. Other medical professionals, e.g., licensed physician, physician’s assistant, or nurse
practitioner;

Local first responders for the building in which the student is assigned to attend school; 3

The school nurse;

Clergy, if requested by the student or his or lier parentts+ guardiansts+,

Other individuals to provide support to the studentor his or her parent¢si/guardiants¥; and

= [GhChR

The footnotes are not jmcmﬁa‘d.’tp.%c part of the adopted policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted

I This policy is optional. State or federal law controls this policy’s content. This policy concems an area in which the
law is unsettled in that there is no statute or binding decision resolving competing interests and providing direction to schools
for handling do not resuscitate (DNR) orders_or Practitioner Orders for Life-Sustaining Treatment (POLST) forms. For
informatien on the 11 Dept. of Public Health's Unform POLST Form. see hups:/dph.illinois.gov/opics-services/health-care-
regulation/nursing-homes/advance-diréctives/polst-guidance-health-care.himl#completing-reviewing-polst-form.

2 The Health Care Surrogate Act grants parents and court-appointed guardians the authority to decide whether to forgo
life-sustaining treatment on behalf of their minor child in certain situations. 755 [LCS 40/20. The child must suffer a qualifying
condition, which means the existence of a terminal condition, permanent unconsciousness, or an incurable or irreversible
condition. These terms are defined in the Act.

The Act does not address the obligation of school staff members to comply with orders to forgo life-sustaining treatment,
including DNR orders and POLST forms. Rather, the Act is silent regarding directives on life-sustaining care outside a health
care facility or performed by a non-health care provider. The law does, however, indicate who should be the ultimate decision
maker — the parentfsyguardiants). School officials should use the Act, after consulting the school board’s attomey, as a
guideline.

3 Municipal and/or village ordinances may affect response time and care from first responders.

7:275 Page |l of 2
< Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Minois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



8. School personnel designated by the Superintendent. 4 3

The team shall determine guidelines to be used by school staff members in the event the child suffers
a life-threatening episode at school or a school event. 6

+he-District personnel shall convey orders to forgo life-sustaining treatment to the appropriate
emergency or healthcare provider.

LEGAL REF.: Health Care Surrogate Act, 755 ILCS 40/.
Cruzan v. Director, Missouri Dept. of Health, 497 U.S. 261 (1990).
In re C.A., a minor, 236 [Il.App.3d 594 (1st Dist. 1992).

The footnotes are not intended to hgpart of th@adoptedipolicy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

4 Consult the beard mmmcymgardjng*ﬂnbg_shmnl of a multi-disciplinary team and whether attendance at meetings
is necessary. Implementing orders tfopgo Tifc-sustaming care implicates the laws prohibiting discrimination on the basis of
a disability. IDEA. 20 US«E. §1401% Section 504, 29 U.S.C. §794: ADAAA, 42 £.S.C. §12101et seq., amended by the
Americans with Disabilitfes Act Amendmignis Act (ADAAA). Pub.L. 1 10-325 and modified by the Lilly Ledbetter Fair Act,
Pub.L. 111-2. A schawl agreeing o dbide by'such an order does so beeause of the disability's severity; a less severely disabled
or non-disabled student would be lr'chd differently. The U.S. Dept. of Education’s Office for Civil Rights approved a policy
that provided for a M;ﬂis«:iplinur’;’tcum to develop individually designed interventions. School staff members must use
these interventions that miight requéfe homoring an order to forgo life-sustaining care. 21 IDELR 83 (3-31-94). This sample
policy balances the interests af i€ parents guurdians with the district’s obligation under federal law by using such a teamn.
However, liability may exist wiicn a district determines specific interventions and them does not provide them. See In re Estate
of Stewart, 406 [ll.Dec. 345 (2nd Dist. 2016) (denying tort immunity to district, finding its response to a student’s asthma
attack was willful and wanton (which district disputed as a possible heart attack)); In re Estate of Stewart, 412 Ill.Dec. 914
(T11. 2017) (school district’s appeal denied).

5 Consult the board attorney about requiring teachers and other non-administrative school employees to administer
, y quiring r _ sct ploy
medical care and/or treatment to students who are te-subjects of orders to forgo life-sustaining treatment. Generally, only
licensed (formerly certificated) school nurses and non-licensed (formerly non-certificated) registered professional nurses may

be required to administer medication to students. See 105 ILCS 5/10-22.21b and t/n | in policy 7:270, Administering
Medicines to Students.

6 The following are two optional sentences to add at the end of this paragraph:

Option 1: The Superintendent or designee will ensure minutes are taken that summarize the decisions and
guidelines made during multi-disciplinary meetings and obtain signatures of the child’s parenttsy/guardiant¢s)
on the minutes of each multi-disciplinary meeting.

Option 2: The Superintendent or designee will monitor the effectiveness of the guidelines established
during the multi-disciplinary meetings at times the multi-disciplinary team determines are necessary.

Boards may choose either or both options.

7:275 Page 2 of 2
< )i Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
{llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomney before use.



June 2023 7:280-E3

Instruction

Exhibit - Prevention of Staphylococcal Infections for Schools

The following resources from the Ill. Dept. of Public Health (IDPH) and Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC) may be distributed to students and their parents/guardians and staff to inform
them about what staphylococcus aureus is, how it spreads, and how staph infections can be prevented:
e https://dph.illinois.gov. topics-services diseases-and-conditions/diseases-a-z-listmrsa.html
o www.cdc.gov/mrsa/community
e Additional factsheets for parents, athletes and staff are available at:
www.cdc.oov/ mrsa/community/posters index. html.

The local health department may also have more information spegific to the District’s jurisdiction.

7:280-E3 Page | of |
02023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Rescrved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



(O]
(W]

MayHure 2048 une 20 7:300-E2

Students

Exhibit - Certificate of Physical Fitness for Participation in Athletics !

To be submitted to the Building Principal. (please print)

Student Sport/Activity

Parent/Guardian Home phone

Home address Celiphone

Emergency contact (relationship to student) " Contact phoﬁf@:

Physician ‘Physician phone

Medical History: Date of Birth:__ I—i@ht: Weight:

[] Heart condition [] Diabetes [] Astima: [ Requires child to self-administer medication
[ ] Epilepsy (] Allergies: [ ] Requires student to carry EpiPen®

[ ] Other P ~ R

List all medications (prescribedand over the counter)
Injuries (brief deseription and dates)
Surgeries (brief descriptignand dates)

Physical activity restrictions (brief description and duration)

The tootnotes should be removed betore the matenal 1s used

L Secondary schools should substitute the [HSA and IESA’s Pre-Participation Examination Form for this form when the
sport is [HSA regulated. It is available at: www.ihsa orm Resources Download-

eraMlad 053 7 - 1

7:300-E2 Page | of 2
© Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Mlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



I certify that:

1. My child is in good health and is capable of participating in the above sport or activity. No need
exists to limit my child’shis/her participation. I assume full responsibility for my child’shisther
physical condition and participation, and will notify you of any changes.

2. 1 have completed and submitted the Authorization for Medical Treatment form allowing the
school to seek medical treatment for my child in the event of a medical emergency when
reasonable attempts to contact me are unsuccessful.

3. If my child requires or may need medication while participating in athletics, I have completed
and submitted the School Medication Authorization Form.

Parent/Guardian signature Date

7:300-E2 Page 2 of 2

©2022 2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Oetaber-Navamber20-4-8 une 2023 7:305

Students

Student Athlete Concussions and Head Injuries !

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement a program to manage concussions and
head injuries suffered by students. The program shall:

1. Fully implement the Youth Sports Concussion Safety Act (YSCSA), that provides, without
limitation, each of the following: 2
a. The Board must appoint or approve member(s) of a Concussion Oversight Team for
the District. 3

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be Mfaoved before the policy is adopted

L Three Illinois statutes in the School Code have addressed student concussionss
1. The Youth Sports Com,ussmn Safen ~\Lt (MSCS, A) [05 ILCS 3:33 80—
ek——l—l-d The Act contains coneussion safety ‘recu\e:. for school boards and certam identifi ed staff
members. A school district must implement 5_»e+.—!§ LLCS 522-80 if it offers interscholastic athletic activities
or interscholastic athletics under the wn of a comeh (volunteer or school employee), athletic director, or
band leader. A school district may fged W' *pem 18 return-to-learn protocol for a student’s return to the
classroom after bie or she is beilucd"b haye expesieitced a concussion. “whether or not the concussion took
place while the studeniwas participmsitz in an interscholastic activiy.” 105 ILCS 5/22- 80(d). For a
comprehensive d::.t.ualﬁm ol s Act. # the IASB publication Checklist for Youth Sports Concussion Safety
Act | at:
www. iash.comy g edia dof chaeklisiconcussionsafetvact.pdf : - : 3
5 ot Hiefpful guidance for implementing this law is available from the Lurie Children’s
Hospltal bdﬁude fr)l”&(c ‘hers and School Professionals.
2. 105 ILES 75T, !ﬁmum‘!ﬁ La) all high school coaching personnel to complete online concussion awareness
trainig: and (b) all student atfiteres 1o view the 1L High School Association (THSA ) video about concussions.
3. 10FHECS 25:1.20, adiled by A U0 221 requires the IHSA to require all member districts that have certified
athlet talnu‘}. to hawe those trainers complete and submit a monthly report on student-athletes who have
sustai nu?dnom.u;w during: (12) a school-sponsored activity overseen by the athletic trainer; or (2) a school-
sponsored evenL afwhich the athletic director is made aware.

The Centers for Discase €ontrol and Prevention (CDC) explains that a concussion is a type of traumatic brain injury
caused by a bump, blow, or jolt to the head, or by a hit to the body that causes the head and brain to move rapidly back and
forth. See www.ede.gov/headsup index.himl. The CDC website contains excellent resources for the recognition, response,
and prevention of concussions, including the opportunity to order or download free educational materials on concussions that
can be distributed to parents, students, and coaches.

2 105 ILCS 5/22-80—added-bi—P-A98 245 am

3 1051LCS 5/22- 80(d)= - b Aphyswlan to the extentp0551ble
must be on the Team. If the school employs an athletlc trainer and/or nurse, they must be on the Team to the extent practicable.
The Team must include, at a minimum, one person who is responsible for implementing and complying with the return-to-
play and return-to-learn protocols adopted by the Team. Other licensed health care professionals may be appointed to serve
on the Team. The statute provides that the Team may be composed of only one person who need not be a licensed healthcare
professional, however, that person may not be a coach. [d.

As this is administrative/staff work rather than governance work, the best practice is to have the Concussion Oversight
Team be an administrative committee, but consult the board attorney for guidance. If it is a board committee, it must comply
with the Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120/1.02. For a discussion of the Open Meetings Act’s treatment of committees, see the
footnotes in 2: 150, Committees.

7:305 Page | of §

=

(9] Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[MMinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



b. The Concussion Oversight Team shall establish each of the following based on peer-
reviewed scientific evidence consistent with guidelines from the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention: 4

i. A return-to-play protocol govering a student’s return to interscholastic
athletics practice or competition following a force of impact believed to have
caused a concussion. The Superintendent or designee shall supervise an
athletic trainer or other person responsible for compliance with the return-to-
play protocol. 3

ii. A return-to-learn protocol governing a student’s return to the classroom
following a force of impact believed to have caused a concussion. The
Superintendent or designee shall supervise the person responsible for
compliance with the return-to-learn protocol. 6

c. Each student and the student’s parent/guardian shall be required to sign a concussion
information receipt form each school year before participating in an interscholastic
athletic activity. 7

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy: they dould bemmoved before the policy 1s adopted
4 105 ILCS 5/22-80(d). 4

5 The YSCSA¥outh-: - St : '-—\v-—_mtﬂlﬂh reguirements for @ student to return fo play following a
concussion Id. The supervisor of the person responsible foﬁ@_mp]ia* with the refurn-to-play protocol may not be a coach.
The student’s treating physician. physician assistant. advanced praetice registered nurse, or an athletic trainer working under
a physician’s supervision must evaluate and find ﬂ}kl.l it is safe for e student to retumn to play. The student’s parent/guardian
must sign a consent form that complies with SExtafor: prerequisites. In addition, the student must also complete the
requirements in the district’s return-to-play and lﬂ_’gm-fﬁm.pmzmﬂs. Thus. the district through its protocols may add
requirements for the student’s return, but may not d"!kte apy stateiesy requirements.

It is an open question whether the seturn-to-plagl protocol is limited to when the concussion occurred during an
interscholastic athletic activity because the stalute does not state “whether or not the concussion took place while the student
was participating in an intr:rsch_.;ﬁftic ulhlﬁc activitel’ It makes sense. however. to apply the return-to-play protocol
whenever a student suffers 2 cofgnssion beforsallewing him or her to participate in an interscholastic athletic activity. See
[HSA’s Post-concussion Cansm. i TPRILI %6

o T Y . gt R e

hitp: " ihsa.org/Resources Sports-

Sy = DATALI3 ~ B _ RSN
Medicine Concussior i

6 105 ILCS ﬂlamg)-.-aaa;ﬁﬁ; pALG0 245 dod-by- PAs OU_1R6.100-300 and H00- 147 o 4—119. The
supervisor of the persan responsible ar compliance with the retum-to-learn protocol may not be a coach. The retum-to-learn
protocol governs a stud@nt’s retum Wy the classroom after a concussion. whetlier or mot the concussion took place while the
student was participating Wian int#olastic athtetic activity. Guidance trom Lurie Children’s Hospital explains that recovery
from a concussion must be amdividualized process because no two concussions are the same. See Return to Learn after a
Concussion: A Guide for Teachers and  School  Professionals. Lurie  Children’s  Hospital, _ at:
www luriechildrens.ora/alobalassets/media pages specialties-—conditions/ programs/ concussIon-program documents/lurie-
returmn-to-learn-guide-201 7-updated.pdf. This Guide explains that a student’s full recovery depends on both cognitive rest and
physical rest. [t suggests using a multidisciplinary team to facilitate a student’s return to the classroom and provides examples
of accommodations and interventions. [t also stresses the importance of identifying a school staff member who will function
as a case manager or concussion management leader, such as a school nurse, athletic trainer, or school counselor. See THSA’s
Post-concussion Consent Form (RTP/RTL) at.
hitp, ihsaore Besources Sporis-Muedicine/ Concussion-Management € uneu

7 105 ILCS 5/22-80(c)—udded-by-P-A—D0 L5 amendse bR AB9ARE [nterscholastic athletic activity is defined in
Seenen 105 [LCS 522-80(a) as “any organized school-sponsored or school-sanctioned activity for students, generally outside
of school instructional hours, under the direction of a coach, athletic director, or band leader, including, but not limited to,
baseball, basketball, cheerleading, cross country track, fencing, field hockey, football, golf, gymnastics, ice hockey, lacrosse,
marching band, rugby, soccer, skating, softball, swimming and diving, tennis, track (indoor and outdoor), ultimate Frisbee,
volleyball, water polo, and wrestling. ~ The form must be approved by the —HHgh-Se soctatont{ HSAL See
kit thsaore Resvurces Sports-Madieine Coneusst n-Munagement Cuneussivon-Resourees, for [HSA Concussion Protocoly
and [HSA Sports Medicine Acknowledsement & Consent Form (Concussion, PES, Asthma Medication).

wn-Resuurees, -

7:305 Page 2 of §
Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

{llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

(@]



d. A student shall be removed from an interscholastic athletic practice or competition
immediately if any of the following individuals believes that the student sustained a
concussion during the practice and/or competition: a coach, a physician, a game
official, an athletic trainer, the student’s parent/guardian, the student, or any other
person deemed appropriate under the return-to-play protocol. 8

e. A student who was removed from interscholastic athletic practice or competition shall
be allowed to retumn only after all statutory prerequisites are completed, including
without limitation, the return-to-play and return-to-learn protocols developed by the
Concussion Oversight Team. An athletic team coach or assistant coach may not
authorize a student’s return-to-play or return-to-learn. 9

f. The followmg 1nd1v1duals must complete concussion training as specified in the ¥euth

AetYSCSA: all coaches or assistant coaches (whether

volunteer ora dlStl’lCt employee) of interscholastic athletic activities; nurses, licensed
healthcare professionals or non-licensed healthcare professionals who serve on the
Concussion Oversight Team (whether or not they serve on a volunteer basis); athletic
trainers; game officials of interscholastic athlglic activities; and physicians who serve
on the Concussion Oversight Team. !¢

g. The Board shall approve school-speciffe eme@cy action plans for interscholastic
athletic activities to address the serig@8 injuries and acute medical conditions in which
a student’s condition may deteriogate rapidly. 1!

2. Comply with the concussion protocolS, policigs. and by-laws of the Illinois High School
Association (IHSA). including its Protocol fo# fmplementation of NFHS Sports Playing Rules
for Concussions, which includes its Rerum to Blav (RTP) Policy.12 These specifically require
that:

The footnotes are not intended to Hep.lrt ofﬂu. adepred pnhcy they shouid be removed before the policy is adopted
8 105 ILCS 522+ 4 - 5,
9 105 ILCS 5 n—“ﬂfj,?-—-*éuw‘t&.—““ 215_amended-by P AS-90 186100 300 and 100 747 o | 119 Most

students with a comgussion witl not meed a formal 304 plam or individualized educanon prooram contact the board attorney
whenever one is requesied or the wtuhl s svmptoms are prolonged.

10 105 1LCS 527804 )— 364, Individuals covered by this
training mandate must take amu COUFSE ﬁom an dulhonzed trammg prowder prior to serving on a Concussion Oversight
Team (Team) and at least onceevery two years (or if not serving un the Team, at least once every two years). See the footnotes
in 5:100, Staff Development Program. Physicians on Teams are required, to the greatest extent practicable, to periodically
take an appropriate medical course on concussions. 105 ILCS 5/22-80(h)(3).

Note: Licensed healthcare professionals includes nurses and licensed clinical psychologists, physical therapists,
occupational therapists, physicians’ assistants, and athletic trainers working under the superv1510n of a physician. 105 ILCS
5/22-80(b). Non-licensed healthcare professionals is not specifically defined. Therefore, it is not entirely clear if a Team may
include an individual, i.e., a building principal that is not mandated to take the training. As a maiter of best practice and to
reduce liability, all Team members should receive the training; however, consult with the board attomey for further guidance.

11 (05 1L.CS 5/22-80(i). amended by P.A. 102-1006—sdded- = A-84.4%6 A template is
available on the IHSA website under Emergency Action Plan (EAP) Resourcev at

. thsaore Resouress Sg -Medicine C oncussion-Management Concussion-Resources.

12 The /US4 Protocol for Implementation of NFHS Sports Playing Rules for Concussions
(http: ihsa.org/documents sportsMedicine/Concussion%20Prolocols.pdf)  contains  concussion  information, provides
instructions when a student athlete sustains an apparent concussion, and includes a Return to Play (RTP) Poltcy The Return
to Play (RTP) Policy addresses the requirements for returning a student athlete to play after he or she exhibits signs, symptos,
or behaviors of a concussion.

7:305 Page 3 of 5
© Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



a. A student athlete who exhibits signs, symptoms, or behaviors consistent with a
concussion in a practice or game shall be removed from participation or competition
at that time.

b. A student athlete who has been removed from an interscholastic contest for a possible
concussion or head injury may not return to that contest unless cleared to do so by a
physician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches in Illinois or a certified
athletic trainer.

¢. If not cleared to return to that contest, a student athlete may not return to play or
practice until the student athlete has provided his or her school with written clearance
from a physician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches in Illinois, advanced
practice registered nurse, physician assistant or a certified athletic trainer working in
conjunction with a physician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches in
Mlinois.13

3. Require that all high school coaching personnel, including the head and assistant coaches, and
athletic directors obtain online concussion certification by completing online concussion
awareness training in accordance with 103 ILCS 25/1445. 14

4. Require all student athletes to view the I[HSA videa/@Bgut concussions. 15

5. Inform student athletes and their parent(s)/guardian(s) about this policy in the Agreement to
Participate or other written instrument that @ student atfilete and his or her parent/guardian
must sign before the student is allowedl to participate Mia practice or interscholastic
competition. 16 '

6. Provide coaches and student athletes and theipparent(s)/guardian(s) with educational materials
from the [HSA regarding the natuse and risk @f concussions and head injuries, including the
risks inherent in continuing to play aféra.concussion or head injury. 17

7. Include a requirement for staff memibers & nefiy the parent/guardian of a student who exhibits
symptoms consistent witliithat of a €eficussion. 13

8. Include a requiremengfor staff membess to distribute the [1l. Dept. of Public Health concussion
brochure to any gludent of the paremt/guardian of a student who may have sustained a

i

The footnores are notdmiended to be ﬁrf of the adopted policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

13 105 ILCS 5/22-80g)(4)—uiended-by P A 100300 and-Lo0- T e and 225 [LCS 65/20-10—arended-by
PA 100513 PA. 100-5| Tamended the Nurse Practice Act to add regisrered to the definition of advanced practice registered
nurse; P.A. 100-747 a4 W similarly amended Seetien-[05 ILCS 5.22-80.

14 105 [LCS 25/1.15(b) requires high school coaching personnel and athletic directors hired before 8-18-14 to have been
certified by 8-19-15. Coaching personnel and athletic directors hired on or after 8-19-14 must be certified before the starting
date of their position.

15 105 ILCS 25/1.15(e).

16 Required by 23 [ll. Admin.Code §1.530(b). [HSA drafted a sample Concussion Information Sheet, which is included
within the [HSA Sports Medicine Acknowledgement & Consent Form and has been incorporated into 7:300-E1, Agreement to
Participate. See hitp: ihsa.org Resources Sports-Medicine € oncussic n-Manacement Concussion-Resourees. -

An ISBE rule defines health-related information to include a concussion policy acknowledgment 23 [ll. Admin.Code
§375.10. The acknowledgment, therefore, must be kept with the student’s schoo! student records as a temporary record. 23
[11.Admin.Code §375.40.

17 IHSA has produced educational materials on concussions for coaches, parents/guardians, student athletes, and the
school and health care providers on concussions. See:

ety ihsa,org Resourees Sports-Medicine: € oncussion-Maniagement £ iulsson-Resuueces,

18 This provision is optional.

7:305 Page 4 of 5
© Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
INinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



concussion, regardless of whether or not the concussion occurred while the student was
participating in an interscholastic athletic activity, if available. 19

[For high school districts that belong to the IHSA and have certified athletic trainers.]

9. Include a requirement for certified athletic trainers to complete and submit a monthly report to
the IHSA on student-athletes who have sustained a concussion during: 1) a school-sponsored
activity overseen by the athletic trainer; or 2) a school-sponsored event of which the athletic
director is made aware. 20

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/22-80.
105 ILCS 25/1.15, [nterscholastic Athletic Organization Act.
20 ILCS 2310/2310-307. Civil Administrative Code of lllinois.

CROSS REF.: 4:170 (Safety), 5:100 (Staff Development Program), 7:300 (Extracurricular
Athletics)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy: they should be removed before the policy 1s adopted

19 Required by 20 ILCS 2310/2310-307 ~added-by—RA 130747 a5 1 119 The [1l. Dept. of Public Health did not
develop its own brochure. but it refers to the CDC's Meuds Up campaign brochures \\hl\.h include concussion fact ,hu.h for
athletes. parents, coaches. and school professionals, see https:/dph.illinois.
violence-prevention/concussion.itml.

20 Required by 105 ILCS 25/1.20—added-byP-A-—08-831 for high school districts that belong to the [HSA and have
certified athletic trainers.

7:305 Page 5 of 5

(9] Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
Hlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomney before use.



OctobeeNovember20-+3June 2023 7:305-AP

Students

Administrative Procedure - Program for Managing Student Athlete Concussions and
Head Injuries

State Law
1. The Youth Sports Concussion Safety Act (YSCSA) contains concussion safety directives for
School Boards and certain 1dent1ﬁed staff members. 105 ILCS 5/22-80—added-by-P-A—09-245:
747, A School District must implement-See- 105 [LCS
5/22-80 if it offers mterscholastlc athletlc activities or interscholastic athletics under the direction
of a coach (volunteer or school employee), athletic director, or band leader. An interscholastic
athletic activity “means any organized school-sponsored or school-sanctioned activity for students,
generally outside of school instructional hours, under the diFéction of a coach, athletic director, or
band leader, including, but not limited to, baseball, bask@tball, cheerleading, cross country track,
fencing, field hockey, football, golf, gymnastics, i€ ho&‘y lacrosse, marching band, rugby,
soccer, skating, softball, swimming and diving, tenais, track (m@oor and outdoor), ultimate Frisbee,
volleyball, water polo, and wrestling. All intersefolastic athletics. are deemed to be interscholastic
activities.” 105 TLCS 5/22-80(b).
A School District may need to implement nmuuﬂbJearn protocol for a student’s return to the
classroom after he or she is believed to have e&penenced a concussion, “whether or not the
concussion took place while the smm participating in an interscholastic activity.” 105 ILCS
5/22-80(d). For a comprehensive disessionofi this Act, see the [ASB publication, Checklist for
Youth Sports Chcuprfon Safety Act, at:
s L CReSklisteonassiensafervactadfwww.iasb. com/iasb/media/document

s/ Lh&Lk'lb[LOﬁL ussionsaferv ' fal guidance for implementing this law plus training
modules are available from thg; ie Children’s Hospital’s 4 Guide for Teachers and School
Professionals, also available@Sing the ﬂ%ou e link

2. 105 TILCS 25/1, wres all high school coaching personnel to complete online concussion
awareness trapnnﬂ andi{b) a ﬁ;dent athlct»s to view the IHSA video about concussions.

3. 105 ILCS 25/1.20- . requires the [HSA to require all member districts that
have certifiedathletic trahers to have those trainers complete and submit a monthly report on
student-athletes who haye" sustained a concussion duri ng: (1) a school-sponsored activity overseen
by the athletic rram’d—‘;ef (2) a school-sponsored event of which the athletic director is made aware,
Concussion - A complex pathophysiological process affecting the brain caused by a traumatic
physical force or impact to the head or body, which may include temporary or prolonged altered
brain function resulting in physical, cognitive, or emotional symptoms or altered sleep patterns and
which may or may not involve a loss of consciousness. 105 ILCS 5/22-80. See also: Returning to
School — After a  Concussion: A  Fact Sheet for  School  Professionals,
www.cde.gov/headsup/pdfs/schools/tbi_returning_to_school-a.pdf.

4. 20 TLCS 2310/2310-207—added-by-P-A100-747 eff 149 requires: (a) the TII. Dept. of Public
Health (IDPH), subject to appropriation, to develop, publish, and disseminate a brochure to educate
the general public on the effects of concussions in children and discuss how to look for concussion
warning signs in children, and (b) schools to distribute this brochure, free of charge, to any child
or parent/guardlan of a child who may have sustained a concussion, regardless of whether or not
the concussion occurred while the child was participating in an interscholastic athletic activity, if
available. The IDPH has adopted as its brochure the CDC's Heads Up campaign brochures which

7:305-AP Page | of 9

.

< Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



include concussion fact sheets for athletes, parents. coaches, and school professionals. see

hitps://dph.illinois.gov topics-services prevention-wellness: injurv-violence-

prevention/concussion.html.

Actor

Action

School Board

Adopt a Board policy on concussions. See policy 7:305, Student
Athlete Concussions and Head Injuries.

Approve members of the Concussion Oversight Team. 105 ILCS
5/22-80(d).

Approve school-specific emergency action plan(s) for interscholastic
athletic activities to address serious injuries and acute medical
conditions that may cause a student’s condition to deteriorate rapidly.
105 ILCS 5/22-80(i).

Monitor the effectiveness of Board policy 7:305, Student Athlete
Concussions and Head Injurigs, by discussing with the
Superintendent or designegiig type of data the Board needs to
monitor the policy, estaﬂf'shmétmomtonng calendar, and reviewing
the data provided E&ﬁe Supennleﬂgm or designee.

Superintendent or designee

_.! = omply
opted

Identify individuéls to semwe on the C oncussion Oversight Team;
request Board apgmovaki 105 ILCS 5/22-8(d).

A physician, to fheextent possible, must be on the Team. If the
sch éﬁﬂ% an athletic trainer and/or nurse, he or she must be
on th&’]‘e 16 the extent practicable. The Team must include, at
a minil , one person who is responsible for implementing and
' with the return-to-play and return-to-learn protocols
‘the Team. Other licensed health care professionals

) ﬁﬁ@*wpomted to serve on the Team. The Team may be

4 composed of only one person who need not be a licensed

healthcare professional, but may not be a coach.

Note: As this is administrative/staff work rather than governance
work, the best practice is to have the Concussion Oversight Team
be an administrative committee, but consult the Board Attorney
for guidance. If it is a Board committee, it must comply with the
Open Meetings Act, 5 [LCS 120/1.02. For a discussion of the
Open Meetings Act’s treatment of committees, see the footnotes
in Board policy 2:150, Committees.

Require that all high school coaching personnel, including the head
and assistant coaches, and athletic directors obtain an online
concussion certification in accordance with 105 TLCS 25/1.15.

Coaching personnel and athletic directors hired on or after 8-19-
14 must be certified before their position’s starting date.

Require that the following 1nd1v1duals complete concuss10n trammg
as specified in the YSCSA-¥

coaches or assistant coaches (whether volunteer ora DlStl‘lCt

7:305-AP

@I

Page 2 of 9

Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service

[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Actor

Action

employee) of interscholastic athletic activities; nurses, physicians,
other licensed health professionals and non-licensed health care
professionals who serve on the Concussion Oversight Team; athletic
trainers; and game officials of interscholastic athletic activities. 105
ILCS 5/22-80(h).

Individuals covered by this training mandate must initially have
completed the training prior to serving on the Concussion
Oversight Team and at least once every two years (or if not on the
Team, at least once every two years). See the footnotes in policies
5:100, Staff Development Program, and 7:305, Student Athlete
Concussions and Head Injuries.

Identify the staff members who are responsible for student athletes,
including Building Principals. afid require that they comply with
IHSA eoncussion prOtGCOlSFwIiCiES and by-laws, including its
Protocol for Implementation iﬁg}a’F HS Sports Playing Rules for
Concussions, at:

WWW, :hsa_ogg docwntm sgorbme&me ihsa_protocols_for_nfhs_co

Along with the Mwﬁ! ncipal(s), develop and maintain school-
specific emergency agtion plan(s) for interscholastic athletic activities
to addr@mu, injuriés and acute medical conditions that may
cause a stiident’s €ondition to deteriorate rapidly; present it/them to
the Board f& ﬁprovaif 105 1ILCS 22-80(i).

y rHol‘Q‘lhe sta@members responsible for implementing this procedure.

Concussion Oversight “,q‘

B of the following based on peer-reviewed scientific
Sl'zdence consistent with guidelines from the Centers for Disease
ontrol and Prevention (CDC). 105 ILCS 5/22-80(d). See

wwa. cde.gov/headsup/index.html.

l. A return-to-play protocol governing a student’s return to
interscholastic athletic practice or competition following a
force of impact believed to have caused a concussion. The
Superintendent or designee (not a coach) must supervise an
athletic trainer or other person responsible for compliance with
the return-to-play protocol. 105 ILCS 5/22-80(g).

The student’s treating physician or an athletic trainer working
under a physician’s supervision must evaluate and find that it
is safe for the student to return to play. The student’s
parent/guardian must sign a consent form that complies with
statutory prerequisites. THSA’s website contains a form for
this, Post-concussion Consent Form (RTP/RTL), at:

ConeussionResoureesaspx  http://ihsa.org/Resources/Sports-
Medicine/Concussion-Management/Concussion-Resources.

7:305-AP

©

Page 3 of 9

Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

Tilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use




Actor

Action

It is an open question whether the return-to-play protocol is
limited to when the concussion occurred during an
interscholastic athletic activity, because the statute does not
state “whether or not the concussion took place while the
student was participating in an interscholastic athletic
activity.” It makes sense, however, to apply the return-to-play
protocol whenever a student suffers a concussion before
allowing him or her to participate in an interscholastic athletic
activity.
2. A return-to-learn protocol governing a student’s return to the
classroom following a force of impact believed to have caused
a concussion. The Superintendent or designee (not a coach)
must supervise the person responsible for compliance with the
return-to-learn protocok 105 ILCS 5/22-80(g).
The return-to-learn grotocol governs a student’s return to the
classroom after aleongussion, whether or not the concussion
took place while thé student was participating in an
interscholagic  athletic m\rlty Guidance from Lurie
Childreg®s Hospital explains that recovery from a concussion
must be u;ndbﬁuahzed process, because no two concussions
are the same. see Return to Learn after a Concussion: A Guide
for, T eachers ‘apd School Professionals, Lurie Children’s
&)sﬁr at:
 Luffechilidrens. ore/ globalassets/media/pages: specialties-
ﬁ?mna programs, concussion-program/documents; lurie-
ﬂ-to learn-guide-20| 7-updated.pdf. This Guide explains
that a student’s full recovery depends on both cognitive and
W phvsical rest. It suggests using a multidisciplinary team to
F _ facilitate a student’s return to the classroom and provides
- examples of accommmodations and interventions. It also
. stresses the importance of identifying a school staff member
" who will function as a case manager or concussion
. management leader, e.g., a school nurse, athletic trainer, or
school counselor.

designees

Building Principals or

Along with the Superintendent, develop and maintain school-specific
emergency action plan(s) (EAP) for interscholastic athletic activities
to address serious injuries and acute medical conditions that may
cause a student’s condition to deteriorate rapidly; present the plan(s)
to the Superintendent who will present it/them to the Board for
approval. 105 ILCS 22-80(i).

A template is available on the [HSA website under Emergency
Actlon Plan (EAP) Resources, at:
http:./ihsa.org Resources Spo rts-Medicine Concussion-

_\«I_mau:mum { -.m\._.n]-_!.—E{_\.__wu_.r“n.

7:305-AP

Q

Page 4 of 9

Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
{llinois Association ot School Boards. All Rights Reserved.

Please review this material with your school board attorney betore use.




Actor Action

Ensure the EAP is distributed to all appropriate personnel and
conspicuously posted at all venues utilized by the school. Id. at (4) &
(5.

Ensure the EAP is reviewed annually by all athletic trainers. tirst
responders (including, but not limited to. emergency medical
dispatchers), coaches. school nurses. athletic directors and volunteers
for interscholastic athletic activities. Id. at (6). amended by P.A. 102-
1006.

Require coaches and assistant coaches, trainers, and other staff
members who are responsible for student athletes to:

1. Review and abide by the [HSA protocols, polices, and by-laws
regarding  concussions  and head injuries, at:

-{ * e = T
Responibilities. -

2. Provide ‘ﬁormation to &grudent athletes and their
parentsi@uardianseach school year about concussions and
otherwisé perform all duties identified by law or described in

r,hns proceduse,

Schael distric ist include information about concussions in

enitath hlete agreement, contract, code, or written

L nt tﬁm student athlete and his or her parent/guardian

'qull'Ed to sign before participating in a practice or

seholastic competition. IHSA drafted a sample

eucitssion Information Sheet, which is included within the

IHSA Sports Medicine Acknowledgement & Consent Form at:

hitp::/ithsa.org/Resources 590!‘3-\«!%&1‘,1%@ Concussion-

Management Concussion-Resources. It has been incorporated

into 7:300-E1, Agreement to Participate.

P 3. Distribute the [DPH concussion brochure, if available, to any

student or the parent/guardian of a student who may have

sustained a concussion, regardless of whether or not the
concussion occurred while the student was participating in an
interscholastic athletic activity. 20 ILCS 2310/2310-307. The

IDPH has adopted as its brochure the CDC's Heads Up

campaign brochures which include concussion fact sheets for

athletes. parents. coaches. and school professionals. see
https://dph.illinois.gov/topics-services, prevention-
wellness/injury-violence-prevention/concussion.html.

Maintain appropriate school student records for student athletes.

Although a concussion policy acknowledgment is no longer
required, an ISBE rule defines health-related information to
include a concussion policy acknowledgment. 23 111.Admin.Code

7:305-AP Page 5 of 9
C222 Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Actor

Action

§375.10. The acknowledgment must be kept with the student’s
school student records as a temporary record. 23 I1l. Admin.Code
§375.40.

All written information concerning an injury to a student athlete,
including without limitation, a return-to-play clearance, must be
kept with the student’s school student records as a temporary
record. 23 [1l.Admin.Code §§375.10 and 375.40. An ISBE rule
defines health-related information to include “other health-
related information that is relevant to school participation, e.g.,
nursing services plan, failed screenings, yearly sports physical
exams, interim health histories for sports.” 23 I11. Admin.Code
§375.10.

Each student participant in
an interscholastic athletic
activity and his or her
parent/guardian

Each school year, sign a concusSion information receipt form before
participating in an mterschoisﬁc athletic activity. 105 ILCS 5/22-
80(e).

Interscholastic agtetic acti vrrns defined on the first page of this
procedure. 1051L.CS 5/22-80(bY.

The form n‘!ﬁt be approved by IHSA. See_

huap: ihsa \szhﬂuf\.uh Sports-Medicine Concussion
Magagemen: Cof@ission-Resources, for [HSA Concussmn
' ‘_,I;HSA &;urtx \vIc.Lille. -\\.knouladu‘.mgnl &

_ Mﬂﬁaily vfﬂa [HSA’s video about concussions (applicable to only

hloh-jchool stadent athletes). 105 [LCS 25/1.15(¢).

- mmiedgeabk about the concussion symptoms and ask
'Wesnons of any athletic staff member.

In’ﬁ,,m the coach or other supervisor about any trauma to the

- student’s head and/or any symptoms of a concussion or confirmed
/| concussion regardless of where and when it occurred.

Follow the District’s return-to-play and/or return-to-learn protocol(s),
as applicable, whenever the student suffers a concussion.

Coaches or Assistant
Coaches (whether volunteer
or a District employee) of
interscholastic athletic
activities;

Nurses and Physicians who
serve on the Concussion
Oversight Team,;

Athletic Trainers; and

Complete concussion training as specified in the YSCSA-¥outh-
Sperts-ConeussionSafaryAet 105 [LCS 5/22-80(h).

Interscholastic athletic activity is defined on the first page of this
procedure. 105 TLCS 5/22-80(b).

Individuals covered by this training mandate must complete the
training prior to serving on the Concussion Oversight Team and
at least once every two years (or if not on the Team, at least once
every two years). See the footnotes in policy 5:100, Staff
Development Program.

7:305-AP

2023

Page 6 of 9

Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

Hlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Actor

Action

Game Officials of
interscholastic athletic
activities

Complete IHSA’s online concussion certification program (required
only of high school coaching personnel including, without limitation,
athletic directors). 105 ILCS 25/1.15.

Learn concussion symptoms and danger signs. See
http://ihsa.ore/documents sportsMedicine/current :u:mrls %2l
e¥% "UConm.m”udUdnd“ 10*\Lk00\\ludtlum»ﬂt ndr RS

J\«[cdlcm

www.cdc.gov -'hcadsun. \«'oulhspons/ 0fﬁ<:1als.html.

Coaches and Assistant
Coaches of interscholastic
athletic activities

Athletic Trainers

Other staff members who are
responsible for student
athletes

Each school year, have student athletes and their parents/guardians, or
another person with legal authority to make medical decisions for the
student, sign a form “that acknowledges receiving and reading written
information that explains concussion prevention, symptoms,

treatment, and oversight and that includes guidelines for safely
resuming participation in amathletic activity following a concussion.’
The form must be approwéd by BHSA. 105 ILCS 5/22-80(e).

Each school year, mﬁt‘m student athietes and their parents/guardians
about concussionsf@nd head injuries by:

1. Giving ~m aopy of the IHSA’s Concussion Information
Sheet at tkﬁn e they sign exhibit 7:300-E1, Agreement to
Paiticipate. O other agreement, contract, code, or written
%tm that 2 $radent athlete and his or her parent/guardian
a@rec&f&?ﬁugm before the student is allowed to participate

ctice or interscholastic competition. The Concussion

[nfoﬁ_;anon Sheet, is included within the IHSA Sports

Med&e Acknowledgement & Consent Form at.

“wWW.ihsa.org/Resources/DownloadCenter.aspx.

. Using educational material provided by IHSA to educate

", student athletes and parents/guardians about the nature and risk
of concussions and head injuries. including the risks inherent
in continuing to play after a concussion or head injury. See
www.ihsa.ora/Resources/Sports-Medicine/Concussion-
Management Concusmon-
Resourceswivn
aﬂ-*rl-aﬁaﬁememﬂzeﬁ The Gemer—ter—-gheese—eeme{—%d
PreventionCDC offers free printed educational materials on
concussions that can be ordered or downloaded and distributed
to parents, students, and coaches. See
www.cdc.gov/headsup/index.html.

Each school vear. participate in the review of the EAP. as directed by
the Building Principal or designee

Remove a student from an interscholastic athletic practice or
competition immediately if any of the following individuals believes
that the student sustained a concussion during the practice and/or
competition: a coach, a physician, a game official, an athletic trainer,

7:305-AP

Q

Page 7 of 9

_Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.




Actor Action

the student’s parent/guardian, the student, or any other person deemed
appropriate under the retum-to-play protocol. 105 ILCS 5/22-80(f).

Comply with the IHSA concussion management guidelines, including
its Protocol for Implementation of NFHS Sports Playing Rules for
Concussion, which includes its Return to Play (RTP) Policy, at:
www.ihsa.org/documents/sportsmedicine/ihsa_protocols_for_nths_co
ncussion_playing_rule.pdf. These guidelines, in summary, require
that:

1. A student athlete who exhibits signs, symptoms, or behaviors
consistent with a concussion (e.g., loss of consciousness,
headache, dizziness, confusion, or balance problems) in a
practice or game shall be removed from participation or
competition at that times

2. A student athlete.'Who has been removed from an
interscholastic contesgfor a possible concussion or head injury
may not returnto that gentest unless cleared to do so by a
physician ligensed to prac&;e medicine in all its branches in
Illinois owa certified athletic ®ainer.

3. Ifnot cleared togeturn to that contest, a student athlete may not
return to play®r practice until the student athlete has provided
his or her sehool with written clearance from a physician
&éﬁﬁd to pra!ﬁee medicine in all its branches in Illinois,
advanced prastice registered nurse, physician assistant or a

; eﬁ@d athletic trainer working in conjunction with a

[ . phySician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches in

- lllinois, and has completed the return-to- play protocol in

b | & Gampliance with the 5 o

'é[f_- i AetY SCSA, 105 ILCS 5/22-80(g).

Inflarm the student athlete’s parent/guardian about a possible
coneussion and give the parent/guardian a fact sheet on concussion,
at:-

px www.ihsa.ore/Resources/ Sports-Medicine/ Concussion-

Management Concussion-Resources.

Allow a student who was removed from interscholastic athletic
practice or competition to return only after all statutory prerequisites
are completed, including without limitation, completing the return-to-
play and return-to-learn protocols developed by the Concussion
Oversight Team. An athletic team coach or assistant coach may not
authorize a student’s return-to-play or return-to-learn. 105 ILCS 5/22-
80(g).

Most students with a concussion will not need a formal 504 plan
or individualized education program; contact the Board Attorney
whenever one is requested or the student’s symptoms are
prolonged.

7:305-AP Page 8 of 9
< )22 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.




Actor Action

Athletic trainers [high school | Complete a monthly report on student-athletes who have sustained a
only] concussion during: (1) a school-sponsored activity overseen by the
athletic trainer; or (2) a school-sponsored event of which the athletic
director is made aware. Do not identify student names in the monthly
report. 105 ILCS 25/1.20.

Submit this monthly report to the interscholastic athletic organization
to which the school belongs.

7:305-AP -Page 9 of 9
! ©2022-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Mllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



Masbupe 2048 lune 2023 7:330

Students

Student Use of Buildings - Equal Access !
[For high school and unit districts]

Student groups or clubs that are not school sponsored are granted free use of school premises for a
meeting or series of meetings under the following conditions: 2

1. The meeting is held during those non-instructional times identified by the Superintendent or
designee for non-curricular student groups, clubs, or organizations to meet. Non-instructional

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy: they should hgemoved before the policy is adopted.

1 State or federal law controls this policy’s content. This policy cmm:, an area in which the law is unsettled. This
sample policy implements the Equal Access Act (EAA ) 120 US.C. m - seq). The EAA applies to public secondary
schools that receive federal financial assistance. The policy should beadopted !&d,gsmus with secondary school(s) that wish
to establish or already have a limited open forum as defined :n.‘c EAA and quefed below. The policy allows non-school
sponsored student groups to meet on school premises, free obﬁarge on the same basiis that non-curriculum related student
groups are allowed to meet. Hence the policy is named, EM Accesy,

The EAA has no applicability to the community’s Lmﬁschml' facilities. See sample policy 8:20, Community Use of
School Facilities.

The EAA requires a secondary school to granufair oppurtunltyq equal access to students who wish to conduct a meeting
within a limited open forum without regard to thum politicall philosophical. or other content of the speech at such a
meeting. A secondary school has a limited open fagum w it “grants an offering to or opportunity for one or more
noncurriculum related student groups to meet on § I ptmlscs &trmg noninstructional time.” 20 U.S.C. §4071(a). Thus,
the equal access obligation is lngﬂered“l secondgy school atlows ene non-curriculum related group, €.g., a sports teaimn,
to meet.

The EAA’s requirements rlybe awuﬁ bv c[umg the forum, i.e.. by refusing to permit any non-curriculum related
group to use its facilities Ithemﬁygealmg m). But creating a closed forum is difficult given the U.S. Supreme
Court’s expansive mterpretanon of RN iculum related,

A student group |s m:ﬂ:;mqm{ if it does not directly relate to the body of courses offered by the school. Bid.

. Mdergens, 496 LS. 226 (1990). Schoel officials cannot avoid triggering the EAA’'s
equal access requiggments by rylng;F( purpeses of the siudent clubs it.wants to allow to some broadly defined educational

goal. Likewise, it iﬁ.not matter wilgther the school sponsors. recognizes. or supports the student group — the Act’s equal
access requirements “‘*be triggered whenever any student group is allowed to meet that is unrelated to the curriculum. The
Mergens Court said that 3ﬂ\dem.!l5up directly relates to a school’s curriculum only if:

1. The group’s subjiet matter is actually taught, or will soon be taught. in a regularly offered course;

2. The group’s subject marter concerns a body of courses as a whole; or

3. Participation in the group is required for a particular course or results in academic credit.

Just as a non-curriculum related determination is fact-sensitive, so is determining whether a particular time period is non-
instructional time. A morning activity period was found to be non-instructional time making a high school’s refusal to allow
a student Bible club to meet in school during that period a violation of the EAA. Donovan v. Punxsutawney Area Sch. Bed.,
336 F.3d 211 (3d. Cir. 2003). The Ninth Circuit reached the opposite conclusion in a similar case. Prince v. Jacoby, 303 F.3d
1074 (9th Cir. 2002).

A school violates the EAA by allowing some student groups to meet on campus but refusing similar access to gay-lesbian
clubs. Colin v. Orange Unified Sch. Dist,, 83 F.Supp.2d 1135 (C.D. Cal. 2000); White County High School Peers Rising [n
Diverse Ed. v. White Cty. Sch. Dist., 2006 WL 1991990- (D. Ga. 2006); SAGE v. Osseo Area Sch. Dist. No. 279, 2007 WL
2885810 (D. Minn. 2007). But see Caudillo v. Lubbock [nd. Sch. Dist., 311 F.Supp.2d 550 (N.D.Tex. 2004)(school did not
violate the EAA when it denied a gay student club’s request for access because the “maintain order and discipline” exception
applied). Note the U.S. Supreme Court refused to apply N.J.’s public accommodation law to the Boy Scouts because forcing
the Boy Scouts to accept a homosexual as a member would violate the Scouts’ freedom of expressive association. Boy Scouts
of Amer. v. Dale, 530 U.S. 120 (2000).

2 All of the listed conditions are from the EAA, except for 10 and 1 1.

7:330 Page | of 2
< Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Mlinois Association ot School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use,



time means time set aside by the school before actual classroom instruction begins or after
actual classroom instruction ends. Non-curricular student groups are those student groups,
clubs, or organizations that do not directly relate to the curriculum. 3

2. All non-curriculum related student groups that are not District sponsored receive substantially

the same treatment. 4

The meeting is student-initiated, meaning that the request is made by a student.

Attendance at the meeting is voluntary.

The school will not sponsor the meeting.

School employees are present at religious meetings only in a non-patticipatory capacity.

The meeting and/or any activities during the meeting do not materially or substantially interfere

with the orderly conduct of educational activities.

8. Non-school persons do not direct, conduct, control, or regularly attend the meetings.

9. - The school retains its authority to maintain order and discipline. 3

10. A school staff member or other responsible adult is present in a supervisory capacity.

11. The Superintendent or designee approves the meeting ogseries of meetings.

N W

The Superintendent or designee shall develop administrative grocedures to implement this policy.

LEGAL REF. 20 U.S.C. §4071 et seq., Equal Ageess Act.
Bd. of Ed. of Westside Commuiiity Sch. Dist. v. Mergens, 496 U.S. 226 (1990).
Gernetzke v. Kenosha Unifiéd Sch. Dist. No. 1. 274 F.3d 464 (7th Cir. 2001), cert.
denied, 535 U.S. 1017. g

CROSS REF.: 7:10 (Equal Education@, Opportumities). 8:20 (Community Use of School
Facilities) '

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

390 U.S.C. §4072.

4 The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals found that a school district violated the EAA and the student’s First Amendment
rights by denying her Bible club the same rights and benefits as other student clubs. Prince v. Jacoby, 303 F.3d 1074 (9th Cir.
2002). Nothing in the decision suggests that the schoo! was required to sponsor the Bible club and financially support it.
However, the school board voluntarily gave “associated student body” clubs certain benefits that were denied the plaintiff’s
religious club. Thus, the district unlawfully treated one non-curriculum related student club differently from another non-
curriculum related student club.

Sin response to a school’s invitation for all student groups to paint murals in the school hallway, a Bible club sought to
include a large cross. The school principal forbade the cross in order to avoid conflicts among students — there was evidence
the student body contained Satanic and neo-Nazi adherents. The principal’s decision was insulated from liability under the
EAA by the Act’s provision that “nothing in [the Act] shall be construed to limit the authority of the school ... to maintain
order and discipline on school premises.” Gernetzke v. Kenosha Unified Sch, Dist. No. |, 274 F.3d 464 (7th Cir. 2001), cert.
denied, 535 U.S. 1017 (2002).

7:330 Page 2 of 2
Q Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



MayJure204H8June 2023 7:330-E

Students

Exhibit - Application for Student Groups that Are Not School Sponsored to Request
Free Use of School Premises for Meetings

[For high school and unit districts]

A student must complete this form to request the free use of school premises for a meeting of a student
group that is not school-sponsored. Only one student needs to complete the application. Submit the
completed application to the Building Principal at least one week before the first meeting. When a copy
of this form is returned to the student with the necessary approval signature, the group may use the
designated school premises, at the identified time, for its meetings.

Student applicant

Student group

Program/Meeting

during non-instructional time identified by the Building Principal.
ore classroom instruction begins or after it ends.

3. In scheduling g 0f school premises, activities associated with the District’s educational
program have prid¥ty over the activitics of any other organization. Otherwise, school premises
will be available on a first come, first served basis.

4. The assigned room and its contents must be restored to its original condition and configuration
after each use. Only modular furniture may be moved. Nothing shall be adhered or affixed to
walls that will leave marks. Any decorations used shall be removed after the meeting. The
contents of any assigned room are the property of the School District or teacher and shall not
be handled or removed.

5. Before any meeting, a member of the non-school-sponsored student group must give the office
the names of anyone attending the meeting who is neither a student nor a school staff member.
All visitors must register at the school office before proceeding to any scheduled student
meeting. Non-school individuals may not regularly attend meetings. Any visitors to school

7:330-E Page | of 2
©2022-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
TMinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



property are also expected to follow Board policy 8:30. Visirors to and Conduct on School
Property.
6. The following mediums are available on request to announce group meetings:

e Office bulletin board containing announcements
o Public address system

e Student newspaper

» School or District “#website

7. No activity is allowed on school grounds that would violate the student disciplinary policy. Any
student who engages in misconduct is subject to disciplinary action, including suspension and
expulsion.

8. A school staff member or other responsible adult must be present in a supervisory capacity.

9. The Equal Access Act, 20 U.S.C. §4071 et seq., contrgls the free use of school premises by
non-school—sponsored student groups. The use of séfieol facilities by non-school-sponsored
groups is governed by Board policy 8:20, Communiity L”stqf School Facilities.

I agree to abide-byfollow the eonditiensrules statﬂm this applrﬁon and te-adhere-to-all Board
policies and administrative procedures relateg g the stgent group’s use of the school’s facilities.

Student applicant signature : - Date

Note to office: after the Building P mmpdﬂ acts othis apphccmorr return a copy of it to the student
making the request and keep the quiginal mﬁg&ﬂﬂ' ce.

] Approved m Demﬂ

This non-school—sponsmd stu“m may meet in the following location at the identified
times:

Location X ; Time
Building Principal or désignee Date

7:330-E Page 2 of 2
(o] Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

Minois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



MayAure-20-H8 une 2023 ‘ 8:25

Community Relations

Advertising and Distributing Materials in Schools Provided by Non-School Related
Entities 1

No material or literature shall be posted or distributed that would: (1) disrupt the educational process,
(2) violate the rights or invade the privacy of others, (3) infringe on a trademark or copyright, or (4) be
defamatory, obscene, vulgar, or indecent. No material, literature, or advertisement shall be posted or
distributed without advance approval as described in this policy.

Community, Educational, Charitable. or Recreational Organizations

Community, educational, charitable, recreational, or similar groups may, under procedures established
by the Superintendent, advertise events pertinent to students’ interests or involvement.2 All
advertisements must (1) be student-oriented, (2) prominently display the sponsoring organization’s
name, and (3) be approved in advance by the Superintendent, grdeargnce The District reserves the right
to decide where and when any advertisement or flyer is c}ﬂhw displayed, or posted, 3

W
The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted pnlu.,lﬁtﬁu ».huu Id be runm"llhx, fore the policy is adopted

1 State or federal law controls this policy’s content, bt the p! of law is unsettled. Schools are nonpublic forums,
meaning they need not open their doors to private speakers but mt discriminate against disfavored viewpoints or subjects,
e.g., religion. Id., Lamb's Chapel v. Center Moriches Union Fr . Dist.. 508 U.S. 384 (1993). This policy establishes a
limited public forum, i.e., non-school entities mag ﬁmnbme rial concerning events pertinent to students’ interests
or involvement. Alternatively. boards may refuse l‘!gllrmf‘ ibufton or posting of anv material requested by non-school
related orgamzatlons H‘.du&. v. Wauconda C gl Dist. |

of material by noun- school related urﬂﬂ‘utﬁ %
No material or hh.rdtur;:ﬁdll be pasted in ‘:(.Mlb or distributed to students by non-school related organizations or
individuals. -~ iR

2 This sentence establishes w pub ic félkum. i.e.. the school limits noa-school expressive activity to “events
pertinent to students’ inkereSiSipe Lmo?um.m Such a limitation survives First Amendment scrutiny if it is reasonable and
not based on the speaker's viev t. A Sehool s refusal to post an individual's sign containing the Ten Commandments on
the baseball field’ s‘éﬂu. open mncrctﬂradvenmm__, did not violate the individual’s free speech rights because the fence
was open fora lim“purposc (commercial ads) and the school's content restrictions were reasonable. DiLoreto v. Downey
Unified Sch. Dist., 196E3d 958 :tmn.r 1999).

3 This section aurhuﬁ:h;al ll.u@ﬁpennh.ndem or designee to approve non-commercial ads. Most boards do not want to
approve these ads because of fhieir frequency: however, a board may use the following alternative for #3, “be. approved in
advance by the Board.”

The distribution of flyers from religious youth organizations will survive scrutiny under the First Amendment’s
Establishment Clause if the organization’s religious message is sufficiently separated from the school to prevent students from
confusing the two. Sherman v. CCSD 21, 8 F.3d 1160 (7th Cir. 1993); Rusk v. Crestview Local Schools, 379 F.3d 418 (6th
Cir. 2004). However, a policy allowing viewpoint discrimination will be set aside. Hills v. Scottsdale Unified Sch. Dist., No.
48, 329 F.3d 1044 (9th Cir. 2003 )(refusal to distribute summer camp brochures offering Bible classes because of their religious
content violated the First Amendment); Child Evangelism Fellowship of NI v. Stafford Twp. Sch. Dist., 386 F.3d 514 (3rd
Cir. 2004)(struck a policy prohibiting classroom distribution of religious fliers because it discriminated on basis of viewpoint);
Child Evangelism Fellowship v. Montgomery Co. Public Schools, 457 F.3d 376 (4th Cir. 2006)(policy limiting classroom
distribution of materials from outside groups based on type of group, rather than content of the materials, violates religious
group’s free speech rights because of inadequate protection against viewpoint discrimination, i.e., it gave school officials
unfettered discretion to engage in viewpoint discrimination).

Limitations that are not based on the material’s viewpoint are permissible. Victory Through Jesus Sports Ministry v,
Lee's Summit R-7 Sch. Dist., 640 F.3d 329 (8th Cir. 201 1), cert. denied, 565 U.S. 1036 (201 1)(policy limiting the volume of
promotional materials sent home with elementary students did not violate the First Amendment rights of a nonprofit Ministry
Foundation).

8:25 Page | of 3
9 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Mlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your schoo! board attorney before use.



Commercial Companies and Political Candidates or Parties 4

Commercial companies may purchase space for their advertisements in or on: (1) athletic field fences;
(2) athletic, theater, or music programs; (3) student newspapers ot yearbooks; (4) scoreboards; or (5)
other appropriate locations.5 The advertisements must be consistent with this policy and its
implementing procedures and be appropriate for display in a school context. Prior approval from the
Board is needed for advertisements on athletic fields, scoreboards, or other building locations. Prior
approval is needed from the Superintendent or designee for advertisements on athletic, theater, or music
programs; student newspapers and yearbooks; and any commercial material related to graduation, class
pictures, or class rings.

No individual or entity may advertise or promote its interests by using the names or pictures of the
School District, any District school or facility, staff members, or students except as authorized by and
consistent with administrative procedures and approved by the Board.

Material from candidates and political parties will not be accepted for posting or distribution, except
when used as part of the curriculum.

The footnotes are not intended to be pﬂ'f ofthi ai.d-.Jplcii"p:'ohcy, they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

Allowing Gideons to meet withstudents and distribute Bibles during instructional time violates the Establishment Clause.
Berger v. Rensselaer Central Sch. €orp.. 982 E2di b 160 (7th Cir. 1993); Doe v. South lron R-1 Sch. Dist., 498 F.3d 878 (8th
Cir. 2007). € v

4 Commercial advestiSiigmay begecepted without making the schoot a forum for all types of expressive activity. See
f/n 2 above. If the board does notwant to séll advertising space, use the following alternative:
Commesgial companies ang politieal candidates or organizations are prohibited from advertising in schools, on the
school gromads. or on schowl or District websites.
The list of places'shere commegcial companies may purchase space for their advertisements must be tailored to meet
local needs and circumstaiges. 4
This sample policy requisesBoard approval only for ads that alter the look of schoel property. Boards that want to approve
all commercial and political ads may use the following aiternative for the final two sentences:
Prior approval from the Board is needed for all commercial or political advertisements.
Boards that want to authorize the superintendent or designee to approve all commercial and political ads may use the
following alternative:
Prior approval from the Superintendent or designee is needed for all commercial or political advertisements.

5 Consult the board attorney when commercial advertising companies seek to purchase space for their advertisements
within the school’s available technology platforms. The Student Online Personal Protection Act (SOPPA)s (105 ILCS 85/}

d-bvPA_100 315 provides safeguards to protect the privacy and security of data about students when it is collected by
educational technology companies and specifies that the use of such data may only be for beneficial purposes such as providing
personalized learning and innovative educational technologies. It specificalty prohibits targeted advertising (presenting
advertisements to students where they are selected based on information obtained or inferred avetme-from that students’
online behaviors, usage of applications, or covered information (as defined by SOPPA)). But students may be targeted for
online advertisements when they visit an online location based upon their own response to or request for information or
feedback, e.g., using Google brand products, where ads are an inherent part of the search engine, or other types of search
engines or [nternet-based resources to do assignments.

8:25 Page 2 of 3

© Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this matetial with your school board attorney before use.



LEGAL REF.:

CROSS REF.:

8:25

Lamb’s Chapel v. Center Moriches Union Free Sch. Dist., 508 U.S. 384 (1993).
Berger v. Rensselaer Central Sch. Corp., 982 F.2d 1160 (7th Cir. 1993), cert. denied,

113 S.Ct. 2344 (1993).

Sherman v. Community Consolidated Sch. Dist. 21, 8 F.3d 1160 (7th Cir. 1993),
cert. denied, 8 F.3d 1160 (1994).

Hedges v. Wauconda Community Unit Sch. Dist. No. 118, 9 F.3d 1295 (7th Cir.
1993).

Victory Through Jesus Sports Ministry v. Lee’s Summit R-7 Sch. Dist., 640 F.3d
329 (8th Cir. 2011), cert. denied, 565 U.S. 1036 (2011).

DiLoreto v. Downey Unified Sch. Dist., 196 F.3d 958 (9th Cir. 1999).

7:325 (Student Fundraising Activities), 7:330 (Student Use of Buildings - Equal
Access)

Page 3 of 3
©2022-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.



EebruaryMareh2049June 2023 8:95

Community Relations

Parental Involvement 1

In order to assure collaborative relationships between students’ families and the District, and to enable
parents/guardians to become active partners in their children’s education, the Superintendent? shall:

1. Keep parents/guardians thoroughly informed about their child’s school and education.
2. Encourage parents/guardians to be involved in their child’s school and education.

3. Establish effective two-way communication between parents/guardians and the District.
4, Seek input from parents/guardians on significant school-related issues.

5. Inform parents/guardians on how they can assist their children’s learning.

The Superintendent shall periodically report to the School Boardeon the implementation of this policy.

CROSS REF.: 6:170 (Title I Programs), 6:250 (Co
8:10 (Connection with the Co
Clubs)

Resource Persons and Volunteers),
Parent Organizations and Booster

ADMIN. PROC.: 6:170-AP1, El (District-L Par nd Family Engagement Compact), 6:170-
AP1, E2 (School-Level Pareni amily Engagement Compact)

The footnotes are not inten e part of the adopted policy; they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 A board may allow the district to participate and implement a Bring Your Parents to School Day the first Monday in
October of each year. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.55. Its purpose is to promote parental involvement and student success. Consult the
board attorney for advice before implementing this law. [t may be an item upon which collective bargaining may be required.
Any policy that impacts wages, hours, or terms and conditions of employment, is subject to collective bargaining upon request
by the employee representative, even if the policy involves an inherent managerial right. Boards may also want to consider
the impact Bring Your Parents to School Day may have upon students’ instructional time and how the implementation of this
day will impact school safety and security. See policy 4:170, Safety, and its implementing procedures.

If a board chogses to implement this day, insert the following optional subhead as the second paragraph and add the Legal
Reference before the Cross Reference:

Bring Your Parents to School Day

On the first Monday in October of each year, students’ parents/guardians are invited to attend class with their
children and meet with teachers and administrators during the school day.

The following Legal Reference must also be inserted into the policy: “105 ILCS 5/10-20.55.”

2 The default text of this policy does not use “or designee” because it is important and the board likely wants to monitor

it.

8:95 Page | of |
©2022-2023 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Tllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.






The original preliminary budget approved in the fall had the following totals:
Revenue - 3,722,735
Expense - 3,542,405

The amended budget totals are as follows:
Revenue — 4,126,114.62
Expense — 3,818,473.90

Expenses increased due to key cards, grant reimbursement (FY24), Kelly training
Erin, Erin training Brittany, additional SPEC Ed transport — parent transport, and
Ashley training Marlie.

Approximate % of budgets at fiscal year end:

10 - 101.49%
20 - 100.72%
30 - 100.00%
40 -99.55 %
50-102.03%
70 —100%

80 - 104.61%
90 — 76.75%

Total Rev - 96%
Total Exp - 101.18%

The Admin Cost is at 5%






District Type: ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District School Business Services Division

Joint Agreement

SCHOOL DISTRICT/JOINT AGREEMENT BUDGET FORM *
Accounting Basis: July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

|Cash
l Balanced budget; no Deficit Reduction

Plan is required.

Date of Amended Budget: 06/20/2023

(MM/DD/YY})
District Name: | La Harpe CSD 347 |
District RCDT No: 26-034-3470-04

If your FY2022 AFR states that you need to do a deficit reduction plan and your FY2023 budget is balanced, please state the
measures you took to have your budget become balanced. (Bckgrnd-Assumpt 25-26)

Budget of La Harpe CSD 347 , Countyof Hancock/Henderson/McDonough,
State of illinois, for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023
WHEREAS the Board of Education of La Harpe CSD 347 .
County of ancock/Henderson/McDonoug, State of lliinois, caused to be prepared in tentative form a budget, and the Secretary

of this Board has made the same conveniently available to public inspection for at least thirty days prior to final action thereon;

AND WHEREAS a public hearing was held as to such budget on the 20th dayof June , 20 23 ,
notice of said hearing was given at least thirty days prior thereto as required by law, and all other legal requirements have been complied with;

NOW, THEREFORE, Be it resolved by the Board of Education of said district as follows:

Section 1: That the fiscal year of this school district be and the same hereby is fixed and declared to be
beginning July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023

Section 2: That the following budget containing an estimate of amounts available in each Fund, separately, and expenditures from each be

and the same is hereby adopted as the budget of this school district for said fiscal year.

ADOPTION OF BUDGET
The budget shall be approved and signed below by members of the School Board. Adopted this 20th  dayof June ,20 23
by a roll call vote of « S Yeas, and _mg Nays, to wit:
| , %* MEMBERS VOTING YEA: ** MEMBERS VOTING NAY:

* Based on the 23 lllinois Administrative Code-Part 100 and inconformity with Section 17-1 of the School Code.
** Type in the members who voted "YEA" nor "NAY". Actual school board member signatures are not required for electronic submission.

(1) A certified copy of this document must be filed with the county clerk within 30 days of adoption as required
by Section 18-50 of the Property Tax Code {35 ILCS 200/18-50).

(2) Districts are required to submit the adopted/amended budget electronically to ISBE within 30 days of adoption or by QOctober 30,
whichever comes first. Budgets are submitted to School Finance Report (SFR): https:/fseci isbe.netiattachmar/default. aspx
Please type the member signatures before submitting to ISBE. We do not accept PDF copies.

SR TR AT AT A€ T

SD50-36/JA50-39  5/22
La Harpe CSD 347

26-034-3470-04
Page 1 638228660255537396365697216727901696




£202/02/9 969106/2/912/6959€96€2EGSSTOI9BZZBENSPEOJUMOQ\USSSERIDNSIBSM O

0 0 o L] o 0 0 0 0 g T PUEIRHNOS JOWIGH IOk
-~ b — — — = —_——— 0664 343YMas|3 palyIsse|D JON SaIINQS Jayif
- —_—— —— ..oomnu B 5p3aadald UrOT 3851
= o = — |I..oomN pun s133lo.g |eNdR) 01 J3JSURS]
X T 0 i | _ 00LL | SpPUOE 3NUBASY UO 153J31U| ARd 0) pUng 3(AIdS 1G3( 01 J3jsuel]
0 _ oowm. Spuog anuaaay uo [edidulid Aed 01 pung 331AJ3S 1gaQ 01 J3JSUBI]
o ! 0o5e $35e87 /B ASYD UO 153J91U| ARd 01 33IAJS 193 O1 J3JSURI)
0 00¥L 595837 /8 §SYD U0 [ed1dUlg ARd O] 33(AJ3S 193(] 01 FjSLIl |
_ - - - - - - " e p— p—— boen ¢ 51955V paxi3 Jo) uonesuadwo) 10 aes
—e ———— - 0ETL PJOS SpPUOY UO 1S3IDIU| PANIINY.
— —— r ozzL PIOS SPUOQ UO LWNIWBL
== 1 05 spuog uo |edidull
ateL A PIOS spuog | d

©
~

l#l

<
<

0
~

0 pung ajnes 1gaq
015paaioid Ul pue puog A12JeS '8 A3ud D414 P3IGINWINIIY $53IXT JO 13JSURLL

PUNJ 'O 01 5Paa201d 158421 3 XEL A19JBS 78 AU 9414 SS3DXT JO Jajsues]

puN4 W1RO 01 puny s1a3lold |1IGe) WOL) IBJSURL]
1S913)U| JO JBJSURI[

spund Juowy 1ajsues|

15213)U| pung Ysed SuIyI0p JO JBJSURIL

gy PUNA UsED BupHIOAR 341 JO JUAWNEqY

o1 PUN4 USED BuPIOAA 943 JUaWYSIOQY
SANNA SNONMYA INOYS HIISNVHL ININVINEID
1 - (000£) SANN4 40 $33HNOS ¥IHLO
SANN4 40 SISN/SIDIHUNOS HIHLIO

LT0'6T 0T9'8T (1022 £€L 189S T weeT 656'S q.o.wwww.m.w. sainpuadva/auswssingsia [ 7z
1 ] ____wana liapun) saag sanudaay/diaaay 1aig jo ssaox3
0008 005991 o | wEr TEL'SLT 65v'9TZ | S66'618 [ 9iL'srTT soumpuadsz/auawasingsig eoy | 17
[i] o 0 — 0 0 0 0 To 0 e : sjuawdhed ,J|eyag uQ, 10y saIn1ipuadxa/siuawasingsia | g
0008 005991 0 I T €5v91C Se6618 | oLL6hiT 1 . -  Sonipuady3 /Auainasingii 1aig el [ 61 |
= o 0 i To I ) 1o 0 0 |oooal  S3IIDNIONILNOI ¥O4 NOISIAONd[ 81
0 0 0 0 6sv'9Tz |0 o  ]0ooos i . - SDIAMAS LA3al /L
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ~ |ooooy  [oDOv ! ) § S1INN LADD '8 SID141SI0 HIHLO OL SLNIWAYA]| 91
D . &=u Vi 0 0 0 0 000€ ¢ © STDIA¥IS ALINAWWOI| G|
0008 005991 0 899'9L TEL'SLT [566'618 989'97L 000Z SIDIAYIS LUOHdNS] ¥L
= 0 LI S| £505 TN | T | 060'€8ET  |000T | - NOHINHISNI| €1
{spung AyA1oY JUapNIS INCLIIM} SIHNLIANTAX3/SLNIWAsHnasial CF
(n'ic oTTSE 10T 0 [wos TIPTEE B VS6'SE8 SELBLET sonuanay/sidia0ay 104 | | |
N . | 866¢ | Nszlimn_ Jeysgug, h.oh. wm:clw»ww._\ﬂa,ﬁwz ol
(10't2 0IT'S8T = = - | ve0BET [ ZIVIET [ €eTBIE V56528 SEL'BLET 1 , Sonussan/adiaray wana ol [ 6
0 o _|o o |o ___|o 998'697 ERO'TLY looop | D SIUNOSTYHIA3| 8
0 0 0 0 0 OLE'TST |0 000'05 STE'ESS | 000€ ! - s3dxynos aLvis| /
0 0 | 0 0 i | 11510 BIHLONY| ©
R T ER e T i _ | . |oo0z ._ 0L 1DI¥151d INO IWOYH SINNAAIY/SLdIDIIY HONOHHI-MOTH
'L 011581 £10'LT 0 p£0'82T ZF0'0ET | €zT8TT | BEE'EBEL | 000F - 3 $334NOS WI01| S
{spund Ajnmdy Juspnis anoyum) SINNIATY/SLAIDIY| ¥
SB9EET 19879 9vaTST To SOT'6T [ZE9OT | ECvEL Tz8'zer (BL'TYS'T zz0z ‘TAInfjo se (spund| ¢
Bl | § I 1| [T Ananay uspms Inoynm) IINYVIVE NN ONINNIDIB GILVINILLSI
== i Kunaas || = = — = I Z
Ajayeg |B120S flUaWa1139Y 3jueuajulely | AjuQ siaqunp ajoyan 1a3u3 suondussqg
8 UOIJUDARI D114 oy ysed Supjiopn sy93foid [ende) jediuny uonejrodsues) 321496 1927 8 suonesado leuoneanp3 #1y|
(06) {08) (0z) (09) (0s) {ov) {0€) (0z) (or) | 'SGD3 0Z-ZI 0X3153 puD T-9 A3Y353 U0 010p bulia3ua ubag L
M r [ H 9 4 3 a 5) g | v

7 abeg AMYWANS 139aNn8 ¢ sbed

O DD O f— () (523 ool el Lo (23 Wved (o] (m) Lo LoN]
A N[N [N e @ DO DD DM |

w
o™

bt
™~

l

™
o




€202/0¢/9 969106/2/912/6959€96€/£55520998ZZFEINSPEOJUMOJ\UBSSBEINSIBSMN:D

g £202 '0€ 3un( J0 52 IINYIVE NN DNIONI QILVINILSI AWARDY 1udpmig 68
[ & il _ RN 000'C _ ) E
L l i Tt & A —
= M 603 [ == 1 ssacen] oo o 7
1Y JUapNIS 104) SIBNLIAN3AXI/SINIWasHnasial 98
= = H =1t = ] B} | [oo0sT (sasings sl snuaRT s O M ens oL | G |
{spun4 Auanoy Juapmis Jod) SINNIATY/SLdIFDu| V'8
=0 || T | [ e A_| o T A | = .._.| S T e s FFTE _ 77071 :q:_ﬂ
.“ — i 40 se IINVIYE ANN4 ONINNIDIE GILYINILSA (TT pund) Alanoy Juspms
28
70L°TTT €99'64T £80°08 | T8L'8Ez | tve'teL's I €202 0¢
_ _} aunr jo se {spuny >|u_>=u< U3pN3s INOYUM) IINYIVE ONNH ONIANT JILVINILSI
) = 0o 0 o I 0 ~ o [0 = I puny jo s /5231005 J0a 1201 | 08 |
T o [ T I e [0 = i === , 3puna j0 5950 19410 15301 [ 6 |
e — o H _. —— = —— IuHI = = 219yMmas|] payyIsse|d 10N $asn JAYI0 M
T 1 1 _ 1 SUBOT JES| U0 (Ediuid Aed 0) pung 331A195 193 01 Jajsuell | /)
[ Y I I — s13alosg R1de) 10 Aeg 0y palpagd s1ajsues| aduejeg pung .ﬂ
| _ o s123fo.d 211de) Joj Aed 0 padpald sanuandy JaYl0 ﬂ
| | | — 51900014 |ENdED (0] Aed 01 PaBpald S1UBLLASINGUIRY /SIUBID q
7 _ | “| s132loid (e11dED U0y ARd 0] pasiajsuRl] SawE] ﬂ
| | T - spuog anuandy uo 153Ja1U1 ABd 01 Pa3pald sJaJsuel) Bdue|eg pund ..M.M!
| | \ — SpuOg aNUBABY LD 153191u] Aed 01 paBpajd sanuanay JaYiQ q
._ _ " —‘ = SpUDg 3NUBASY UO 153J21u| Ard 01 pagpald SIUaWasINgquIaY/s1uen ﬂ
| | | T = SpUOg ANUBASY UO 152131U| AR 01 padpa)g Saxel -mml
_ | _ _ | spuog anuaAay uo |ediulid Aed 01 padpajd siajsuel) aduejeq puny ﬂ
ﬁ 1 _ T spuog anuanay uo [edduld Aed 01 paBpa)d sanuanay 1aylo .|m
A | v | . spuog anuaaay uo |edpuld Aed 01 padpa|d SIUaWISINGUIEY/SIUBID .ﬂ
_ | | ‘y T spuog anuasay uo |edidulld Aed 01 paspald saxe) M
| — .. | . 535837 /8 GSYO UO 153131u| Aed 01 padpa|d sJajsuel) @duejeq pung B
| \ ! | 595837 /8 BSYD U0 152J21U) ARg 03 Padpald sanuaray BYIO | €9
| - - $95887 /8 GSYD UO 15313)u| ARd 01 pagpald S1UBWasINgIay/siueln M.
._I I‘ == 535837 /8 G5YD U0 153491U| Aed 01 padpald $axel d
- I | m T sasea /8 g5v9 uo |edidulld Aed 01 padpald ss3)5uel] adue|jeg pung a
.. T | = saseaq /B gsyD uo [ediauld Aed 01 padpald sanuandy 1BYI0 |m.m|‘
| I T ' | _ | | 535897 /8 HSYD UO |edidutid ARd 01 pa8pald S1UaWasINGLUIRY/SIUEID ﬂ
| . __ | _| * | | _ | sasea /g gSyo Lo [ediduld Aed 01 padpald faxef .F
lnlm | | | | pun4 a31A1a5 10ag) 01 spaa30sd 1l | gg
| _ | | _ | octs , pue o PUO8 A12JES 13 A2Jd 414 PRIRINLINDDY SSBIXI JO 1)UL} ||
_ | | _ [ puny W30 01 5pa3301d . 15349)U) '8 X | AJ3JES g A 314 SSIIXT JO FajsUEL) s
| | 0918
I_ - — . | _ 0518 | pung 'R0 01 pund s133fod [EAIde) Wolj Jajsues| vlm.
| ﬂ|| || i.|| _ B ||. - ) T _ ’ oris 4 15292101 Jo JBjsuesy M
| | _ 0€18 spung uowy saysuel) | FG
_ (] _ | St 1 ¥ o) dﬁ.l SRR e —————1| o718 1 152431U| pund ysed SUIYIOAN JO 13JsurI] ..r_wwl
” 0 __ | | .|ozw|_ o puny zmm.u. m,.E.S>.> mﬁho u:mWEmn( Jouswysiogy hml
| | | | (0018) SONNJ ¥IHLO SNOMVA OL HIISNYHL P
= _ _ _ ; =d | (0008) saiNf4 40s3snHakL0[ 2
= Anaag | ~Z |
Aoges |e120s /juawanyay SdueuAULE A Ajup siaquinp 3joypn 131ug :uonduasaq
8 UONUBABI 2114 Moy ysed Supiop sya8loud [ende) jedidiuniy uoneyodsues) ERILYEINLET] 8 suopesadQ |euoijeanpy 1y
(06) (08) (02) | {09) (0s) {ov) (0€) (0z) (o) | | 'sqo) 0Z-ZT (X3153 puD TT-9 A3YIST U0 DIDP buliaua uibag | |
] A r | | H 9 4 El | a o) | g | v

¢ abeg ANYWANS 139ang € 9bed



£202/0Z/9

969106/2/912/6953€96€/£55520998CTRENSPEOIUMO\UBSSEEIDNSIBSM O

Z05£9L 000'8 005991 0 TVE/CT TEL SLT B5KO1T 566618 9LLGYTT | saImIpundy3 (2101 |CE |
0 =il o e 0 nu_. i | .Sw _ sujauag uoneuvunal |1 €1
] To o 0 - | [ ot | wwawdinb3 pazijended-uon DL
VEL'DYT - 0 0 05 ae 6SY'9TT = | o0s | 5192(90 /3u10 [BE F
S9E'905 {o (] VEB'TZY 005 | Aepno rendes [BE T
66b'42€ O — el SLt'65 vee'see [oov | sieusien g sayddns {721
B0S'EEY 0 0 2£1°861 TEC'LYT 00E saanias paseyaind [OZ 1
156'615 0 et | T | ooz oTEZSE | ooz | sujausg sahoidw] [GZ L
SwesET 0 | S lorEsIl | SESTeET | oot | saeres [FZ L
| Il | awen 13[qo|ECt

[ I |l a_.__._uﬂm D T ) - -

Aajes 121305 /auswainay ajueuajuR #
195[q0 Ag (230 | B UORUIARI 313 uoyp ysed Jupjiom spalold |ended |eduniy uonejiodsues] 221A136 3990 g suonesado |euoneanp3 Py uondursag
(06) (08} (0£) (09) (05) (ov) (0€) (02) {ot) ||

(2o sofeW Aq) spung Aunpay uspnis

INOYHM STHNLIANIAXI 40 AUYINIAINS

20421 LEvT8 £99'6L1 B00'ZTT 18('8E7 vZZ68L'T
se {spun3 AUARIY UIPMIS YiIM $92UN05 (i) IINVIVE NN ONIONS OILVIAILLSI
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 T I
0 0 ) T —— = = e
0 0 = D = e e To - S .
LT0'6T 019’81 [t 0 ez 89’5 ¥a9'T 66's | 0960EC
008 005991 _ 0 Thezet TeLSit Gavote 566618 —a— =
o |0 B 0 —— 0 0 [0 = o8ty |
0008 005'991 0 [ IvELeT TELSLT 65912 - , — o
Ui 0 0 0 — [0 o e 0009
0 0 = : 0 0 65p9TT — o 0005
0 0 [ 0 0000k 000t
0 s - B ~ |ooos NOAIA
0008 005991 [0 — 98902/ 0002 S39IA¥3S 1HOdANS
i 0 =teliz L 1) T | =i N 060°'v6ET  |000T!! ) NOLONYUISNI[LOL
EEE Aoy 1apNIS UM s3ainos v) mmz::ozmaxm\mhzm__zmmz:mm_o 00l
07z |orrsst [ o'e 0 vi0'8ZT | ZIvi8e —— GELTEET sanuanan/ndiaroy =101 | 66
0 (1] =5 0 To 0 o 866E 1 2 sjuswAeq J|eyag uQ, 40) SanUANaY/SIdIa0RY | QR
AT DTT 'S8T o o vi0'BeT Zv'ise B Sezs | SECTEC T —— : , SBnuanay/aidioray 132110 9101 | 76
0 o 0 0 o 0 998'69z | esoere : $324N0S v¥3034| 96
0 0 0 0 0 0LETST 00005 STE'ESS $328N0S ILVLS| 56
0 0 0 0  DHISIOEIHIONY| v6
v o] Ty | | e B | i) |l i ' ohC_Em_c INO WON4 SINNIATH/SLAITITN HONONHL-MOTY
(1017 011581 L1027 0 vLO'8TT TY0'DET | ezverz 260'905 | BEE'96ET e $328N05 1v201| €6
(spun4 AuAndy 1USpMIS YIM $33.N0S |1y) SINNIAIY/SLdIEDIY| 26
SS9'ERT 29878 9yaZsT 0 SOT'6T £TV'SL 7I8'TEL R s Ao o (i sy e
Suipnjauy 5331005 ly) IINVIVE ONNS DNINNIOIE AILVINILST [elol
i Kunaas — — - T =
Aages |e1os /juswainay JjueuHUIE | AjuQ s1aquinN 3joyaa Ja1u3 uondussaq
78 UONUSAAI 3414 Mol yseD Sunyiom s133fo14 [e)de) {edpiuniy uoneyodsues) 221A195 1930 B suonesadp |euoneanpy HI0Y |
(06) (08) (02) | {09) (0s) | (ov) {0€) (0z) (01) | '5qD1 0Z-ZT 0%3153 PuD 11-9 A3YIST u0 DIop Bulialua uibag !
1 M r I | H 9 | 4 3 a o) a | v
v 9bed AYYWWANS 139ana v 9beg



20L°TTT LLY'T8 €99'6/T 0 8€8'6T 800°CTT £80°08 T8L'BET _ vZ7'68L°T _ €70z ‘ogadunf| /€
| jose Amtcsm >u_>_uu< JuapMS yim) aNVYH NO IDNVIvE HSYD ONIANT [e10L | _ |
d@@ 8 = | 005991 ~ |0 = 0 et TEL'SLT J” 6591 me = ﬂ:wE.um_:nu.n_ 1BYI0 I ‘5350 19410 ‘siuawasingsia 19a1a el | 9F
— Fa—— T T 3 —= 70 — = | e syuawasingsiq 190 (e | GE |
o0s99t [0 lo TVE'LTT TeL'sie . | 65¥°aTZ 1 IEPAE G [—— 3 5951 39130 B SuaWSINGEIQ 211 (€101 [ |
| LLE'LYT TE99%6ET = 6LT'LYT [ 6ELI8E [ avs’96e (94078507 | 0007 cm.m.ml: = ... ajgeyieay Junowy jeo | £F |
| OTTS8T = E,.@ @ |vo'szr | ﬂ«dwm —= h_, Tk ican _ ve6528 h. SELT6E T s1d@2y 19430 9 ‘532n05 130 ‘112354 133110 (1oL | ZE |
o 0 0 0 _ o _ 0 e |0 s3di229y 19y10 |eloL F
; OTT'SST [tz |o - vL0'8TT TIr'I8T | ezr'stz | pS6'sL8 _ 9ELTBE'T = — £ 532M05 1910 5 5131259y 12110 €101 [ O |
I R e B i) ~ |soret Tzzeor 4 fever | | w8t [vsT "865'T 1 ©T7 7 Tzog ‘TAnyose (spund 5z
_ Auandy Juapms yum) aNvH NO 3DNY1vE HSYD ONINNID3E [e10L
i 8z
. ! — -
_ _ | KLY €20 ‘0€ dUnrJo 58 ANVH NO 3IDNVIVE HSVYD DNIaN3 spuny Ajanay Le
_ _ _ L 595N JOUI0 B SIHAWASINGSH] 399110 2101 ﬂ.
_ | I._. i B 3|qe[IeAY JUNOWY [EI0L ...m
7 _ _ £ 592410 S0 B 5301222y 192 [eI0L ¥e
! [ | I ZLv5T i €2 |
__ 720z ‘T Mnryo se ,GNVH NO 3ONVIVE HSYD DNINNID3g spung AJIAIY
| | | |
ToL'eTe LIY'TE 0 8€8'6T 800'ZTT 80’08 T8L'8E7 LOLTLLT I £z0z ‘0| 1T
aunr jo se ,{spunj AJAROY 3USPNIS INOYIM) ANVH NO 3INYIVE HSYD DNIONI
0008 1005991 ~ ]0 10 =l Hq.m fiad T€L'5LT 650°9TE | 566618 A I SJUAWASINGSIA 13YI0 B ‘SIS JAYIO ‘SJUIWSSINGSIQ 2410 (101 0z |
5 — — o 3 = = —T% = - re— ..o = e swswasingsig 42410 1101 | 61 |
= —r— -1 | — — | 66t | qer] Ua4IND 18410 |w_\|.
— ! —1 s = = 1 e I s|qeAed s1ueliem pue sajoN q
T = i =1 - TP _ (sueon yo 1awAeday) ajqgeded SUBGT PUNLIIIYY q
——— i i o _ T _ - {spun4 12410 03 SUROT) B|GEAIZIBY SUBOT PUNJIAIU| q
Loy L B S e SEvan ¥ il = A ———— - SINIW3ISUNESIO¥IHLO[ 71 |
0008 0059917 0 |0 [ WET [1elsie se6e8  |oLevit | , 595N 130 '3 sluswasINgsia Bana (eloy | €]
~ [ L6ivT L = TBLULVT | 6eLiBE e mmﬁ.w T | EE5126%¢ _ apgepeny aunowy 10y | Z1 |
WATHT: ~ | orrsst |.. o'z - ] o | wioEen _mmq 18¢ = | [8el8iEe - - s1di308Y S2410 ® ‘S92IN0S 1O “$1d1939Y 193] |el0) q
o |0 I @ |0 ~ |0 — | — 0 o [ s1dra3ay soy10 2101 | O |
I | I B B T i . | esT | 51955y WBLIND 12YI0 ﬂ
_ I.ﬂ “ - I_.. - — _ _ oL 3|qeAed siuellepp PUE SRI0N |mM|.
i w i 1 o= |_ - e = i _ [ a1 _ (sueoT jo juawhedsy) ajqentaaay sueo punpaiul[ /|
= _ R - - [ _ 1§ _..I . M Ty | {spund A0 WoJj suUECT] 3|qRARd SURDY pUNLIAIU| 4
. = == = E o S e . — 51413534 ¥3H10| G |
WATVia [otr'set a0'ce 0 | wzo'set [Tvise mﬁ i i 9EL'BLET o 592In05 19410 B 11239y dauna jesoL | 4
seocer | [98'ce  |owazst To ~ | sot'sr | Leg's0t | Ezv'sL a mm. 262 | zac’ews't | zzoz TAnrjose| € |
| _ — nAm_u::n_ ANARDY JUSPMIS INOYNIM) ANVYH NO IDNVIVE HSYD DNINNIDIE
— B T Rumas s o » I T [z |
Ayajes Jdueualjule |
o DA S yoy yse) Jupjiopy | s3aaloid [ende) |[eros /quswaniay | uoneuodsuesy 321336 3920 g suonesado |euoizeanp3 _ #10VY AjuQ s1aquiny 3joyas Jaju3 :uonduasaq
reduny |
(06) (08) [(172] (09) | (0s) | (o) (o€) {oz) (o1) | | )|
X r | H | 9 | 4 3 a o) | g | v
G abed SNOILOVSNYYL HSVO 40 AMVIWINNS G obed



969106/¢/91C/6959€96€/E£GGGC099BZCBENSPRO[UMONUBSSER|DNSISSM\:D

£202/02/9

.. i “ |0 | 1 PEPT | {91815 40 INQ) $224n0S J3YIQ WO} S35 boniertadsies] 310 | HG
| o 1 | €evT | {21835 U[) $924N0S JAYIQ WO 5994 UOREIOTSUEL] J]) ﬂ.
fi] _ _ “ ZEbT _ (93E1S U]) S101ISIQ 19Y1Q WO} $394 uoneLodsuel] 31D N
| 0 o 7 | { TEPT M (91€35 U)) sud.ed Jo sjidng Woly soa4 uoljeliodsuel)] 319 M

0 | | vzt | (21835 40 InQ) 522105 JDYIO WOl 5224 UORELIODSURIL [0OYDS JDWWNS | ()G
n.. - - | I [Xaan (21215 U}} 5321n0S JaY3Q WOy 5004 uonelodsuel] [0OYIS JaWWNS q
~ ol - __ T baaan _. (21835 UY) SIIIISIQ JOYIO WU 5934 vonerodsuel] |O0YIS JBWWNG wlv
a . = | _ 17T _ (910315 UJ) S1UBIEY 10 5)1dNd WO 5994 UOIIELIOSUEI] |OOYIS JAWING ...q
| ._m.. | _ L1449 _ (91815 40 1NQ) S02IN0OS 1AYIQ Wol) Saa4 uoreliodsuel] Jenday 'mlv
“ 0 1 _ | | stpT | {21B1S U|) SRQIANDY 1BINDLIND-0) WOl S3a4 uoiieltodsuel ) Jenday q
| 0 | | _ €THT _, (21815 U]} $324n0G 1210 WO} 5334 uoneliodsuel] 1g|nday M

1 0 _ | 7IPT _ {21815 UJ) 51211151 19410 Wod) s904 uclieuodsuel] Jendoy [
| _ 0 _ | ﬁ TTHT “ {01835 U() S1UDLR JO S|IdNd WO} 394 uoleIodsuel] Jendoy va
_ | L _oowr S334 NOILYLHOdSNYHL .F
| | _ 0 . uony resoL | O |
_ | .“ o ) | vser | (91815 JO INQ) $32IN0S JBYIQ WOy UonIN] 3Npy | 6¢ |

| | | 0 £SET (21€15 t() $324n0S JaU1Q wWodj uohinL Inpy | 9¢
| __ qu I ZsET (2115 U]} 512113510 JOYIO WO UOINY 3NPY H
| __ o CTSET | (21815 UJ) s3UBIRd JO S|IdNg WOl u 1 3npy %
| _ o PYET | {21815 10 INQ) $331N0S J83YIQ WoLJ uonlIn] uolieanp3 jeads Mml

0 EBET (33835 1) $324N0S J3YIQ WOIy uonIn] uoredNp3 [eads| g
| 0 | zoer | (21815 L) S121ISIJ J3YIQ WOy uolling uollednpd [eads H

| 0 TYET (21015 U)) S)UBsRY 1O S)IdNd WOl UoIINE UoNEINPT [eadS | Z6
| | 0 | veet | (22235 40 1n0) 522un05 JaYI0 Woy uoniny 315 ¢ |
T 0 EEET | (9115 U} S324N0S JAYIQ WOy uolIng 319 F

| ! 0 | zeeT | (23835 W) 1213510 Jayr0 woly uomny 310 | 2
| | o | teet | (21235 1) sU3sR4 4O SPANd Wouy uoNInL 319 | 97 |
| _ ” 0 | pzeT _ (91835 JO 1INQ) 5324N0S JSYIO WIOIJ UO[LIN] JO0YIS JAWWNG .M.lm.l
0 _ £2€T _ (91815 U|) 5924N0S JBYIO WO UO[IIN] j0OYIS JSWWNG .R

_ 0 | 2zeT | (21235 UJ) 51913510 J3YIQ WOJY UoNIN] [00YIS J3WWnS | G2
| 0 _ TZET _ (91e15 UY) S3UBled JO S|IdNg WOy UOHIIN] JOOYIS JISWLWNS 1&.
| | o B | prer _ (3115 JO INQ) S92IN0S JaY1Q Wol) uomin] Jengay ml
_ __ —Io = @ €TET A (91835 UJ) 5934N05 JBYIO Woly uoning Jeinday M

| |0 | et | (91835 UJ) SIMISIQ J3YI0 Woly uonng senday | |7
_uo o m TIEL {31135 UJ) SJUBJEd JO S|Idng wol) uonin] JejnSay H

| m j 0o€T Nowintf 61
v Joor [oT [0 ) 09 Se 0zt (i3 | ZE£'0RT = saxe] Jo nar ui syuawAed 210l | B |
o Jo o - 0 Jo o 0 o To __ oszt | (321w3)|  2q113530) 53xe | Jo nar ui suawAed 1YI0 | /| |

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 _ ZEBBLT _ o€zt | (9XeL 1wawade|day Aladoud jeuosiad aesodiod | g|
0 0 1] 0 — o K I 0] _ 07eT Anoyiny Suisno 2307 wouy syuawied _ﬂ
T 00T v - 0 : |oter xe] a8a|lAld SWOoH 3|1qoIA _lm.ml

00zt SIXVL A0 N3N NISINIWAYA| €1
0007581 |...H.W~NN 13u151q A P3IAaT SaXE ) WISI0[BA PY [BI0L .van
0 0 _osIL | (o231 3 5q113530) sawma1 xeL JOWIO[ ) | |
oztt ; AAST 5850d1nd |00YDS JawWwNg 01 |

0 0911 Ana7 sasoding uononnsuo) [euonedop ey | G
0sTL | 531137 AjuQ 21e0paiy pue w4 | g |
o 0 o o — Joa Uovtr | Ana7 sasodingd uopeanp3 jeads | /|
=u IJII 0 o __ 86077 _ OETT [ o An7 sasoding SuisesT .I©|..
o002z |ooo'seT o000z |0 ~ oo Jooo'ss | eere 826°09¢ | £1v'e96 1 et orn ¢ S91M31 s3s0ding pareudisaa [ G |

0ot | AINIOV NOILYINAI 1vI01 A8 QIIATT SIXVL S_mzo._<>.n...¢\ 4

(000T) S30YNOS Y201 WOYA SINNIATY/SLIFIIY €
— e — = T | —TRaaSe———— _ | . IMI..

Aiajes _ |eIdOS /3uswainey ERD LIV # AjuQ siaquinp ajoyp 1a1u3 uondudsag
3 UOIIUBABI A1l uog ysej Sunjiop s133fo4d jesden ledpdiuniy uoneylodsuesy 018135 193Q 3 suonesadg |leuoneanp3 Y
(06) {08) (0£) {09) {os) | {ov) (0g) _ {02) {o1) _ . 1 |
1 N r I H | 9 E] ] 3 a | 0 | d

g abey

SANNIAIY/SLHITOIY A3 LVYIWILST

g abed



£202/02/9 969106/2£912/6959E96EL£GG5Z0998CZBENSPEOJUMOCIUDSSERIDNSIASM-O
| H SLE'Y l syooqixaL jesoy | G |
.0 | 068T | AT ® HLSAE) DWOdU| §00qIXL 1DYI0 |
‘ 1o _ 6781 _ (2211121 39 3q13521) 13430 - SOJES YOOI L lm.lm
| o €781 uonesanp3 SuNuRuoD/ANpY - sajes yoanaL | 76
f 0 81 * [00Y3S Jawwng - 53(BS YOoqINa | l_“.m.l
_ 0 - Te8T | $300Q1%a] Je|nday « SIBS J00qIXaL ..a
' - _r 0 6181 |  (ezwey g oquasag) soui0 - seway yooanoL [ 69 |
| i | __o| ETBT | $300G3%a), UCIIEINPT BUINUITLOI/INPY - S|EIUDY YOOGIXI L 88 |
m | | 0 18T $100QIXa L |00YIS JAWWNS - S|EJUAY JooqxaL | /@
| _ ﬁ mhmhv T | 1181 _ $300QIXa1 Je|nJoyY - S[eludY NooaIxaL M
7 _ | . JNODNINoo81X3L| G8
| | ~(B6LT SPUNY ANV 1U3PMS M) 303Ul AIAn3Y (004351910510 (oL (73 |
= [664T SPUN AiinoY UBPMS INCLAIAM) ALIDIU| ANADY [00UAS /1281 [E30L M
SaNUaAdY pung AJIADY UBpNIS Nw
{oznuay g dquasag) anunady AUAndy jooyas/misg s | | g
soi¢s 21015 1008 | 0F |
w204 [ 6 |
| saug - suossawpy [ g/ |
w NIAUYLY - SUOISSIpPY N
| JNOINI ALIALDYA0OHIS /1141810 | 9L
_ o SN paie eeeog aa1as pood e1oy [ G/ |
| _ { 0 {3z1t31} 19 2grIsaQg) 231A13S PO04 JDYI0 #
| 0 SHNPY 01 53185 q
._ | _ 0 (aznwa) ® 2q1353@) JBYIO - 51dnd 03 sajes !.N.MI.
| _ 0 ape) ey y - sjidng o1 sates q
| | | 0 15epiealg - s|idng 01 s3es ﬂ
| | _ 0 — yaunt - sjidnd 01 saes |m.w|.
i | . ) 3D1A¥35 0004 89
e e o e o b1 =— T2 OF = _ o = m.nlvolnﬂ —= —— SJUBLYSAAU| 10 sTulule] (e30) M
o| — 0 0 0 . 0 0 - |.._ 0 I ﬁr_.,.._ ] SIUSLWISIAL| JO B|ES UO S507 JO UED im.m.l
€ _jor 0 ¥T A o€ _ 0g - loo@m R | sjuaunsaau uo sl | GG
| _ _ . SIN3ILSIANINO muz_zz<w.a
| “o| e _ _ 1 [ $234 Uopeqiodsuely [e10L ﬂ
0 | | | bSUT {21815 J0 INQ) $924NDS JBYIQ WO 5334 UONELIOSUEL] JNPY M
@ - — |L _ _ _ £SHT _. {21815 U]) S321N05 JDYIO WIS 5394 uoneysodsuel | 1npy F
0 | TSP | {21035 Ui} S12113510 JaYI0 W0y} 5334 uoneuodsues L Npy | 09
.c _ _ I5bT m {21e15 uy) sjuased 1o sjidnd wolj 5934 uonewodsuel) ynpy ﬂ.
“ (1] | .33 “— {21815 JO INQ) S22IN0S JBYIO WOJ) 5334 UolELIodsues] uoneanp3 |eaads |w.ml
m _.._ull A_ u ! | mvvﬂl r (931815 U]) 5324N05 43I0 Wol) $334 uolieriodsuel| uonedINp3 (Eads M
_ (—— _ Lot | _ [RESWYsOuT o0 W R4 uoisiiodsir, voneno3 S| G |
4] i L TEPT | (21815 U]} SIUAJE JO S|IdNd WOl 5394 uoEIIOdSURS| UDREINPT |B1DDAS GG
i 1 Aumses ) 7 1 _ | ﬂ
Aajes 181208 /juswaniay ERDILITEILIT] | # _ AJuQ S13quInN 3oy Jaau3 uondursaq
g UOlIUBABL BJld uoy yse) 3unjiom spaloid |ende) 2310435 1934 '3 suopesadg Jeuonesnp3 1Y
{06) (08) {oz) {09) (o€) (02) {oT) _ L
1 M r | E] 3 a 2 | g
L ebed SANNIAIW/SLAIADTY AILYNILST L 9bed



£202/02¢/9 969106/2/912/6959E€96€/£55520938CC8ECSPEOJUMOJAUSSSBRIONSISS M. O
|0 ] 0 0 | uonEINp3 |ENUYIRY pue 133Ie) [BI0] 0|
0 ] ,ﬁ R 1o 662¢ (221211 q550) 19W0 - 210 [Z |
0 o o ocze suonezuedio uapnis - 319 [
*m - = — E n_ — — — ovzE wnonseld ropnasul- 310 OV_\
o o 0 SEZE uonesnp3 amynady - 313 [E |
0 o 1o “ezze d30am-310[gE |
0 0 1] |oN~m (13.10) 3uswanoidw| wesFold AIBpuUOIIS - 31D /€1
0 0 0 T “00zE doiq u2o1 -uoneanp3 o - 31 [GET |
| (319) NOILYINA3 TWIINHIAL ANV ¥33VI|SE L
o | 0 ot 1 T uoneonpajenads el [pg | |
0 0 o] 66TE (azyway) 7§ 2q113550) J9YIQ ~ UONEIND] [B12DdS .mml—
0 4] SP1E [00Y3S JAWWNS - UoNEINPT [e12ads 21
0 0 0ETE put rawwns - adeueyd.iQ - voneanpy |edads _a
0 0 0zZTE tenptaipu] - a8eueydig - vonednpl Pads [OC |
4] |.o| ] ._.IQHIHm L |ouUDsIag - uonesnp3 [e1ods ..@iNI_n.
1] 1] _ SOTE sadauas p3 ds Juiainbay uaippiy) Joy Suipund - uoneanp3 jeads E
0 | 0 | 001€ uonin| Alljiae4 01eALd - uoileanpy epads E
| s B i . ~ NOWWING3WID4S[9Z ] |
; {006€-00T€) GIV-NI-SINYHO G315181534[ST L
o — i —— o 0 0 0 00005 4 .m_m_.u.m|.v — e — — - Piy-Ul-S1ueID) PaIaLIsaIUN [RI0]L VN|_‘
0 o Y g o g 0 0 660 | (221W3)( B 3G11252(]) $IINOS DIL1S WOIJ PIY-U-SIURID PIIIIISAIUN J9YI0 £cl
0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 R s1eln 1oIsIq Ym0 1se4 77 |
0 - 0 0 0 0 0o 0 To s00¢ | (TZ0€-S00€ S1UN023y) SIANLIIM UoNeZUEBi0oY [| 7 |
0 0 0 0 0 0 000°05 v8'v9y T00¢ | (5U'8-8 UoRaaS) EnuLI04 Bujpuny pased 22uapiAa [0z | |
eSS 1oL | ] T (660€-T00E) OIV-NI-SLINV#9 a31iH153uNn |6} |
(000€) S37YNOS ILVLS WOYS SAINNIAIY/SLAIFDTY|BL L
| L o 000z _ 121151 J3YI0UY 07 121135IQ BUQ WoLS sanuanay/sidiaday ydnolyL-mold jejo| LLL
0 To 0 1o | o0z (az1way) 7 2qu253@) anuaA3Y YENOIYL-mol3 12110 [Q] | |
m o - cul - _lmlu. . = |O ._ 007z $221N0S |eJapa4 WOolj dNUDADY LMJOhCH.\SO_u_ -ml..!l—”!_-\l
L e L = A e _ 0 0 . 5 | 0 0 _ 001z | . $I2INOS AILIS WO INUIAIY YEN0oIY|-MO|4 _E
(000Z) 10141510 ¥IHIONY OL 1D141SIA|E ] |
— _ 3NO WOYd SINNIAFY/SLAITITY HONOYHL-MOH| |
_ BEE'96ET {6641 SpUNJ AUAISY JUIPNIS YIIM) 533IN0S [EI0T WOL) SINUBAY/SIdI2I9Y [BI0L ¢l
o ortsst {1 0 vi0'BZT ] | 280'305 | BEEES = == = —— N T
‘ 000T {6641 Spund AJIAI30Y JUBPNIS INOLIIM) 523IN0S |ED0] WOJY SaNUaAaY/s1d133ay B30
0 ~Jo [1] 0 0 00059 — I 000srz | A - - 5324106 |B207 WOJJ 3NUIASY 13410 1RIOL a
0 0 0 0 0 00059 0 000'SHE 666T (22itwaif B 2q1435aQ) sONUIADY |€20T 1DUI0 mol_‘
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 eesr | (aznuiany 5 aqusaq) 593 [£201 12410 [@O | |
R C=ma || Pl | SETERC=T T [T ) [ D" |.iﬂ|| R i m.vm._”| $123[04d |EUOIIEIOA JO 3[BS E
0 4] 0 0 0 0 te6t | SI5LISI JAYIO WOy JUdWARY .E.
= e e i = 9] R =l Xa fighc 0 == { ol mwm.m - spaadold xe| uollednap Aljiorg |0oyIs E
.Io 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 _Io - | osal | S19B11UOD SIDPUDA WOLJ SPIII0I E
0 06T saaJ uoeanp3 siaaug (|
|O A llﬂ o | 0 N d L .im o ] 0 - 0 |“I B D o h | O o ) |Owlm.H SIS 4|1 wrody m>UEO_>_ w_J_n:_Jm J0 mur_uc.;m& NOl_‘
0 9] | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0561 sonipuadx3 sieaj soud Jo punay [L 0|
0 0 0 ov6T S1DUISIA AYI0 PIPIADI 530195 [0 |
0 i i i @ o 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 | osel SjudWUIAAGY AJUno3 Jo [eddIUNIA WOy 5024 1oedw) B
0 0 0 0 4] 0 0 0 o 0zZ6T $921N0§ 21BALJ WO} SUONEUOQ PUE suonngLiuo) | QF
0o o otel | sieaudy H
06T #y] S3DYN0S IYI01 NOYH INNIAIY HIHIG| 96
e == - 3 Aupnyss | == T — i ﬂ
Ayajes |e170S /luswainay ERIVEVEMITTITN] # AJuQ s13quinp 310y J31u3 :uondudsag
8 UO1JUaAaL alld HoL ysed Sunjiopm s1alolg jende) ledpjuny uonepodsuel] 3711135 193Q g suoneradg |Jeuonesnp3 oy
(06) (08) (02) (09) (0s) (ov) (o) {02) (ot) | 1
1 A r I H 9 4 3 a ] ]
g abed SANNIATY/SLAIADTY Q3 LVINILST g abed



€20¢/02/9 969106/2/912/6959€96€ L£GGSZ099BTZBENSPEOIUMONUBSSERIDNSIISMN-O
To E ] 0 ASMLIE0L [0BL
0 0 0 66T | (o213} § 9q12550) 1BYIO - A L
m 0 0 0o otr | (134) aAENIYY UoREINP3 [BINY - A IAIL
0 0 B o e ‘ - s19001d Y35 - A L
0 0 0 | ooty | A 1qejunoady pue A aueald - A 3L
A u._._._h
i ~ l666v-00TY) 3LV1S
— — L | S - S Su— ...a&wn_m WoN4 Q3NN QYN m._.zgm—nmu_ﬂ._.mmul
0 ) y 0 ] 0 —— | 0 - 10 Y = 80D |esapaj wolj Apdasig pANiaIaY PlY-UI-SIUEIS pa1alsaY eioL (e8]
g o 0 0 . 0 | 0 osov | (321Wa}1 ¥ 3G11I53) IA0D "PI WOY PIAIAIBY PlY-U|-SIUBID PIIIUISIY JOUIO 28l
0 — o 0 | 0 o o900 | FENC [T
0 o | Io " 0sor ;_ (p1y 10B0W]) UOKINNSUOD lﬂ
0 SyoY _ 1e1S peay ﬂ.
[ [ [  losovskovi(g ) |
— = = — - i — FSINVHD Q3L0IHIS3E| |
0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 (1] 1A0D paj wouy Ap3aang _um>_wuw¢ v_< uj-s3uesn pansasun el [/ /|
0 g g g g 0 0 0 don _ (2z1wa3) ® 3G13530) "IAOD "B WO) PIAIIY PIY-U|-SIURID PA1INSIIUN 12410 Ll
0 - 0 ] 0] 0 0 o - 0 100t _ piy 1edW| [213pD4 .ﬂ
A . _— . - AT . " -T00b) “LAOD Av¥3a34 WOHA A1LDINIA GIAIIDIM QIV-NESINYHD QFIDIMISIUNA| |
883 S3JUNOS 1¥43034 N0 SINNIAIY/SLIFIFY €Ll
0 3 0 = 0 0 — | OLETST 0 ) 00005 TGie'e55 | QDOE | ...|.| muesam aes wioyy senuanay, 11833y 2oy (77 |
0 B 0 G 0 07151 0 R 7 mm ) — i PIY-UJ-S3UBID Pa3dLISaY [BI0L j‘!
0 0 i] 10 0 0 0 0 — | 666E | “{azitway g 3qi5aQ) 5931N0G A1BIS WIOI) BNUIAIY PBIILISIY JSYIO ﬂ
0 0 0 S26€ 5122014 22uBUBIUIEI - 21nIdNLISEHU| [00435 |GG |
0 0 0Z6€ uo1IINIIsUOI/AuIuuelg - STuBWAAOIdWY dImIdNAselu| (RG]
Io = ==l 0 | Y413 538pug Jawwns - saiunyoddQ Sulusea] papudix3 |/ G|
e t { { s ey . 0 . . o SI8E sjooyds saLeY) aels GG ]
0 10 0 0 0 [0} 0 08LE ss933n§ Joj Afojouyaay - ABojoulpdaL GO L
0 | Io 0o o 0 0 0 To SLLE JURID %30|g Juawaroldwi [euolieanpl g AlaJes [00y3s Q
0 0 } o |o — (9LE | 1UeJD §0|g SI(AIAS [RUOIIRINPT 0FEIL) €91 |
0 0 | 0 0 99LE | 1URID §D0]g UOIIRINP] [BI2USD 08eNYD 2G|
|0 1o |_ [0 - | Tev'es ~|soce | 1URID Y20]g - POOYPIYD Ale3
0 0 _“ 0 _ S69¢ uoneanp3 [euondp/aaeusal)y wensy
0 _ N 1o ._‘.lu - o - I. ..._.Iom.mm . A3R32117 4IUDNIS
| o) L] | i 0 0T9€ — __Siuesp wm:...._q EmEm>oEE_m:_Emm._
_“ 4 = ....nuulmlm mw..__u 5 | ﬁ 0 - 0 . uoneyodsuel] (€10}
0 0 0 0 665E | (az1wayf % aG13IsaQ) 19410 - UonELIndsues|
0 1658L 0 To B | otse . uoneanp3 (e12ads - uonenodsuel)
ﬁ.lo N T 1 o 0 — IEF S — _W:.nﬁo\/ln_...:m_:mmm _._n:...:oaa._E__.
: = S b gL A : MO : . _ NOLLY1HOdSNYHL
0 B 0 0 0o o o B |o - 0 N | s6ve | (o213 B 3q13530) D0 - UOBEINP3 HNPY
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | ot | {8301 Woyy) uoneanpl Ynpy
0 0 T ot _ uoeaNnp3 Jaug
0 o | 0 S 1o ) B E S9EE AIEIIU| 1573 B2IG 100YIS
i ] 0 15E)B31G 7§ YoUn 2214 Dl€IS
0 o o I . o e uonesnpy _uaur__..m _Eo.r. ¥l
| O B 0 oree | uone3npg [engulig [EUOIISURI] - S1BISUMOQ - UOIEINP] [ENSUIG op | |
iol } ] _ SOEE | I |Eu:m IdL= Emum:\soo :o:mu:nu._m_.._w:___a m_v_\
= = _. NolLyINa3 vnonmis|bi L
. T -  hwnaas | == I : ~ [ 2]
Alajes |e130S /3uBWIaINRY asueuajuiely # AJuQ S19quInN 3|oYM Ja1u3 :uondudsaq
1 UOIIUAABId 31 uoy ysey Sunjiopm spalosd |eyde) ledduniy uoneyodsuel] 331A435 3924 g suonesadg |euopeanpy | 320y
(06) (08) (0z) (09) (0s) (ov) (0€) (07) (o1} [
1 A r | H S) e 3 a o) <]
6 abed SINNIAIN/SLAITOTY dILYWILST 6 abed



969106/2/91¢/6959€96E/£GGGZ09982C8EG\SPEOJUMONUSSSERIINSIBSM O

€202/02/9
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 70 0c8Y UONEZIGRIS S99IAIDS UAUIIBN0D JALO - PIY D1ES [e12U3D - iUy [E 47 |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 6980 WaWasInquRy 152191u] puog euowy ping [Z4Z
0 0 o 0 0 0 o - o 8981 supau) xeL puog eauawry prng [ 47 |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (98 SUP3J) PUOE VONANNSUO) [00YS PALIEND [QhZ |
o 0 | 0 0 0 0 o o 9981 S1pa1) xe) puog AWapedy auoz pa
0 To ) o 0 0 0 0 I o8y s1uesn aaanadwo) pry 12edwi [gE 7
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 T vosy swen ejnuioy pry 1edwi [7 07|
0 o | €y | aoueIsissy 1wawdinb3 UORLANN PIYI - v¥YY [QEZ |
0 - o 0 o 798y uoREINp3 SSO[OWOH DIUAA - AOULININ - VYUY [GEZ |
0 0 e o o o o o o 198y 12dwioy - ABojouyaay - gll AL - vHYY [pEZ |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o oy | e|nwio4 - ABojouyaal - il 3L - vHuY [EE 7 |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (ssy | yBnoJyL-Mol4 - 8 11ed - VAl - YHUY |26 Z |
0 0 0 0 0 0 o - 0 958 100435014 - 8 1Ed - 30! - vauy || €2 |
0 B 0 0 o o 0 o |o " se8p (BE00T UONI25) JUBWIACITWI [DOYIS « | 3L - VYUY [OE 2 |
0 o 0 0 0 0 o o | 7580 {v 11ed) 3aWA0IAW |00Y3S - | AL - YHHY [BZ 7
0 0 0 0 0o 0 0 0 T essy | 1eALd qUaNbUISA - | JWL - VYUY [ 7
0 o ] 0 0 0 0 0 o 2587 a1eni1d ‘pa1adfBaN - 1 AL - vuuY [/ 22 |
0 0 F Bl 0 B Ts8y 2Wo3u| MOT -1 3L - VYUY [QZZ |
0 o ] o o 0 0 0 o | Tossy | uogezIIgels UONEINP - Piy DIELS [EIIUD - VHUY [GZ 7 |
0 0 o | otsy | uopeanp3 npy - [eapad [z 7 |
N ¥ H—— W 1 - . 11444
jo= = o |0 | - supiiad - 30 el |6 77 |
0 0 0 | e6eb (aznway 3 2qu353g) W0 - 13 |72
0 1 0 0 lowr | daig Y3l 3Nl apL-sustiad - 3 [[ ZZ |
_\“ LY _ | i _ SNIYH3d-31) 0ce
0 0 | eeew | = ; uonenp3 [epads (e12pad 2oy [ 7 |
0 n_ 0 (221w} 9 2qL1353@) JBYI0 - ¥3Q] - UOIEDINP] [EadS [eJapad mm..
0 To o Aseuona1dsig v3ql - uoneanp3 fenads jesapa4 [/ ) 2
0 0 - 0 o pieog 5§ Wooy y3al - uoneonp3 jeads |eiapad [9] 7
0 o — B ygnosy] mol4 ¥3qi - uoneanp3 jerads es2pa4 G 1 7
0 0 0 A1BUON121351( JoOYI53d - UOIEINP3 [E122dS [BI2PDS [P | 7
0 0 1097 48n01Y 1-MO]4 [00YI51d - UONEINP] [B13DS [B19P24 [£ ] 7
NOILYINQA TVID3dS - V¥3a3d|CL
[0 ~ |o — (o leeoor | 2 - - mopL oL [ 7]
0 0 0 0 667y {oz1waif § 8G14355@) 1410 - Al L[ LZ
0 0 | 0 o vy o AImuad 1517 - AL |G0Z |
0 0 0 ~| ooo'ot 0oty 1WeJD 1UdWIYLU3 NWapedy § 11oddng WWAPMIS - Al AL ﬁ
P b ARSI e 1 2 =m0 i . nEuufloe
0 0 [0 79£°SE = 1apiLjesoL [D0Z ]
0 1o . 0 |zve'ez | eeev | (a2 g aquosaa) 9ui0 - 1911 [GOZ |
0 o 0 0 | over uoneanp3 1uesBi - 3L [0 Z |
0 o | 0 0o SOEY a1eai1d ‘pa139(3aN - 3wodu| mo1 - | 31t [€0Z |
0 0 0 07519 “oogr - awoaui mo1 - 1 9L [Z0Z |
L 110z
0 " N S = ————— a3ymas pood (301 [00Z |
0 o 6620 (22113 1§ 3q1353) 190 - 291AI3S PO0S [BR] |
0 ovey 531qe1983A puB ANI4 YsoIg Mmle
o 0 T 9zy wesgo1g poog e npy pue puyd [76
0 0 Sty welgoid/uiwpy 931A135 poo4 Jawwng 961
0 wysor oty | wieiBosd 1sepieasg jooydg a
0 0 stzy | i wesdold y A [Eraads a
o %ﬂﬂ - I..oﬂNv wiesdong ysuni jooyds jeuolieN a
0 ".m o —— ..Io_u~< | uoisuedx3 dn-3Je3s Jseysealg .le_\
IE o DIAY3S 6004|161
) i - I T Thmas [ o B - a| ) .ﬂ
Kiages |enos /juawainay asueuajuepy | # AJuO s1aquinp ajoym Jaiug :uondudsag
3 UOHUAAAL] 2114 uoy1 yseJ Suppom syafoid jender Jedpiunpy uopenodsues] 391uas 192Q wgsuonesadg | |euoneanp3 12y
{os) {08) (os) {09) {os) {ot) {0€) {0z) | fot) m
1 ] r | H 5] El 3 | a E]
0t abed S3INNIAIN/S1HIZOIY AILYNILST 01 abed



€202102/9 069106/2/912 /6959596 LEGGGZ0998ZZEEINSPEOIUMOOIUISSERIDNSIOSM\:D
- -
SELLBEC (6641 SPUNg AuAIDY JU3PMIS YIIM) SINNIAIH/SLAITDIY 1D3HIA TVLIOL be
T = 7, r\ pl S e t O T T ST ioaT T o'y - T b R g
aliLe ottt s 0 vLo'Be} L Fevsle YEOICH RELBLEC (6641 Spuny Ananay Juapnis INoYIIM) SINNIATY/SLAIADTY LIIHIA TYLO0L 0L¢
0 0 = 0 0 0 Dilzo 0o 998'69¢ | €80°coy 000y | $3DUNOS TWHIG34 WOYA SINNIATY/S1dIDIY TVLO0L ﬁ
0 W o 0 a © 998'69¢ €80'zhY 91B1S 9Y3 NIYL *JAOD [BISPSH WO PIAIAIBY PIY-UI-SIUBID PaIILIsay [230] 89¢
0 0 0 0 998'692 64596 (321w3)) B 2GII53Q) SIS ML) IA0D “Pad WO PAAIIDY SIUEID PAISUISIY JBYID 2£9¢
TS ] 0 0 o  |oosz 66y | - WeIdlg 31AIA5-104-034 - SpUNJ Sulyle pIealpay [GOZ |
0 0 0 T 00z | tesw | 0B AND BARENSILIWIPY - 5pUN 3 Tunaten w_mu_ii._@
0 0 0 0 2861 S3NIAIDY PIIEIBY PUR SIUAWISSISSY IE1S J0j JURID Q7
0 o 0 0 B [ 1860 | - . SIUBID JUBWISSISSY I1BIS %
0 o o ) 096 $100Y25 131eY3 (819p34 [ 207 |
/o o 0 T ltes® €6y AIenD Jaydea - it AL H
0 0 0 0 0g6Y e[nwo4 1BdD[2AT( [RUOISS3J01 - Jamoyudsid - [| AL [09Z
0 0 0 0 0z6r uaJPJIYD SSADUWIOH 10 UoneInp3 Aauunp |GG Z
0 0 — i |06t uonsinbay agenduey ysyidu3 - 111 ap1L (g5 7 |
0 0 [ 0 o 506t S1Uapms i) 7 siawsea] ysiiiug 10) UondNNSU - (1| AL M.WIN..
0 0 0 1o 206% ul uRID UOISUEGXY |00YIEDN - dD] Dif1 O3 DIRY ﬂ
i a ot L = o) 0 106% _ e .Em_m.oli doy 3y 01 adey ﬁ
0 = e 0 B 0 O o |0 I swesgoud snnwins 120l [FG7Z
0 0 0 0 0 o ) 0 0o | ossv | we301d pun qof pa - SPUNJ vyuY 22410 [£G7 |
0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 ey | . X - SpUNJ vHYY 4310 [2G 7 |
0 0 ) 0 B 0 0 0 ) o | sy X1 - spun4 vy 1910 [ GZ |
0 0 0 0 o o 0 o L8y A - spung vy 12110 [0G Z |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1o a8y - 1A - sPund vty 19410 [B 12 |
0 o 0 0 o 0 0 o sigy | pooypiiy Alze3 - vuy |1z |
) o o 0 0 o 0 B 1o 1o N [ A-spund wyuy 12ui0 [/ 47|
0 0 0 0 o I 1o | ey | i Al - SPUNJ vyyY J24i0 [91 7 |
0 0 0 0 0 0o 1o To wsy | 11l - spuny whyy 110 [GH7 |
0o o 0 0 0 o 0 = 0 o Twey | 11 - SPUNd vyuy 12U [Pz |
T T o >u_h300m e = —— 1 = #
Aiajes |e10S /uswainey @oueuUAIUIB # AJUQ S13qWINN 3joyp Ja3u3 uondudsag

12 UOIIUBABIG 314 uoj ysed Sunjiopm syrafold jeude) ledpiuniy uonepodsues) ERISETSGEN] '3 suonesadg Jeuoneanp3 1wy

(06) {08) (02) (09) (0s) (ov) (0€) (02) (o1) CL
1 A r | H ) E | El d o) g
|| abed SANNIAIY/SLHITOTY AT LVINLLST || ebed




£€202/02/9 969106/2/912/6959€96€/£GGGC0998CCBEG\SPEO|UMOI\USSSERIONSISSM O

VW0 VET 0 [} O0E 71 0 000'ST GZE BT SIVEL 00022 [T153 = UOREASIUIWIPY |E13USD - 5921135 1OdAns [e1oL | GG |
0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 e $021A195 AjjUNnwiw JJ0 | 14
= - | ez | |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 gz S22IADS UONeSILIWIPY ALY [e103dS | £
596'98 0 0 008 0 0 0S¢ SIV'ET 000°24 | oz $93IA10S UORRASIUIWPY 9AINIX3 | 2G|
6LO'LY 0 0 005°€T 0 000'ST 6/5'81 0 0 1 oter | sa21A195 UoyeINp3 Jo preog [ .G |
00£2 N D UO[IRIISIUIWPY [BISUIY - SIIIAIDS tﬂnnlzm 0¢
9598y 0 0 0 0 GOLTT 0 95697 00002 1 oeozz | — = #e15 [eUORINASY] - 23IIBS Hoddns (2301 [ B
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ogzz S Bunsoj 3 wowssassy | Qp |
018'0¢ 0 0 0 0 006 0 016’6 000°0% orzz | sooinsas erpoy feuoneanp3 [/ |
apg'/T 0 0 0 0 0os'oT 0 ap0’L 0 (%44 C sa31M195 uonanuIsul o uawaAcsduy ot
e 3 ¥ 00zz ST tmam |euo11INISU| - SBIIALDS tcn_n_:m (%174
055'98 0 0 0 0 oo 00587 0ST'TL 0059t W I = = nd - 593135 Uoddns 230 ﬂ
0 0 0 0 0 0 1} 0 0 0612 \.mN.\Em: % aqu35907) s|1dnd - savIas 1oddns 19410 IMIVI
00¢ o] 0 0 o 00¢ a 0 0 0S1Z SaOIAIDS ABojoIpNY 1§ ABo(OYIRd Yddads | Fir
05825 0 0 0 0 007 0 0STTT 0059% vtz “soanss jeBoroyahsd || |
005’ 0 0 0 0 0 005'E 0 0 vETe T 599195 1ieaH | O |
0 0 1] 0 0 0 0] 0 0 0T1e T soamag ooueping .ﬂ
000°sZ 0 0 0 0 0 000'57 0 0 otz o SAIDS 1OM [E120S 3 DIUEPUINY [ QE |
= 0012 {1dng - sasia1as woddns | /€

————

An_mv SIIIAY3IS L xOmn_Dm

0E0PEET | D {6661 spung >a_>:u< Jliapms E:sv pruoRINNSUY (R10) GE
0B0'EBET 0 0 O0ET 00S'T veratt 8LETT £52'P5E SESUB6 T {6661 spuny Aunnay 3uspms anouum) , uonanasul (eiol | g
000'tT 000'Tt . saJnjipuadx3 pun{ AUALDY 1U2pNIS -.ml
o} 0 uoning Meatd sweilold pI wdofonpen 25
(i} 0 uotun] Em>:n._ swierlosg jendug K3
0 10 :oa:ﬁ J1ealg E.Euoi P9 ..m.m|
0 0 uoning uum>_i mEEmo_n_ Jooyas EEE:m 62
u ] ._..u.yl.s_:n LT u_.u.mm@u&ululc_ wlN
0 (4] uoniny Meald swesdoid 319 | /7
0 0 uoning FeAd sussford voneanpa Bununue/inpy | 9z
0 10 uolIN] 318Alld ¥-24d mEEmoE _mu_._uEuEn:m\_m__quuz ¥4
0 uoINy DIBAL ZT-) Sty _E:uEu_nn:m_____ 9.::3_ [ 24
0 1] uouIng Y-2ig sSwesdosg uoieanpy eads Im.ml
..o\ 0 N 91eALQ ZT-Y swesdoid uoneanp3 jeroadg [44
,c| 0 uonyg 93eAlld swelsdord zT-3 teindoy 12
0 0 == uolINg 1eAld - SwesFosg ¥-a1d 0z
o|[ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 swesfoid _m:czn_o 7§ aAeuIy JueniL | G
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S  sweiiosd enfug [ g
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 sweidold uoieanpd s,JoauQg 1l
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 sweord poo [ G|
f@.[ll. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 swesBoud [00Y2s rawwns | G|
0S8Zt 0 0 00€'T 0 000°LT 00€ 05T 00022 B ) swresBoig dnsejoydsiou) |
00T'98 0 0 0 005'T 009'EL 0001 0 0000t swesliond 313 [ £
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  swesdosg uoneonpa Suinunuoa/inpy | Z L
.o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 v_.y_.mEﬂmmiﬂB:uEm_nn_:m pue jeipoway | | |
65086 0 0 0 0 6019 seL’0e ELO'ET 6v5°L5 zt sweillong uawayddng pue jepawoy [0 |
m 0 0 0 0 0 (1} 0 (1] 3-21d swesdosd uoaeInpy (eads [
00T'0EZ 0 0 0 0 000t 53 005°E5 057541 (0721 - 00zt suopun4) suresBord uoneanp3 jenads [ g |
S65°E6 0 0 0 0 STZ'T 0 0E8'TC 055'0L - o x-oid | 7
0 il s|001dS Jatiey) o1 judwheq uoniny | g
ggezes o |o 0 0 00z'CT 0 D00'EST 981759 C o sweioig ey [ G|
_ . (cInownusni] ¥
(a3) annd vNoILYINa3 -0t €
|e30L . wawdinby s193(q0 J3Y10 AepanQ [ende) SIELaIeN saalnies syyauag aako|dwy sale|es #3oung 4
uoneuIWIa] pazijende)-uon % sajddng paseyaind AjuQ siaquinN sjoyan 121u3 :uondussag
(006) {o08) (002) (009) (00S) {oop) (00€) (002} (00T) (1]
1 A r | H 9 El El ad 0] 3|

2| abey SIUNLIANIAXI/SLNINISHNTSIA GILVAILST Z| 9bed




£20c/0¢/9 069106.2.912/6959E96E LEGSSZ0998ZZBENSPEO|UMOONUSSSEEIDNSIBSM-D

000°0F 0 000 0% ] [_ooop 0N 1700 77 3510 290 01 SwRaWAeg 2101 [P0 |
.oll. ol .oll —_— _ _ 00bY e = Amum.m j0 H:Ow SHUN 1A0D 3 :_o Bauyip o u_c.uE>m.__ mnm..—\l
0 i 0 T 0 Tooer | ‘(@815 ul) S13{5UBA1-53{UN INOD 3 3510 J9YI0 03 SualAEd je10) [Z()] |
o% = 0 0 ' __ o6Ey | EN‘EW: ® 3G11353(Q) SIajSUBL] - SUUN 1A0D) 1eIS-U| 0} Ssluawhed JAYIQ z_ﬂ
(1] | 0 o |I¢|| ._a.| o slajsueld) - mEm_on 1210 10) sjuawAed ﬁ
[0 0 OLEY S13)SUBL} - Em_woi 290|100 AluUNWIWO) 10} STUdWARH 6
0 | m ‘ OvEY T siajsuel | - swesSoid 31D 10 sauanuihegg |m
0 0 OEEY sa3jsuel] - swesdoud p3 SuinuUO)/1NpY 10] sjuawied (3]
.o — i 0 ‘_ 0ZEY Il B siajsuely - sweigold uoneanp3 [eads oy sjuswied M
0 1] |_OLEW 5J9JSuRl] - sweidold J1enday Joy ﬁ:w:;mn_ G6
0 = [i] | oozv (33845 Ul] uoRinL - s1jun 180 B 351 a1 01 swawked 0l | p6 |
0 0 06Ty | {52131} 1 9q1253@) UDIN] - S1UM 140D ILIS-U] 01 SIUBWARY JAYI0 £6
0 0 | _|om.m.v|.. 1 - swesgoid 1210 10j sauswhey M
0 e = —,o |onmv T - uonn - swesdold 989100 AluNwwo) 1o} stuuieg ..Hml
.ol 0 — .|9.\Nﬂ 1T = uonin] - sweifoud 31D _2 sjuawAed ..m.ml
0 =5 0 B omel uoin] - swesdoid uoieanpl m_.__:c::ou\u_:_u< __u_ m:._m.._.,___&._ lm.m..
0 | 0 oy uoning - susesfiorg uoneanp3 [eads Joj sluswhed | gQ
0 ) |0 | otzy | . - uolinL - swes3014 Jeinday Joy swuawhed | /g |
T — T oooor | I ooty {@1e35-01) 510N 1465 § 3510 19410 03 SwALARd [F10L ﬂ
o 0 0 " o6lb (22123 7 211953 SWEIB01] - SIIUM IA0D MBIS-U| O STUDWAE] JBLIO ﬂ.
1] o 0 LTy swesfosd 280)|02 Anunwwo oy siwawhed | pQ
o — ..‘o — 0 — ooty | — sweidoid 310 Joj s1udWARY |_m.m.
n_ . — B 1 | '.o 0 — Omﬁﬂ sweidold uoliesnpl Sununuod/1Npy 4o sjunwhed H
000 _...._w “ 0 Tgudw | 0Tty swesgosd uoneanp3 [e1ads 1oy siuawhed F
0 1 Y] 1 0 0Tty — sweidoid 1einday 1oy suswAeq E
00TV _oﬁm...__ SHUN 300D B I5IQ 49Y3I0 03 suaLAed | 6/
== R - o GE LA Lyl VI SN N SRR N N I T e ) {03) SLINN LAGD % 1510 ¥3HLO OL SINIWAVE 3/ |
0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 0 000t | » Rl (a3)/S3DIAYIS ALINAINNGD | 7/ |
989°9ZL 0 ] Siv've | 000G 009%60T | ¥55'S8 15086 000"v0F 0002 | : "~ so3ynas wiang (2101 [ 9/ |
0 0 0 0 o] 0 0 0 B 0 me\Em: ¥ agasaqg) .um__z mwu_Ewm tonn_:m ._m:uo |m..
009’z 0 (1] 0092 0 0 — |0 o 0 — = _m.;:wu mmu_?_wm u._nnnnm 2301 |N
009’z 0 0 009'L 0 0 0 0 0 52210435 Butssanoad exeq | €/
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o sonias peis [ 77 |
0 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 "o 1 oe9z $321AJ95 UOIBWIOU| M
0 0 0 0 0 1 |o 0 - 0 0 029z il - S32IAIIS UDIIEN|EAT R 1UWDO|aAAQ ‘Y2IR3sIY ‘Buluueld .Olh
] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0192 503135 Loddng [ea1ua) jo uowdang | 9
0092 ey B _m._a:wu sa3uas poddns | 89
0 0 SL0'T 000’S 000°08 Sge'le | OILGE 005021 —oosz | ssousng - $33)A1s LI0GANS (€101 | /G |
m ) o] 0 0 4] 0 0 o otsz | i soarnias feusaiut | g9
o o 008 000 00008 | ooz’sT 008°6¢ 00529 osse = 52910195 poo [ G |
[} 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0ssz s91A19S Uoyelsodsuel] idnd | 9
0 0 0 0 0 oot'g To o ovsz | B ) S9IIAIDS 1UE|d JO SIUBLIIUEIN B vouesadn ﬂ.
o} o 0 0 o} 000'ET 0 T oese | S22IAIDS |BISI] =g |
0 0 SLTT 0 0 T STO'T 0166 | ooo'ss | otsz | 3210135 1oddns ssaulsng 4o uondaua | | g
00s2 ir < - mmm:_mslnm S3INALDS tonn:m 09
wwm.mm,__{l 0 I ] 005 0 T oor i )mlwmw‘_@ﬁ oon'seT 0ovz T UciensIujuipy j0oyas - s231A198 w6ddns (830) .m.
[ — 0 0 0 0 0 0 lo = o | osve (521wi21) 7 211353 UONENSIUIWPY [00YS - 52210195 Loddns 13wi0 | BG |
| 9zz’sor 0 0 005 0 0057 00 | azg’at Tooo'stt | oz | 52240425 [ed13U11g 343 40 10 /G |
00ve UOIIBJISIUIWIPY |OOYDS - SRIIAIBS toansw .©|m.
|e1oL sisuag sdidinby s18{q0 13430 Aepng jeydey it i ) sijsuag aako|dw3 salle|eg #3%ung [4
uoneulwId] pazijeyide)d-uon 13 sajddng paseydind AU s13quINN 310YAA 493u3 uondidsag
(006) (008) {00L) (009) (00s) {oot) {o0€) (002) (00T1) L]
1 A r | H (9] E| =) ad o) S|

¢l abed STUNLIANIIXI/SLNIWISANEGSIA A3LVINILST ¢l obed



£20z/0C/9 969106/2/9+2/6959€96€/£555C0998CCRESPROIUMONUSSSEBIONSIOSM.D
| {sa) annd 3D1AY3s 183a - 0g|8S |
mrm.m‘w h il S3ur d ngsiqg J3nQ /s1diaaay jo (Aduaidyaq) ssaIx3 Om_.
S66'618 I | | [ | vesTTzr Sik'es [ oLTEsl 00ETEZ | otd’sit | saanypuadx3/auassingsa 1930 €301 (GG
_— — — — - (13" |
0 0 0009 | (IA"80) SAIDNIDNILNOD ¥O4 NOISIAOYd [PS
0 0 | [ ooos | 231135 193 [e301 [£G |
W |0 [ 00zs | 193 w3 -3uoT uo Isa133U| - BIIAIBS 3q3Q 25l
I — | ER— | (b oy, 3920 UL
0 0 001s 1G3Q W3 [-H0YS U0 3S2123U] - BIIAIFS 3qaq |eoL |G|
0 ] 0 | T 0sts | (o2nuayl § aquIsaqg) 199Q Wud L-Loys uo Isa1iu| Jayio (0G|
0 0 [s]48 o $31e214131130 uonediuy ply Nels [1a
0 0 [ _ QfTS s310N paiedidnuy xe] (day dold |euosiad aielodior T}
0 0 0z1s sojoN vonedinuy xe) | /4]
0 0 _ |oﬁm 3 | - sjuelsep uoednuy xel eTan
_ _ 0015 193@ wia)-1oYs uo 3sas3u| - aA13S 3qaqg (Sl
| ooos ———— : (Wm0l 30iAY3S 183d | Fi |
= o ) 0 = [ oooy | AUN 380D 19 351 I 03 Suaswhed 1oL [Ef |
0 I | | e - yr (9IELS 0 INO] SIHUM 1405 1 3510 010 1 svowhed (74 |
- 1 0 0 ooty | - F [@3015-Ul] $HUR 110D 8 1510 J2UI0 01 S1AWRES (2301 [ 1,
0 = 0 .o “ 06Tt farwsal) 3 2911353g) sweidold - SIUN JA0Y 2IBIS-U| O] sjuBwAed JaY10 ovl
0 0 A o _ [ei 284 weigold 310 10} sjuawAed BEL
0 0 __ 0 _ [e7 4872 sweigold uoneanpy eaads Joj siuowdheq (G0 |
0 . = _ | 0 | 0 | | oty | sweidoid sejnday Joy siuawhed |1 €|
. ootV (23835-U1) SHUN IN0D 1B ISIQ J3YIO O3 SJUBWAEY [OE L
= = - - — = — - L Sy . |
! oooy | (7RO} SLINM LAOD '8 1510/ 4IHLO OL SINIWAV [GE
(1T 7 TA———— ) 0 0 ___|o o i [ (WBO)S3DIAHIS ALINANNOD |PE |
5'6 (Y] 0 vERTEY SIVES sa3inag woddng jmoy foe )
0 0 0 [ B 0 | ooez | (azjuwajf g 3qusag) s\ - sad1Alas Hoddns sayio [ZE |,
0 0 vERTTZY Sive5 ~ |00ETZ | O0TZ6IT | oosz ssauisng - 5231035 Moddns (0] [1 ]
0 . | ‘0957 _. 5931025 pood [OE |
0 0 M IommN _ 59210195 uonelodsuey| (idnd 621
0 0 | ovsz S3IAIDS JUeld JO IDUBUIUIRI 7§ uollesadO [GZ L
0 o 0 0 0 0 0 - | 0€ST 7 $931AIDS UONIMISUOD 3 UOLISINbIY 53| LZL
0 0 W o m M o |o |.q - o QHmN ! $921AJ95 Loddns ssauisng Jo uolallg 9zl
—_ = h Ve 0052 _ —= = me:_m:m - SIS tonn:w Gzl
0 |0 0 ._.o 0 0 |0 0617 | {aznwayy  aquiasaqg) siidng - sad1a105 Joddng JouiQ vzl
—_— _— - — el 14714
==L =+ 00tz (1dng - saoiasas poddng 7|
= _ e L A L T e Pl I 000T (IN'30) S3DIAY3S 1490ddNsS |22 |
(IN'30) ANN4 JDNYNILNIVIA ONY SNOILYHIdO - 0z{ b ¢l
096'0E7 = 3 (666T spun3 Anmndy [g ]
| | UBPNIS Y3tMm} sa1nzip /53 ANgsiq J3A0 H/s1d1223y jo (Adualdyag) ssa1x3
: (666T spun3 Ananay Juapms [g ||
= Inoy3im) sainyipuadxy/ Ings\q JanQ y/s1d1933y jo {Asuadnyaq) ssadxg
9iL’oat’E (1] 0 SLL'9E TwiLl'sze | TEE'LvT ﬁ OTEZSE | GES'IBET I i {666T) SPUNJ A3AIIIY JUSPNIS YIIM) s3anjipuadxg/siuswasingsig ana jeol |21
SLLBYTE 1] 70 SLL'sT ~ o059 vei'siz TEGLPT [ DTEZ5E SES'TBET T {666T) sPUN4 AJAIIIY IUSPNIS INOYIIM) saunyipuadxl/sjuawasingsig 1a.ig (ejol (9 |
v 0 | 0009 [~ W N {@3) S31DNIDNILNOD HO4 NOISIAOYHd |G L |
o 0 I | 0005 | a3n3s 193@ 101 ] |
g 0 | | o0o0zs | 192Qq wia)-Juo uo ysasalu| - 3IIBSIqaqg €)1
g ————— b ————————— 0015 | 1990 WI21-M0yS UO 353133] - 33AISS 1900 [E10L 45}
_u| . | | 0 7 0sTS [ (22131} 19 2q11353) 149Q WIS -1OYS U0 152J91U] JBYIQ LLL
0 } 0 | 0oPTS S2EYNIB) uoedRNRUY Pry dels 0Ll
0 _ 0 | I omﬁum T sojoN pajedianuy xe] |day Ajuadold |euosiad aiesodiod 601
0 __ 0 | 0715 sa10N uonedidiuy xel G0 |
io ST, — 0 L - N )| A _ 0oT1S sjuesep vonediyjuy xe) 10|
| 001s 1020 W3] -110ys uo jsasa1u) - A5 3q3q |90
: - 0005 (@3) 321A¥3S 1830 GO,
syjavag juawdinbg s|elIalep| SAIIAIAS
|e3ol s133[q0 2410 Aepng |ende) : ) sjyauag asAojdw sale|e UN, c
uoneuIwIdL pazijeude)-uoN ! g sayddng paseydind g IFS3 =S 4 : AJuQ slaquinN ajoypp 1a1u3 :uondudsag
(006) (008) {o0z) (009) (005} (oop) (00€) (002) {00T) b
~ 3 g 1 I 5] 3 3 a 2 | g
| abed STUNLIANIAXI/SLNIWISUNGSIA AILVNILST ¥1 obed



£¢02/02/9 9691062291 2/6959€96€/EGG5Z0998ZCBENSPEOIUMONUSSSEBIONSIISMY O
0 I o | _ I | (azjway g aquasaq) (pasnay jedpuid (012
| | 00ES | aseyaing/aseat) _ 1gag wia)-Juoq uo jedpuld Jo sjudiheqd - 31ABS 1990
1 | | | 4 5K ——
0 ) — I | | | 3qaQ w13 -3uo uo 3sa183y| - mu_Emm 192q |602
e | | | | Haee Lt e bty e SEBi
[+] | 1 | 1g3a E._w._. tc_._m up umﬂmu:_ - wu_?_mm Eun_ 12101 907
0 | | _ _ | {3z1wa)) % 2qi1353Q) 192Q W11 -110YS UO 153191U] JBYI0 0z
0 — _ | _ | sateayla) uonedpnuy pty 21215 DN
0 " | { 5210 uonedionuy xe| |day dold jeuosiag ajesodiod [ir4
0 - _ soj0N uoediduy Xel VQN
0 | sjueliepp uonedidiuy xm._. MDN
ot N N e T N T I B = — unwn E..w._. HOoYs uo 1sa133u| - 33136 1qaq |20Z
= BE {uL) 321Au3s 1830 |1 0Z
s = b = T 3 =& o - SUUN 3109 3 3510 210 03 sjuswheq 1=l [00Z
© (3z1way 3 ma:umm& (31€35-40-InQ) SHUN 0D 7 ISIQ J2YIQ 03 SIUdWAE] 661
0 = o T | (mesujswn 116D 7@ 3814 10 03 suaLARd 2101 [
OI 0 i 06TH _ {3z1way) % 3g12353Q) SWeIS01d - SHUM IA0D PIS-U| 01 SludWhRd OO LBl
o| = .m. | 0LTY | swelF0.d 280(|00 AUNWWOY) JoJ SIudWARY 961
= . i
0 0 | [o]-4874 _ sweigdoud 310 1o} siudwhey GH|
0 _..ul - 0ETY _ sweiolq uoiesnp3 JuiNunuod/inpy 1oy siuawhed [pE1
.0 = | |n. . _. ozty | swesJoud Uo(eINP3] (e1ads 104 SIUIWARY 6l
.c |_ 0 i . | OLTY | wiesdoud 1enday 10} sjudwihed |ZF 1
= = = 00TV IoF e T [m1E35-u)) sSHUN 110D 72 151 1330 03 siuawheq [16 |
P — e N ] I = | = e - e | Oooov Eh. SLINN LAOD 8 1SI0 Y3IH1O OL SINIWAVC |06 L
T o 1o ] 0o o [ I 1o ~ | oooe . (¥1)S33IA43S ALINNININGD |68 L
T€LSLT [0 TJo 0057 Tte0’®L 00E'ZY A oo0'set | oooz | 55 uoddns eio) [g@]
= — _d = Io el 0 0 — o —— ..o = 0062 _ (azpwayy 3 2q11253) ssauisng - sO3IAdS Loddns 12110 | LG
| TeLSLe o 0 ~loosz | te0%8L Toogzy 006271 | 000'ST 000's2T ossz | - - saayusag onenodsues jdng [9g |
$53uUISNg - SNAISS tonnsm cgl
- g - - - — —m—— = = = — - —_ . = = i - ———1
0 _ 0 0 ._ o} ._ 0 4 0 n_ 0 A 0 ﬂo | o6tz | \w :tw: wma:ummg sjdnd - mS_Zum:caq:m 12410 |$R1
| 0012 spidng - 53210035 tonnsm RN
- erRE 0002 (¥1)'SIDIAYIS 140ddns [28 )
| (¥1) ANNA NOILYLYOdSNYYL - 0] L 81
.|H =——— === = ———= E— I I . : ETH
¥991 : | = | | | e _ samjpu, dxg/ g510 Jan0 Jsidiasay o _>u_._u_u_,_on__ ssawd |61
| 657°9TC | 659917 ==; mw_::u:umxu___f..mE»E:n 1] 332417 [BIOL 11
0 | 0 ! 0009 ! (@) SIIINIDNILNOD HO3 NOISIAOYd |LL )
BSP9TT 7 esv'9Te | i 0005 | = 10951930 1301 [97 ] |
00s _ | 005 0 | ﬁ | oobs (22133} 3 3guasag) 12D - 1R agaa |G L
000'EBT _ [ | 000'EBT _ | [ = = (zitia3] 3 2qi12550) (painay EdbUd (17 ] |
| | | ﬁ iz aseyaind/aseat) s 3dea i3] -8uoy uo [edizulid JO SIualWARY - 921AI3S 198Q
| i } ] = : S —
656'C¢ _ __ | | ! 00z5 | Smn_ Ehu._..u__o._ uo 3531V - mu:r_mm 1929 el
Io = __ 1 | _ M | oots | = 193a E;m..m.uto_._m uQ Isa433u] - 3RS Igaq |eIoL |7/ |
0 _ | | | _, « 0SIS 1 {ziwa1} § 9G1i353() 1990 WIS1-1I0US UC IS WO |} ] |
0 | | i oris | $3182141143) UoneddNLY piy aels [()/ |
0 - !_ ‘ “ [ 0ETS _ 310N uoneddnuy xe| [doy doid [euosiad diesodio) |RG |
0 A | | | (1748 _ sajoN uoneddnuy xe) [0Q|
Y & L_- _ ﬁ 0r1S _ SJUBLIEAA :o;ma_u;:< xm._. /91
_ 00TS 1982Q E.w._. to:m U0 353123u] - 32}, wm Ewn 991
~ 0005 (sa) 321A¥3s 183|591
= Hr = _ - = =S 7 :- = 7 o000 | (33835-U) SHUN IA0D % 1510 19YI0 O3 Siuwhed (k1oL Q)
0 | ! OBLE _ {aziwalf ' 2q1IIs3Q) SWeIS0ld - SUUMN 1A0D 31e1S-U| 01 StuaWwArd 1910 €9l
0 _, _ _ ozty | swerFoid uol1eINp3 [E1D3dS 10} sjudWARY 291
0 & I_ 1 | 1 | DLy sweiBoud 1enBay Joy siuowihed Q|
A .. P = N < TI— L - ) N A T —— - e —— Ea=ia
| ooty | (23E35-U1) SUUN WMD) '3 1S1Q 49430 03 sIWAWAeg |09 )
000% (S@) SLINN LAOD '8 1510 ¥IHLO OL SINIWAVJ |65
BUENE] juswdinb: s|eliale| $9I1AI3 |
|leloL yauag — s193lqQ JBY10 Aeping [enide) IS e syyauag aaAojdwy saye|es #1uUng 4
uoneulwIIL pazijelide)-uoN g sa||ddng paseyaung AJuQ siaquinp ajoyp Jajug :uondunssqg
{006) | (008) (00z) (009) (00s) (oov) (00g) (002) (oot) | )
1 | A r | H 4 3 a | o 1 g
G} obed SIANLIANIIXI/SLNINISANESIA AILVINILST G| abed



969106/2/912.69G9€96€/€555C099BCCHESSPROIUMOC\USSSERIDNSIBSMN.O

£202/02/9
LES'L | oovz UONBIISIUILIPY |00YS - $331AIaS waddnsg [e10L .m.mm]
.o e — al | 06¥Z {3z1w3)) % AG11353Q) UONENSIUILPY |00YDS - SDIAIDS Jioddns 1ay30 ..lm...w..
[E8'L ; orve 521125 [edidULLg 2410 9140 [OGZ |
3 .| c|=vN|I E iF] o :c_am._amﬂr__E—E _oo:uw.lmwu_imm tonn:m. GGZ
,m.;. = ~_ h @.amIN — .H:o. .mhww_n_r_n<|_.u.~w:mu - 5371195 Yoddng [B30) ﬁ
0 | S9E7 SJUBWAR S3INAIDS SWIR|D puR JUDWATRUB A YSIY G2
0 | 19£7 pUN4 3ULINSU| J|3S WOy Pred SWiep) ﬂ
0 __ 0EET 531A19G SAIEIISIUILIPY BAIY |B1DDTS H
158'8 | T ozee S2IAIFS UOHEIISIUILIPY 28IN23x3 )G 7
— | oT€? 5931425 LOI1BINPT JO pieog ﬂ
. Pl | | ool iy - I:m._umlzm_:_ﬂ.vd_m._u:au.mlmu_ﬂ_ow poddns [84Z
006 = m | z | T e = tmgm_m:aﬂu:.ﬂm:_MuI_EMWtem.n._ﬂm._muo._. H
0 __ I . 3u1sa] 13 JUBWISSISSY _..@l‘vl.m.
006'€ S22IAIDS BIPOA [eUOEINPT |GirZ
..c ) = | m i S3IAIIS UOIIDNASU| JO LUaWdACIdW| ﬁ
- L i e = | oozz (B - - ..| : tﬂlm [euoannsy) - nwmu_z.w.mﬂumﬁ..wm £ve
085 ] 1 089 | ootz idng - s331035 Loddns felol |7H7 |
oI .ﬂ I | 06T | {az1waj) 19 aqiasaqg) sjdng - sa21AIS 110ddns JayiQ E.
0 | 0 0512 59218135 ASo|oipny 13 Aojouled yiaads F
083 | 089 _ | oviz 5221195 [22190)0y2ASy 6e2]
0 [ 0 | 0ETT S301A195 WIEAH [QEZ
.o . = 0 .|-_ | oztz 532135 3dueping |1 07
0 [ ] ST oT1Z D = - _ S9DIAISYIOM [B1205 1§ 22UBPUALY [OE T
| ootz nidnd - sa3iasas Hoddng |GEE
i o Al D5 = " [ |.000Z | I (SS/HIN) SFDIAY3S L¥OddNS |VEE
£L9°05 — & e [ I —as A e —=— — uopannsu 10y [EEZ
0 _ ! 006T sweldosd jevondQ 1g aAIIBUIB]Y VBN ZE2
0 - _ | " gost sweiJo.d enduyg H
..o =l B 0041 i swergold uonesnpl s 3G E
0 7 | 059T . sweJdold payIn .m.mm.
o 0091 swelgoid |0oyds JIBWwng Qz2
..oomﬂ h 00ST | swei§o.d 1SejoYdsIau| .m.
m¢ﬁl _——1i 7 00bT swesdoid 310 ﬁ
0 00ET swelJold uoneanp3 Suinuiuol/inpy GZZ
0 SLTT N-21d suresfosd |euawsddns pue eipawdy |47 2
0S2'T 4 A T oseT 71+ swesBoud jeruawajddng pue [elpaway .m
0 | 10 1440 N-24d swesdoiq uoneanpy jerads fdd
|Om|w|NN - | _ qummmhw.n |_ oozt (07 Z 10071 suoduny) sweidolg uoneanpy jeads H
.mmNI.NI “ r.mm.v| I STIT sweidoud y-31d E
££9'6T | | | ££9'6T 00TT weigoud tenday E
d ) 0007 (SS/9) NOILINYISNI |81 Z
_ (SS/HIN) ANN4 23S 20S/LNIWIHILIY TYdIDINNN - 054 L
1895 7 | e I Lll!l”lh | o - y / > .|.|Lh|m>.o. a % | 40 (A3uapyaq) mmmuxm.ﬁ
TeLSe o ~ Jo —  ToosT TE0BL  [OO€Ty  [006'Tt | 0O0DST. [ ooo'szT [ saamipuadx3/siusuIasingsia 122110 (201, [ 7|
v N D009 (41) SIDNIONILNOD 404 NOISIAONA [€1.C
.q —__—_—__ 1 c m _, ||_ S A — - wu_?_ww ig=2qg|exo] ﬁ
0 . | | | | | oovs | (2zjwi2)) 5 2qu2520) YO - IMAS 1930 <]
sy|yauag juawdinbg sjenaley FERITVELS

1301 uoneulwa) pazijeyide)-uoN u s13l0 1200 Aeno jeqided g s3)|ddng paseydingd Sspuag ashojdug ERITIES Hauny AJuQ s1aqunp ajoypa 131u3 :uondudsag ¢

(006) (008) (00z) | (009) (00s) (oov) (00€) (002} (oot) 1]
1 ] r | | H ) E| E] a o) g

9l abed

SFUNLIANIAXI/SLNIWISYNGSIA ILVINILST

g| abed



€202/02/9 969106/2/912/6959€96€/£G5G2099BTZBENSPROUMOQIIBSSEEIONSIBSMN:D
(1) anNn4 1401 - 08{FLE
o I e———— — — E———— _ -
——— == — —_— — = = e ——— - ]
(OM) NN HSYD DNDIYOM 0£{E1E
B - _ = _ _ — .= = —— == = n |I—I-°
1] I 1 I dnaf INgsiQ 30 59 Jsadiasay jo (Aauaiayag) ssaxx3 |(OLE
W.. = —_— i — T 0 ..n I o — 10 saampuadxa fs1uawasingsig 193110 oL |G
0 0 - ] ]

. __| L0 | | ] | {d2) SIDNIDONILNOD 404 NOISIAOHd (B0E
- { 5 ———— ] | S3UM IA0D @ S1INSIQ SIYIO O3 sjuawihed 10 10E
0 Im o o 1 | faziwan) § aguasaq) (orms-ul) swesfosd - suun 1neg 2o o sibawhed lgoe
0 | ) — e ) sweiBoud 319 404 1uawhed [GOE
.o — —1 |o — — | _— swesfosd uonednp3 (eads 1oy wawhed pE
0 |_ .c swesdouq Jenday o1 sjuawhed mcm
i = | = T (;1es-uy) syun 3m0n g 1510 130 01 swawiAed [Z0E
1  5E ————
: {d2) SLINN LAOD 2 LSIA ¥IHLO OL SINIWAVY| L 0€
.O — I8 ;- |J 0o |.|©| =N ] D |0 . Jum - = - sasnias voddng mioL %
I ‘0 0 T _ 0 - T _ 0 - “(aziusay) g aquasaq) ssauisng - sad1A1a5 Loddns 1a410 [RBZ
s E {0 i M.o. T _ ) | 0 o ot | 59995 LORINIASUOD B U sinboy samoed [8BZ
” | ‘ __ | ssauisng - sa3auas woddns | /6T
] () s32IAU3S L40ddns [96C
{dD) S173r0¥d TYLIdYI - 09|56<
S— = == ——— = e —————— : . =]
£EL T | [ 53, i 3510 INGs|Q 940 I . ¥ jo (Aauapyaq) ssaax3 |E6Z
TRELZT 0 _ ! | sainy|puadug/siuawasingsig ana 1ol |ZRZ
0 0 | | | _ (SS/4IN) SIDNIDNILNOD ¥O4 NOISINOY | LB
— —_——— — { T fp—
0 0 A 35 3g20 (B0l |BE
0 = i 0 N | _ (321wd)} ¥ 2quISaE) 1 WA [-HOYS U0 IS21U( 1310 |BRZ
- - Il F —) _ [ s31ed1ua) uonedniuy piy 1835 |gR7
.o | 0 = 7 _ _ sajoN uojedinguy xe ) |doy doid |euosiad Mesodio) 182
= ,Io T | | sa10N uonedidiuy xel |GRZ
0o | o __ * \ V _ siueem vonedianuy xey [GRZ
| | [ h | 109Q WI31-U0YS U0 153183U| - 9213 392q |V8C
| 1 ol = L 3 |
== . i (ss/uw) 301A83S 1830 |82
0 = _ﬂ| T3 T = —==3 _ P, [+ u__ s3UM 300 1§ 151 19yI0 03 sjudwhed [elol 287
..o | _ | h Ep— swe8oid 31 J0) S1udwhed || BZ
.o i m _ _, 0 sweidold uoneanp3 [e13ads Joy siuawhed |ORZ
0 ” | | | m - swesdoid Je|nday Joj sjuswaied 6LZ
A (SS/4M) SLINM LAOD 8 1510 IHLO OL SINAWAY [BLE
- - - —— e — —_ . a — _——
0 | | 1o (SS/HIN) SD1AYIS ALINNIAWOD | LLE
| 1 8999 — - ~ saainiag poddns [eoL [ 7 |
| | Y (az1tua3) 1§ 2qL53Q) “ISWA - s8Isas Woddns Jayip |GLT

| TR S — R— = — +
| _ o |eJ3ua) - sasinias yoddng [e30) vi7
m _nl- - _ $921A35 BuIssa04d eIEq | I 7
| E soainIas JeIs |7 ) 7
| [ _.ol B o ) saansas vonewsoyul [ 42
_ { | 0 saoinlas uoneniea3 g Jawdolanaq ‘ya.easay ‘Buluueld [ Z
_ | | sad1nIas 1oddns [eiiuad Jo uoldaug |RGE
| | _ |es3ua) - sa31a13g Hoddns |89C
| “ | = Ssauisng - sa3ynias poddns [e30) 192
| s991AJ3S |BUIAU| (G2
__ s021A135 pood |GAZF
005'0T i | 221135 uoneLiodsues) jdnd HG7
.OOmdm . _ 921AI3G 1UR|d JO IDUBUIUIRIA 73 UONRIDAD £ OF
0 o | | S3DIAISS UOI1INIISUOD) % LONISINDIY SaIN1Dey N@N
S ( | $301AI3S 3514 aNx.
I_uc|q‘~.n _ | 5921196 1ioddns ssauisng 4o uondang |19z
_ | | s53UISNg - 53313 tonnsm. BGZ

sjy3uag juawdinb sjelaie $IIAID
|eloL 4 : s333(q0 12410 Aejing |eyide) IELSIEIN 18585 s1yauag asAojdwz saye|es #10ung 4
uoneuwIz L pazyendes-uoN paseyind AjuQ s1aquinp 3joym Ja1u3 :uondusseg
(006) (008) {00z) (009) (00s) (00€) (002) (00T1) |
1 A r | H El = a o) g

STANLIANIIXI/SLNIWISUNGSIG A3LVINILSS

11 ebed




969106/2/912/6959€96E/£G5520998CCBEBNSPROJUMONUSSSBEIONSISSMN O

€20¢/02/9

005991 0 0 0 0 0 00599 0 000001 00€Z UONENSIIILIPY [E13UaD - S25InIa5 LOAANS (€101 [GOE |
“ooo‘oot 1} 0 0 0 0 0 0oo‘ootT S957 sjudwhey 5931035 swie() pue Juowaleue st [HOE
005'99 0 0 0 0 00599 0 0 67 | i pung aueinsul o5 wouy pied senel [EOE |
0 0 I ) 0 0 0 0 0 0 314 531125 LORENSIUILPY €Dy 119005 [ZGE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ozge 52210135 UoNeAISIUILIPY 9AIN29X3 [ GF
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o1€z 5221125 UONINP3 4O pieog [IGE ]
] £ 00E2 UOHEJISIUWPY |e13UsD - s831uas Loddns [5GE

0 0 0 ) 0 0 0 0 0 0 00zz T pexs [evoponisul - seamsas poddng o) [gGe |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ogez - Bunsa) B WaWSsSIsSY M
0 0 o} 0 0 0 0 0 0 ozze i $321A135 e1pay) Jeuoneanpy |9GE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 orezz - h SDIIAIDG UOIIINIISL) JO JUDWDACIW)| ﬂ
: 0022 " peis [euonanasu| - sa1aas poddns vGE

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0012 il — pdng - saspuas woddng (o) [CGE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0612 - (az1uia)) 19 2qu2sa@) siidng - saa1035 1oddns 12110 [ZGE |
0] 0 4] 0 4] 0 1] 0 (4] 0STz s221aJ25 Adojoipny 73 ASojoyied yasads LGE
0 0 0 0 1] 0 0 0 o ovTz S22UAIDG _mw_wo_oﬁ\,mﬂ_ .m.mM
0 0 0 o] 0 0 0 0 0 OETZ o - S9NIDS L3|RIH lmhml
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0TIz 592IAIDG 2dUepIng |RHE
0 [o] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 011z SIDMAISS HIOMA |BIIDS 73 DIUEPUINY | ) B
- = - 0012 11dng - sadiuas poddng 149

= 9 000z s © HUSIIAYISIN0A4NS [GpE
0 (1] (1] 1] 0 0 0 0 0 l'l_[o:o." = Z:Q_Hu_...:m:_ Jejor ﬂ.
0 i E 0 3 NNmHII. . uoming a1eAld swesdoiq p3 1do/aAIEWINY SuRnI L wﬁ
g L 1761 uonn ajeAld swetdolyd jendung |ZHE

0 0 0z6T T uoming ey swesfiosd payio [| 4
n_|I|| 0 6161 uonIng deAld sweifold [0oYIS PWWnS Ov
d 0 /T6T uonin| aeald swesdord mm_a;ufwu:_ 6Et
0 0 (161 ) n a1entid suikioid 315 [BEE |
0 0 9T6T uonIn L Dieniig sweiBasg uonieansa Sumupuofiny [1eg
0 0 | ST6T UOIIN 1BALd Y-31d Suesdo | 1ddng/jeipas ,.._ﬁ
0 0 yT6T uoInL sientd Z1-y swerosd [Buawaddns/jepawoy [Gee
0 O €167 uoning ¥-aid mEmgwohm uonesnpy| _UQQW vnm
0 0 16T uonIng aealld ZI-y swesdoig uoiieanps enads (EEE
0 0 TT6T uoning meaud sweslorg 1-y Jejnday 788
0 0 1l 0161 UOIHN 1BALY - SWPsEnid ¥-3.1d L£€
0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 (i} 006T sweidold jeuondo g aaewaly Juenit [OEg
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o 0081 swesBoud |endulg |6ZE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00LT N suieifiosd uoneanp3 suanug [pze
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0s9T - swiefiosd payio 776
0 0 0 Q [¢] 0 0 0 0 009T swesgold |ooy3s Jaunung 9Z¢
] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00ST - ~ swesBog osejoydsiay [sze]
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00vT - sweidoid 310 [pze
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00€T sieiiorg uoneanp3 Fuinupuodinpy [ Ze
0 0 0 0 0 0 [ 0 0 sezt 3-31d sweJBo1g jeIuswaddns pue jeipaursy [Z7ZE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0szr T3 swieiouy jmuawajddng pue jepawoy [ 7o
0 o] 0 0 0 0 o 0] 0 szzt ¥-21d swesosg uoneanp3 [Eaatds [nze
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o0zt {0221 - 00zT SuBfIIuA 4] sweiord uonesnp3 [#Pads |G| &
0 0 0 0 1} 0 [i] 0 0 SZIT “sweiliold ¥-01d [ e
(8] . b y o ] STTT 5|00U2S 1911eY 0} 1uBitAR :m_:_._u._..—a
0 0 0 ] 0 a 0 0 o 0 00TT swedourd seinday (9L €
; R ()Nononasi[S1 €
| s1y3uag uawdinb3 sjese S3IIAIAS S — k = 2 ]
leloL Uor e T $13[90 120 Aepng jeyde) « sanddns paseyaing si|jauag asAojdwz sauefes #32Ung | T ey smey—
(006) (008) (002) (009) (005) (0op) (00€) {00Z) (oo1) 1|
1 A ﬁ | H D) E! 3 d ) g
g| obed STUNLIANIJXT/SLNIWISHNDSIG ILYWILST gl abed




€202/0¢/9

969106.Z/912/6959E96€/£55520998CZRESPEOJUMOVUSSSERIONSIBSMY:D

flele
|

(=11

ololo|olo

olololo|s|olo

OIOOOIOQOOO

ol

— i

olo|o|aloie

OOO'OOOO|DQD

olo|lo|alo|o|o
|

==

o|lo|o

oio

llelalle
21
i

|

1gag waal-Juo] uo 3sa1alu| - 32IMBS 1930 |2

(aznwal 5§ 2G1I53@g) 1990 WIS L-HIOYS J0 1SN Y10 |Z7 1
s31e3411aD uoledduY piy M1e3S | L2

) wﬂmz;c\o_umm_w::‘« xm._. u‘:mEu‘um_q‘mm \.&_umoi |leuosiag seiodio) 0Zv
S10N uoneddiuy xel Bl¥

sjueep uonedinuy xel (@1

1q3Q W13]-1I0YS Uo 3s2J33u] - 93135 1930 [/ L

- (d1)3d1Au3s 1e3allgl y
= S1UM 3409 13 1510 JAYI0 03 SjuBLWAR [e30) SLy
(21E35 §0 110} SIUN 1A0D 7 1510 JYI0 03 siuswhed (|
|-u.|5m. uj) m._whm:m.:..mu_:z 1409 13 1510 43410 01 mw:.m.r;ma B0l (e
“(azitwan) ® 2G11753G) $13JSUBLL - SHUN IAOD B1€IS-U| OF StudwAed A0 |Z L §

sioysuel] - swesdoid J3Y10 104 stuswihed || |

sigysued| - weidoid 989]|0] Auunwwo) Joj sjudwied ()14
sia)suel) - sweidold 31D 10y siuawhed |G

slajsues] - mEm_woi p3 Buinuiuo) /Npy 10j sjudwied mﬁ_.v_
si9jsuel] - swesgosd uonednp3 P129ds 1oy stuawiAed |1 (O
519)suel| - sweidold se|nday Joy sjudwhed a0y

{a1m3s Ui} uorINL - SUUA 110D B 1510 1AYIO 03 sjuautided [F101 GOb
(52115231 ' 2q12353@) UOIINL - SHU IACD A3EIS-U) 01 STUdWARY WO [B{Jl
uoin| - swerdord Jaylp Joj sjudwaed £

T T Loming - swesBoud 989103 ANUnWWo) Joy siuawAed Z0¥
uonIny - sweigold 317 10) S1UIWARY LO¥
‘E‘u_‘::‘r - wEm_Wm_m uoneanp3 Suinuiuod/ANPY Joj s1uawAeg 0%

wonin] - sweidold uoiesnpl |rI2ads 10} siudWAed BBE

n| - sweidoid Jen8ay 10} SjUDWARY 26¢

(meseu)) SUN 100D 7 3510 JAYI0 07 SIUBWAE [0 IBE
\Nm‘w.:‘tw: 9 m@.tummmt sweldold - SHUM JADD 31eIS-U| 01 SIUdWAR JaYI0 wmm
swesgo.4d 99)|0) ANunwwo3 Jof siuawied |GHE
swesdoid 317 10] sjuswihey PEE

sweiSold uoneanp3 Fuinuiuod/NNpy 10) stuswhed [CHE

swei801d uoiieonp] |eI20dS J0) SIUDWARY Nmm
sweidold 1eingay 104 sjuswhed | GE

(=1

|
—
|

(S1€35-ul) S31UN 310D 7 3510 13430 03 ALaWAEd [0BE
- {41) SLINN LAOD 8 1510 Y3HLO OL SINIWAVC |GRE
{41) SIDIAYIS ALINANINDI [8BE

|

o ol

l

K==}

saapuas woddns (el0) |1 QE

(2zjw31] @ 2G11253q) ISl - SINAIIS tﬂmmmﬂm:uo 08E

BEEE

o o

(=] (=)=} =]

|OOOQOQ

T

oclooc

o

ol

o|lo|o|o|o|o|lo|aiial

o|lo|o|le|o|ollo|ajz

io'oooicooo

olo|oioio|o|e

o|lolo|o|o|olo

|esyua) - 5201135 poddns |e0) |GRE
$22(1A35 Buissodold eyeq

=
fea]
|C“‘)

ECRITVEINTIS IS

]
o
gl

S92(AJDS UOIIEWIOJU|

o
o
(3]

$921A195 UolEN(eAT g JwdwdoaAaQ ‘Yaiedsay ‘Auiuueld

e
(==}
o

|

$221AJS J20ddNG [BJIUDT JO LOIRIANQA

=3
e
gl

il o

lo|of

T

[o

fo o|o|o|oje

di

aooo|

el o

ololoic|o|o|o|al

o noioa olo|al

olo|lo|ololo|o|ol

lo|lo(o|o|olo|o|o

o|la o

|

oloojo|o

~jenua) - saayss Loddng.

ssausng - sad1A1as uoddng |ro)

Oy
~
o3

=]
~
(3]

|

$D3IAIDS [RLIDU|

T~
I~
2l

|

532IAIG POOY

e
T~
el

52218195 uonelodsuel| yidng

Fad
r~
el

SBIINISS JUBd JO DDUBUBIUIEIA R UONRIDDO

~
)

SBIIAIDS UOIIINIISUOD 7§ UONISINDIY S31

DS
b

|

SNAIDS |BISH]

~
]

I

5921A135 Loddng ssauisng 40 uoidAIg

(=]

o

[=]

o

L i
oloal |olololaclo ool oo

o

!ooo

alo|g|

|1elol

(006)

uoneuIwIa |

syausg

(008)

juawdinby

pazijended-uoN

(002)

s12lq0 4330

(009)

Aeping jende)

{00s)

o

s|euale(y|
g saiddns
{oop)

|mwu_>hwm
paseydingd
(00€)

sjijauag aaho|dw3

(002)

sape|es

(ooT)

#3pung

=]
==
el e

ssaujsng - sa3n3g Loddng

_._a._um._um_:_Eu< |Jooyas - mwu_Ewm.Eomnl |exoL

[a3]
(7]
o

|

{22133} % 5G11953Q) YONEBNSIUIWPY [00YIS - S9I1ABS Loddng Jaylo

oo
w0
]

5231A105 |BdI2UL] AY1 JO PO

UORENSIUILPY [00YIS - 5a3iAas poddng

D |~
o |
Gzl [52]

AjuQ s19quiny 3|oYm J93u3 :uondudsag

|

A

r

H

)

4

3

ad

)

g

61 2bed

SIAUNLIANIAXI/SINIWISYNGSIA OILVWILST

61 ebed




€202/02/9

969106/2/81.2/6959E96E/£55520998C2BEA\SPEOJUMOO\USSSEBIONSIBSN.J

| |0 ] | ooos | N ~ samssigealeol (g7
0 | oovs | T (2ziwa] 3 3q1253G) JBYI0 - dIAIAS 1924 [GZh
- 0 = frE—= = (ezusa1) 5 a1953g) (PR edpuLd (bt |
00€S | aseuyaing fasea) « 3920 uua-Suo uo jediuld jo sjuawAeq - 39)AISS 1930
sjyauag wawdinby S|elaIBN LRI VTS | Z
e30 syl Aeang |ende; Aojd n
lel0L BCITIEY pazijeyide)-uon 00 210 ERNO [231deD 3 saiddng paseydind Si0SUegRsARICE SEHEIES T:u: o _ AjuQ siaquiny ajoym 193u3 :uopdussag
(006) {008} (002) (009) {00s) (oot) (00€) {oo0z) {oot) | I
1 M r [ H 9 4 3 a | o g

0z sbed

STUNLIONIAXI/SLNIWISANGSIA QI LVINILSS

0z 9bedq




£20¢/0¢/9

969106/Z/912/6959E96€/£55520998CZEEG\SPROJUMOIIBSSEEONSIBSMY. O

ol

OO‘OO

o|lo|ojal

oloio|o

|
|

[ 15q]

a3ay jo (Axuapyag) sseox3 |PGh
E:u_ncun.xwu&:oEuE:nn_n 13300 _mgo._.. [5et

_ (s7dd) SIIDNIONILNOD HO4 SNOISINOUd|ZG
anussigaa R0l || Gy

aJ (pa1nay jedputid [0G
aseyand/faseat) 1 39%0 wia|-JuoT ua [edduild JO SIUIWARY - 3NAISS 1GaQ

198Q ws3]-3U07 U 153131u] - 3IAIBS 3930 |B T

1020 W3] -HOYS U 153133 - 32135 3630 [210L [Q
(3z71w21) 9 2G13530)) 103Q WIS -HOYS UO 151U 120 |/ php
swenem vonedppuy xeL [Qpfy

o|olojlojo

o|o|alle] o

192Q WI31-1I0YS U 153J21U| - 33138 1994 |G

- b i (s2dd)/301A83S 1830 | vt
{Sd4) 531UN 370D % SIPLISIA JBYIO 03 SAUTWARY [£I0] [

(2213} ' 2q14353Q) SWel80.d - SHUN M09 21eIS-U| 01 sluawdhed JayiQ 1444
swed0.4 uonesnpy [e1rads o1 sjuawiey Ly

sweudoig seinday o1 sjuswAied Obt
" (s'8d4) SLINN LAO0D 8 S1DIH151Q ¥IHL0 OL SINIWAVA|REY
59217135 poddng je1oL 8EY

321A13G 1UB|d JO DURUDIUIBI 7 UONEIddQ
$IIAIDS UDNINAISUOD R UCIISINDIY sanies

 {eziwa) p aqu3saq) syl - S3IINIBS LDUANS 130 [/ c
i ssauisng - sasiuas poddng jeiol OEp

Gev
ey

~ ssauisng - sadinias yoddng
(S'@d4) S301AY3S LYOddNS
($8d4) ANNJ ALI4VS 8 NOILNIAIYd Y4 - 06|

d INgs|g 13A0 fsidiaany jo (Aauaiijag) ssaax3

|eloL

(006)

siysusg

uoneuIwId L

(008)

uawdinby
pazijejrded-uoN
(ooz)

(] R

s1alqo 13UI0

(009)

Aepno [ended

(00s)

s|eualep
g sajjddns
(oov)

CERTLYELS
paseyarnd
(00€)

00599 e

isyyauag aako|dwy

(002)

saje|es

(o0T)

_ #1ouny _

sainypuadad fsIUawasingsiQ 13340 (e1o)L
(41) SAINTDNIINOD HOLNOISINOHD

AJUQ s12quInp 3j0YM 433u3 :uondiasag

eeb)
£

o
<

|

1L

>
S 1)
vﬁlv

[ee]
N
~

T~
N
<

|

A

r

H

9

E|

3

a

[ o |

d

1z abegq

SIUNLIANIIXI/SINIWISHNGSIA AILVYINILLST

1z obed



Page 21

This page is provided for detailed itemizations as requested within the body of the Report.

Please enter notes in "Source of Revenue/Use of Expense" column for the below line items. If page does not list specific

revenues/expenditures, no itemization notes are required.

Page 21

_ Fund-AccountNumber

Estimated Revenues

10-1999 |Other Local Revenues Johnson Estate $158,000
20-1999 | Other Local Revenues Johnson Estate $245,000
40-1999 |Other Local Revenues Johnson Estate $65,000
10-4399|Title | - Other Reap $23,842
10-4998 | Other Restricted Grants Received from Fed. Govt. thru State |ESSR Il & I $96,579
20-4998 | Other Restricted Grants Received from Fed. Govt. thru State [ESSR Il & I $269,866
Estimated Expenditures

30-5300|Debt Service - Payments of Principal on Long-Term Debt Principal Payment on Bond $183,000
30-5400 | Debt Service - Other Agency Payment for Bond Pay $500

C:\Users\Iclaassen\Downloads\638228660255537396365697216727901696

6/20/2023



£202/02/9

969106.2.912/6959£96€/£55520998ZZ8ENSPEOIUMOQ\USSSEEION\SISSM:D

0uwiof puo sauljapinb 3gs| buisn padejanap si ‘pasinbai Ji ‘uojd uonanpas wafap ayl Gl
vy | VL
a1 Jo asupydasap sayfo sfop O uyum 3gs) 01 (£z-€Z 26od uo aJay punof) uojd uonInpas 223 D LGNS puD 1dOPD [IDYS 12LASIP [00YIS 343 Ayl 'INoqo paulfap
so 3jatfap o 5123(fa1 (y4v) 14043y joI2UDULS [ENUUY ZZ0Z-TZ0Z 341 wo.f qoy vonow.oful Auowwns ¥4y 134ad ayi Ji - (T-£1/§ $27) SOT) 3poD |o0Y3s Jad el
‘51094 3241 UM [10f110ys Y3 33uUDng 03 UDjd UNINPaI 3P O IgSI Yim 3y puo 1dopo 15nw 12UISIP gy ‘Buipuads [
Wsifap Y1 sawi 33447 UDY] $53| 5| 32UD(OG punf Buipua pajowIsa gl Ji 's13oyy "anoqo paysi spunf anof ayy Ajuo Buisn paunuwialap s 3unjog 3yl 330N
(¢-z wns1aBpng ‘T8 aul) a3unfoq punf buipua ay1 Jo (€/1) piup-auo 6
uny3 1330346 10 03 jonba JUNOWo uo Aq (-7 WnS13Bpng ‘6T aulf) sainyipuadxa 12a.1p uoy) ssa| Buiaq (p-g wnsIaBpng ‘6 ulf) saNUaAdJ 13.41p U1 JNsal aA0GO PaLs]|
LSpunf bunoiada, 3yl yarym ul ._m....m_c:n 120L351p (0OYD spuawp Jo) s3dopo uonoanpa Jo p4ooq 1030 ay) Ji pannbaa sp uojd uoRINPaI dHap v Q
L
‘paJinbai si uejd uojdNpay WdYAa ou 193png pasuejeg
66T'20€'C [ €99'6LT | soo‘z1T | T82'8€T | £vL'T2L"T £20T ‘0€ dunf - 2duejeq puny pajewys] 9
L1929 L1072 189°S 656'S 09687 - aoussag ]
205'SY'E TEL'SLT S66'6T8 2% B sasnypuadx3 Panal | ¥
6TT'EIS'E L1022 TIv'18T ¥56'928 9€L'8LEC o SaNUaASY 10210 | e
{02} (ov) (02) aNNd IONYNILNIVIN _ 4
viol T) dNN4 TYNOILYONG3 uonduoss
0 ANN4 HSYD DNIXYOM ANNd NOILYLIHOdSNWYL 3 SNOILYHY3dO (ot} Ol ) <
l
(Ajuo s»insia [ooyds) Ajug spung Sunesado - NOILYINYO4NI AYVINIANS 139ang 11D143a
B) | 4 _ 3 _ a | 0 g [V
zz abeg Zz abed




96010622291 o

£202/029
[Eetzore THG_ | G00TIT TSLEEL TFLTELT GHT 0L TO06LL O LIT TBLSET TRLTELT TSR N S0 QIR | 22
0o I I I 1 a - o [ o 0 SONA 30 SISNACIINN0S BINLO TWLDL
5 - = o o - i b St
) B N o o o [ 0
(] __ |0 o fio o 0 v I0'LC 1895 A ~ 0% (142
0 i#=a | I - (] |z T | terme et aweetr
o AL R ] 0 o 0
0 [ o 0 0
o 000'0% 0 0 000'0
0 D 0 /] 0
0 —— 0| [alk44:2 | TEL'SLT S66'618 989'9ZL
0 DEOERE'T |# 060'EBE'T
[ | [ | I | i3
g £iE B () ) —(— TS coer  lowier  (vess  [oreT £
0 6Y6'TTL o 1] 998'692 E80'ZYY
0 S89°v5L 0 OLE'TST 000'0S STE'ESS [
0 - o 0 _ 0 [ T 0
0 S85'900' now TrO'0ET #80'905 SEC'EBET unnswoe| &
oy V| Y s N ] B ) ! - s3nNaA3H/SsidiEIa | 9
BELTOET | £99'6L1 | so0zIT 18L'867 UV TIEHOT 99251 T azeen Clmeme | amemest _ 3 (muojeg pung Butpuz Joud penba ) ]
— _ L . ; IDNVTYE ONNJ ONINNIOIS OILVWLLST |
]
1m0y puing yseo Buppom | pun uoReuotsueLL E_HH__H.“_.“.ME pung jeuoneanp3 |01 pung yse Buppom | pung uopenodsuesy __._.“uhne.ﬁﬂ_._n_”_z pung (euopeanp3 _ —
. VT GECTTE N I
A 1y 3
AUO 311510 j00KI5. +
8 | Y
UoISIAI(] S@21AI95 gsaulsng [ooyos
£z 3bed NOILYONA3 40 QuvOod 3LYLS SIONITI £z abed



969106222912, "o

€202102/9

—— o —Agerey —— —
[esrzoce oG [wotn I TBLEEL THLTLLT BGT — e [ T T
o 1 [ o [ = o [ — 0
0 [
- — - = —— = —
I [ = 0 [ ] (] ] 0
[} 10 [] 0 = o 1] T O
0 0
0 0 —.
[ [ |
[ 0 _
0 0 |
[ S =01 V] 0 i
0 (] ] ] [] [ ] 0 i [
[ 0
0 0
o = 0 =
o ® = — - :
= = — - — - _ ! : e
GRUTOE T e 800°7LT THCRE P FOTZ0ET £99'6LT 0011 18L'8367 ERI7E 7L [ . {aworoq puns fuipu soud (onba sinu) i)
— e — JONYIYA AN DNINNIDAE Q3LVAILLST
| a
puny pun4 asueuajujely pund punj 33UeUAUIE
|esal punj ysed Suppom uopewodsuel 5 suopwado puny [eucReanpa |eloL puny yseo Supom uolesodsues) 1 suopessdo pun4 [euopeanp3
. ewourgl
ZvEasyadioyoy [ &
rooerereosr [ §
Fa
A0 S11SIQ [0S, [
v -

UOISIAIQ SBOIAIAG SSAUISNE [00YIS
¥z abed NOILYONa3 30 QHvo8 31vis SIONITT ¥ abed




969106/2.91 € Wa

£eozioze

[Eerzate TEETInET EETLOEL

L

1] 0

o e 0

() (] — 15 Titviar

0 ] 0 T zessre

i o ~ o 0

-cl - |..Q| B |..o o ||a.| —

o o 0 | ooooe

= - o = o

o || DT e [ATZ4Z R

= i — =

o - ) e —

o |o 0o

o o o

o B e 0o

0 (0 0 6

b — | . i e § t SINNIAIY/SLAIFITY h-

6612067 lestzoez  [estove 00 | IeSEIOT _ {23u0j0g puny Bujpu3 so1d pnba ysniw) 7

o i 1 | FDNVIVE ONNJ DNINNIDIE AILYAILST =
9Z02-SZ0ZAd SZ0Z-vZ0TAd PTOT-ETOTAS £202-220ZAd _ &
3 _ ekanng
LbE @5) 3d1DH DY

5 |
—
sl 7
POOLYEPEDSZ | €
-

Ao s1In5a jooy3s,

UOISIAI(] S32IAI3G SSaulsng |00y
5z abed NOILY2NA3 40 a¥vOod 31VLS SIONITI s¢ 9bed




Page 28 Page 28

Deficit Reduction Plan-Background/Assumptions (School Districts Only)

Fiscal Year 2022-2023
through Fiscal Year 2025-2026

La Harpe CSD 347 26034347004

Please complete the following schedule and include a brief description to identify any areas of the budget that will be impacted from one year to the next. If the deficit
reduction plan relies upon new local revenues, identify contingencies for further budget reductions which will be enacted in the event those new revenues are not
available.

1. Background and Narrative of Budget Reductions:

2. Assumptions Used in the Deficit Reduction Plan:

- EBF and Estimated New Tier Funding:

- Equal Assessed Valuation and Tax Rates:

- Employee Salaries and Benefits:

- Short- and Long-Term Borrowing:

- Educational Impact:

- Other Assumptions:

- Has the district considered shared services or outsourcing (Ex: Transportation, Insurance)? If yes, please explain:

C:\Users\Iclaassen\Downloads\638228660255537396365697216727901696 6/20/2023



(1en1ov) ZZ0ZA4 1900 (pa1a3png)

.x,ml \ | ek - €20ZA4 10} (253423Q) 35BJIIU[ JUIIIAJ PIIBWINST ‘6
SLT'LST 0 0 SLT'LST 9£8'6YT 0 0 9.8'6YT s|elo} ‘g
| . '3A0QE PapN|dul pue me| 3lels
o e Aq paiinbau suonesijqo uoisuad Jay1o 1o JUAWINRY AjIET - 1aNpaQ L
o 0 [ o 0 0192 $2910135 10ddns [223U3) JO UORIIA *9
0 o _ 0 0 . . 057 S3DINIBS |ewaly| °g
otTz'oL 0 0 | otz'oL | ¥TZ'99 $12'99 0TS¢ $321A195 Hoddns ssauisng JO UoIAIA b
) 0 0 0 ] 062 UONIBIISIUILPY [00YDS - S2I1AI3S 1oddns Jay10 "¢
0 0 _ | 0 0 [0} 374 S971AIS UONeSISIuIWPY ealy |enads g
596'98 o .. 59698 799'¢8 799'c8 0cEe $321AJDS UOIIRIISIUIWPY SANNIDXT T
pund pung
puny punj
|elol punj yol 2JueuajuleN Jeuoneanpa jejoL punj yoj 2dueuajuien [euonesnpa ‘ON 30uUny uondursag
3 suonesado 13 suonesado
(08) (0z) (o1) (08) (oz) (ot)
€207 JedA [eds|d ‘saimyipuadx3 pajaspng _ 2207 1B9A |e3sl4 ‘saunyipuadxy [en1doy pajewnsy

¥0-0LvE-YE0-92 HaquinN 1Lady (apo] jooyRs 3yl Jo §7T-£ T UoiIas)
LYE as) adiey el SWEN 1214351Q j00YdS 13FHSHYOM SLSOD INLVHISININGY 40 NOLLVLING GILWINILST
§1S00 aAlleNSIUIWPY JO UOHENW :Je 3)ISq3M 3gS] Y1 UO punoy) 3q OS|e UED 133YSHIOM 5150 DANIRIISIUIWPY JO UOIIRIIWIT {BIIHO UY

‘1odal 1eyl yum uoldunfuod ul painwgns aq ABW pue (Sg-0S Wio4 3g51) 14oday [eldUBULY [ENUUY BY] JO PUD 31 01 PAYIENIE S| 193YSHIOAN SISOD) SAITRIISIUILPY JO UOIIENWIT [BIDIHO 3y

‘(@seaudap) asealdul 23ejuadlad patewnnse syl aandwod 01 seunpuadxa [Bn1De palewiss Jeah Joud syl pasu| "a8ed siy1 01 paidod si uollew.oul
198png "sainupusdxe  ZzOzAd [BN1OR JBAO saINNpuadxd palespng  £70TAd JO aseasdur wadsad $,101J1S1p 3yl 21ewi)ss 01 5sa204d Buna8png 9yl Sulinp 95N 10} papuUSlU| S| 1D3YSHIOM 3Y |

“182YSYI0/) 51507 anlIDISUjUPY Jo UoloIWf oyl Jo uojssiwigns [0i1J0 J0] paidadion aq jou [jjm pup AjUo 193yS}I0M SIS0 SANDIISIUIWPY fO UOIIDIIWIT P3IDWIISI UD SI SIY]
{Ajuo asn jpao7 104)
(AjuQ s301151q 100Y2S) S1S0D JAILVHLSININGY 30 NOLLYLIWI QILVINILST

oe abed




Page 30 Page 30

CHECK FOR ERRORS
This worksheet checks various cells to assure that selected items are in balance.

Out-of-balance conditions are marked here with an error message.

Once all errors are correct_ed: Windows users, click "Save Budget for ISBE” button to the right. Mac users, click File > Sove As, Once saved, submit to ISBE.

Budget Item References 3
Are all errors corrected? OK - You may now save and submit form
1. Deficit Reduction Plan (DefReductPlan 23-27 tab) o | S =
Is Deficit Reduction Plan Required? (Joint Agr do not complete Deficit Reduction Plan.) [ Deficit Reduction Plan is not required
If required, is Deficit Reduction Plan completed? {DefReductPlan 23-27 tab) |
2. Cover Page (Cover tab) ; -
District Name must be selected from drap-down. (Cell H13) oK
(Do not type full district name lly.)
| Accounting Basis must be selected on Cover sheet. OK
| Dates (Day, Manth, Year) must be input on Cover sheet. OK
| Board Names must be typed on Cover sheet. OK
3.8 Summary: Other Sources (BudgetSum 2-4 tab - Acct 7000) must eq her Uses =
Estimated Beginning Fund Balance July, 1 2022 for all Funds (Cells C3 - K3} oK
{tine must have a number or zero. Do not leave blank.)
Estimated Activity Funid Beginning Fund Balance July, 1 2022 (Cell C83) oK
{Cell must have a number or zero. Do not leave blank.)
Transfer Among Funds (Funds 10, 20, 40 - Acct 7130 - Cells C29, D29, F29), must equal {Funds 10, 20 & 40 - Acct 8130 - Cells oK
€52, D52, F52). |
Transfer of Interest (Funds 10 thru 90 - Acct 7140 - Cells €30:K30), must equal (Funds 10 thru 60, & 80 - Acct 8140 - Cells oK
C53:H53, J53). |
Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Principal on GASB 87 Leases (Fund 30 - Acct 7400 - Cell E39) must equal (Funds 10, 20 & 60 - oK
Acct 8400 Cells C57:H60).
Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Interest on GASB 87 Leases [Fund 30 - Acct 7500 - Cell E40) must equal (Funds 10, 20 & 60 - ok
Acct 8500 - Cells C61:H64).
Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds [Fund 30 - Acct 7600 - Cell E41) must equal (Funds 10 & 20 - -
Acct 8600 - Cells C65:DEB).
Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds {Fund 30 - Acct 7700 - Cell E42) must equal (Funds 10 & 20 - Acct | oK
8700 - Cells C69:072).
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund (Fund 60 - Acct 7800 - Cell H43) must equal {Fund 10 & 20, Acct 8800 - Cells C73:D76). oK
4, Summary of Cash Transac fing Cash Balance on jly 1, 2022 [CashSum 5 tab, All Funds) cannot be negative. 5 il
| Educational [Fund 10 - Cell C3] OK
Operations & Maintenance (Fund 20 - Cell D3) OK
Debt Service {Fund 30 - Cell E3] OK
Transportation (Fund 40 - Cell F3) OK
Municipal Retirement/Social Security (Fund 50 - Cell G3) OK
Capital Projects (Fund 60 - Cell H3} OK
| Working Cash (Fund 70 - Cell 13) OK
Tort (Fund 80 - Cell 13} oK
Fire Prevention & Safety (Fund 90 - Cell K3) oK
— OK s |
nsactions: Ending Cash Balance on Hand June 30, 2023 (CashSurm 5 tab - All Funds) cannot be negative. B = %
I Educatlonal (Fund 10 Cell €21) - | 5 oK
Operations & Maintenance (Fund 20 - Cell D21} | OK
[ Debt Service [Fund 30 - Cell E21) - [ oK
[ Transportation (Fund 40 - Cell F21) - | i oK
Municipal Retirement/Social Security (Fund 50 - Cell G21) | oK 1
Capital Projects (Fund 60 - Cell H21) - | ok |
Working Cash (Fund 70 - Cell 121) - B i oK :
Tort {Fund 80 - Cell J21) - ' oK |
F|re Preventlon & Safety (Fund 90 - CellK21) : PR ) [ _ = oK -
oK
 10:20,40, 70 - Acct 141 - Cellsl'.I.S ms F15 |15; I - o B
Interfund Loans Receivable (Funds 10 20, 40, 70 - Acct 141 - Cells C7:D7, F7, 17} must equal Interfund Loans Payable IFunds oK
 10:50, 80, 90 - Acct 411 - Cells C16:H16, J16, K16). I ol = = e
7. Estimated Rmngg_{p_tﬂe_vs-ﬂ:ubf M= = — - = E
~ Amounts must be input fo_r revenue. . = - | . OK _ |
8. Estimated EX tab) : ) ' 3 oo ; =
Amounts must be input for exyendlturu o : . | OK
9, Itemization Notes: Revenues/Expenditures reported that require note on Itemize 21 tab. = =
Include brief nuke{s}Qest_:rlbr@wsoume{emndmure use. | - = oK

End of Balancing

C:Users\Iclaassen\Downloads\638228660255537396365697216727901696 6/20/2023






€20¢/02/9 969106.2.912/6959£96€/£555209982C8E\SPEOJUMOQ\USSSEEION\SISSM\:-D

03|y | z6L'2 213 ‘dod “Ja1em Isdag

uolesaunway
Alejauop-uopn

pa1nguiIsiq suoljesaunway Aselauon _

-uop J0 Jua1dPaY PUE POYISN UoNGLISIA Spasidie.Ssodiny

3NUIAIY 13N PapInOiId 9I1AISS JO 1INPOId JOPU3A JO dwen

‘1122 pa123]3s Y1 Y1D3aU3q 3DI3UIB |[1M SMOY "SMOJ PIIISIP
Jo saqunu 133ua pup 3ybl 2y1 03 UOLING , SMOY PPY,, Y13 UAYL SMOJ [DUCIIIPPD 3Y1] P,NOA 31aym anoqo [[33 b 133[as ‘palinbai a1p smot aiow Jj

SIODAUG) - [Z 02-0T U01335 3po) [00Y3S 1995

*p4nogq jooy3s ayy Aq panoiddo aq isnw 2007 ‘T Ainr 431fp 10 U0 paniaxa

S190.3U02 Yans jjy -336pnq ay3 fo 1paA [03sif ayy Bupada.d Ajarpipawwy 10aA j03sif ay3 Jof s10.3U0I Yans Buipspbas uonpuwIOful 35l O} S| 310daJ dYL  'S3IINIIS Jydoiboloyd pup ‘sbuls SSDJI ‘21330 13410 pup S1OdS ‘S1IDJ3U0I
auiyoow BUIpUSA UKD INOYLIM BUIPNIIUT ‘000 TS JO S533%3 Ul TOIATSIP JOOYTS 3y} JOf SUODIBUNWAI 3YI0 PUD 3NUBA3J [DUOIIPPD 3303U3b 0] papudlL] 2J3M 1DY] SBIIAIIS pUD SPoob 03 uipad J0y) SIUBW33.6D puo ﬂu?._:cu_
11D, 01 $13Ja4 , S190.3U03 JOPUDA,, WD) BY1 t@:ou sy uj 13b6pnq 41343 03 JUIWYIDIID UD SO ,51I0.3U03 JOPUSA, Bursiy Lodas o ajif 03 paiinbal 310 SPPIISIP [0OY3S 10 ‘TZ°0Z-0T UONISS 3P0 [00YIS Y3 Y3IM dIUDPIOIID U]

(Ajuo s314351@ [904dS) FJHOW HO 000°TS$ 40 SLOVHLNOD YOAN3A 2118Nd 40 ONILYOJIN

L¢ abed L¢ abed



Page 32 REFERENCE PAGE Page 32

Reference Description

1 Each fund balance should correspond to the fund balance reflected on the books as of June 30th - Balance Sheet Accounts #720 and #730 {audit figures, if
available).

2 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance. The "On-Behalf" Payments should only be reflected on this page
(Budget Summary, Lines 10 and 20).

3 Requires the secretary of the school board to notify the county clerk (within 30 days of the transfer approval) to abate an equal amount of taxes to be
next extended. See Sec. 10-22.14 & 17-2.11.

3a Requires notification to the county clerk to abate an equal amount from taxes next extended. See section 10-22.14
4 Principal on Bonds Sold:
(1) Funding Bonds are to be entered in the fund or funds in which the liability occurs.
(2) Refunding Bonds can be entered in the Debt Services Fund only.
(3) Building Bonds can be entered in the Capital Projects Fund only.

(4) Fire Prevention and Safety Bonds can be entered in the Fire Prevention & Safety Fund only.

5

The proceeds from the sale of school sites, buildings, or other real estate shall be used first to pay the principal and interest on any outstanding bonds on
the property being sold, and after all such bonds have been retired, the remaining proceeds from the sale next shail be used by the school board to meet
any urgent district needs as determined under Sections 2-3.12 and 17-2.11 of the School Code. Once these issues have been addressed, any remaining
proceeds may be used for any other authorized purpose and for deposit into any district fund.

& The School Code, Section 10-22.44 prohibits the transfer of interest earned on the investment of “any funds for purposes of lllinois Municipal Retirement
under the Pension Code.” This prohibition does not include funds for Social Security and Medicare-only purposes. For additional requirements on
interest earnings, see 23 lilinois Administrative Code, Part 100, Section 100.50.

7 Cash plus investments must be greater than or equal to zero.
8
For cash basis budgets, this total will equal the Budget Summary - Total Direct Receipts/Revenues (Line 9) plus Total Other Sources of Funds (Line 46).

9 For cash basis budgets, this total will equal the Budget Summary - Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures (Line 19) plus Total Other Uses of Funds (Line
79).

. Working Cash Fund loans may be made to any district fund for which taxes are levied (Section 20-5 of the School Code).

1 include revenue accounts 1110 through 1115, 1117,1118 & 1120.

12
The School Code Section 17-2.2c. Tax for leasing educational facilities or computer technology or both, and for temporary relocation expense purposes.

13 :
Corporate personal property replacement tax revenue must be first applied to the Municipal Retirement/Social Security Fund to replace tax revenue lost

due to the abolition of the corporate personal property tax (30 ILCS 115/12). This provision does not apply to taxes levied for Medicare-Only purposes.

14
Only tuition payments made to private facilities. See Functions 4200 or 4400 for estimated public facility disbursements/expenditures.

15 payment towards the retirement of lease/purchase agreements or bonded/other indebtedness {principal only) otherwise reported within the fund - e.g.:
alternate revenue bonds. {Describe & Itemize)

16 Only abolishment of Working Cash Fund must transfer its funds directly to the Educational Fund upon adoption of a resolution and
at the close of the current school Year (see 105 ILCS 5/20-8 for further explanation)
Only abatement of working cash fund can transfer its funds to any fund in most need of money
(see 105 ILCS 5/20-10 for further explanation)

C:\Users\Iiclaassen\Downloads\638228660255537396365697216727901696  6/20/2023



0200008 wHD_uomm< mmh«__uvu__o_m,m@ lDA_ g HRE SNILTMNSMNOD IO NS / \ .
#mes oS @IINBS|00UIS T 3IANaS /
0dsvi VSV .\\
\\

opooppS oMy, g Ing \

203 ‘0 ANNr

SIONTTTI “SHLLNNOD
HDNONOUOW AN¥ NOSYIANEH “MDOONY¥H

LOIYLSIA TOOHIS AdUYYHY'T



SYOSIAQY 1vdIZINNIAI 40 NOLLYIDOSSY TWNOILYN

VINVN

siamouloq |eddiunw
sioul||| 40 spaau anbjun
3yl Uo pasnio} aouasaid |ed07

(VIWVN) siosiapy jedpiunip jo
uol3e120ssy [euollenN snoidisasd
ay3 ul diysiaquisw olul panAul
wuiy stoul||| @3eisumop Ajuo sy

‘s1sijeioads Aiasnpul Jayio pue
‘S123u13U9 ‘S109YdJe ‘S1auNsu|
puog ‘satpuagde guljes ‘|asunod
puoq ‘siaiumiapun Suipnjaul
anss| 9yl o1 salued |je yim
diysuoiie|as upjaom ua||9x3

ssuipueul
[edidiunipl Jo gTS 1970

‘(a4S) pseog Bunjew|ny
S91314n23S |eddlunin pue
‘(D3S) uolssiwwo) asueydx3 ue
$91114N23S 9Y1 YIM pauo3s139y

spuoq |edidiunw
JO sadA1 |18 yum asipadx3

stoul]j|
U1 S1U31|D 32M3SIQ [00YIS +0TT

SYOSIAQY T¥HOIINNW GFYILSIDFY INFANZIFANI

"ONI BNILTASNOD TY¥IDNYNIF SDNIM



T dSND uosAed -
TZE AsSND dYiod1{|iyd — JAI -
9¢<€ ASND 3||lAdduld -

80¢ dSNJ VAMOHX -

0t S Aluno) 19249 -

SLNAITO

¢ ASND EA[ED -
€2¢ dsnd uolQ -

LOT#.LSId

z asnd Aueqn -

T dSND euoasy -

87€ dSJ) uoljiweH -

T asnd LIA -

04T ASNJ Jd - [Iduysng -
9,7 ASND UOAY-uop3uiqy -

8ET ASND 3|[IASSOY-YINOWIUOA -

©©_wm S YHIY



bi "S1S00 8ZIWIUIL 0} PB103|8s S WK [euolssajoid auo AJuo Ualo ‘sanssl |[ews 4o "s1aAng
) 10 J9¥Jew Jopeolq B 0] SS900E SE ||oM Se Sa]kl 1S8JajUl Jamoj Jo Jijauad ay) 186 o} Jaiumiapun
2 Uue pue JoSIApY |ediolunjy B ylog Ulelel 0} 9SO0UD UBYO SloWisiq ‘senssi abie] uQ .

'SaNss| 419y} Joj s19Anq
JO 19y ew Japeo.q e 0} SS92Je uled 0} 103dXa ued SI9HIMIBPUN YIM JJOM OYM SIOLISIQ e
‘9A1309dsuad
Aiole|ngdal pue ssauisng e woJj J9Ang syl JO 3Sa4a3uUl 1S9 9Y3 Ul 10e 0} PIZIAIJUIUI
Ajiaeay y3noyije 4s)|as pue 49Anqg ay3 o3 Suljesp Jiej Jo Ainp e uspun 1oe 03 paJinbay .
'S19|e3P J3YI0 ‘S|eNpIAIpUL ‘SI0ISIAUI |BUOIINLILSUI
‘Syjueq 3uipn|aul SI01SDAUI SNOIJBA 0} SpPUO( ||3SaJ pue Anq 01 SI ssauisng Adewldd

191UMIBpUN / J3|eag-4oig .

"S9NSS| J19Y3 JOJ SWI3] 19119q puk el

1S9121Ul 2A1309§}D J9MO| ke 193 0} 129dXd Ued SIOSIAPY |edIdIUNIAl YHM JJ0M OYM S1O1IISIQ
"$1S8J93Ul UMO J1ay] JO pesye S3sa4alul J9Yylo pue |ejpueuls s,3214351Q

oY1 ind o1 Axnp Aseppnpiy e yim 3unoe ‘13sIg 9yl 01 A||os a|gisuodsas pue Agq pauielay .
"PBAJOAU] S3l1Jed ||e JO S}U044D S1eUIPIO0D) "SpUOq JO I|es

JO poyiaw pue ‘Sujwil ‘8ulanidnis ayl ujuiaduod IApe 3pinold 03 St ssauisng Adewld e

10SIAPY |edIDIUNA

FON¥NSSI ANOE ¥ NI dZATOANI SALLYYJ



9|es jo Aep

33 UO 91eJ 152433Ul 3|qissod 1saMO| 33 3INSud 0} $s330.d
ay1 asiaiadns pue ‘Sutiayo aljgnd e 913|dwod 03 wes)
SuiIMISpUN ue SU1303|3S Ul J214ISIP 9Y] 1SISSY — € d33S

spuog }Jo s3uliajjo
o1ignd yiim palejdosse sasuadxa Sulindul INOYIUM SwJa)]
9|geJOAR) 210W PUE SDIBJ 153J91Ul SAIIIBYD JOMO]| JauJes
01 SJI01SDAUI [BIO] 01 SPUOY JO d|eS 1I3J1p ansind — g dais

SJUSWIISOAUI SB SpUOg UMO 413y} JO ||e 40 dWOS
aseyaind 03 30143510 Y3 Joy |enraualod 3yl ajenjeal — T dois




g€eoeg-unr-og *ou] Buiginsuo) |edueul4 sbury
160°08F 13 anss| puog yse9 Bunjiop winwinep
ZLg'oe (An3) #g) @ouejeq puny WNWUIW 1o SpUoqg yses Buppom Buipuesino jo Jajealpd 'ssa|
60601513 asuejeg pun4 yses Bunjiopp winwixep
%58 %48 X
OVS‘LLLLS leloL
Z0L'6SE © 2202 - xe] juswadsejday Aj1adold |[puosiad ajeiodio) snid
G0Z'606 $ sjuawfed wnwjully aseqg ssolc) Buipung paseg asuapiAg snid
£eZ'60L°L $ Aaa7 pung uonesnp3 winwixep
08'1$ AV3 001 $/33ey pun4 uoljednp3 wnuwixey
180‘vZ29°19% 2e0zZ Av3
sywi Bulpuog/pung ysed Bunjiop
z90'z99'z ¢ Ayoedes 1qoq buiuieway
0000651 $
000°'065°L$ 020¢ saleg Buipue)sinQ spuog ssa7
290252y $ = %06'9X 180vZ9°19%
03 z3
0$ diL
180°v29°L9% Z2eoZ Av3 i 3qaqg psiq

suoljejil jq99g

(edueHeT) Lye @S 09 Yo0doueH

SNOLLY.LIATT L93d



£202-unr-0Z _. -ou] Bupnsuo) [e1dueuly sbury
1e9A Ana
N N N N N N N N
o o O o O o o O
N N N [ N N N N
[Xa] o0 ~l [s)] (9] = w N
)
- 00'0000SS -~
m
070z S311es = - 00°000°00TS .w
, 3
_ - 0000005TS 2
._ 5
| - 00°000°00¢S =
I 00°000°052% il g s
- | |.. — - — u




€coz-unr-0¢

*ou| Buiyinsuoy) jeoueuly sbury

%€9°'G ajel ymolb Jeak i |

%219 ojed :ts?.m JeahA G
GZ'¢ ZIr'oLz Ge'0 %ESLL | 1L80YZ9°L9 zz02
6v'S 096'GLZ o0 %959 | 289901 °SS 1202
9G°¢ 0£9°¢LZ Zro %LLY | 9€9'9LLLS 0202
85’ 0v6'PLZ 0 %6£°¢ | 088'68< 6V 6102
99°¢ 066°Z1LZ S0 %GSY | 6L0°LLL'LY 8L0Z
753 GLS'SLZ 8v'0 - %8Z°S | €p0'L8L'SY 1102
6L°C S18°21T 150 %9ZV | Lro‘ssy'sy 9102
28'¢ 8zZ6'VLT €50 %66°L | 922°L0L°\¥ 5102
19°¢ 818%LZ X)) %90°S | S.E'V68°0V #10Z
G9'¢ ovszie 960 %YZ6 | 615'€26'8E £10Z
9G'¢ 08L'SLL 050 ¥9¢°1£9°GE Z10z

ajedeiol | AAe g | eledi®.g | Jioul v |bupes-ayey | 1eap AreT

AiojsiH a1ey ® AV
(edseHeT) Ly @s 09 Ho09uey

XYOLSIH RLY Y ONY AYH




_l ‘AAS| 153491U1 g puoq 1esedas wody pieday
uawAedal sieaA oz wnwixen

'SUOITeIIWI| 103P PR3IXD Ue)
‘uilaeay olgnd ploy isnin
'SJ910A paJalsi8al Jo %QT — poriad uoniiad Aep o€

‘Spuog 91eUJ]|Y Y1 3SED SIYY Ul — 1213SIg ay3 1sulede  swie|d, Aed 01 panss|

spuog sulpund «

JuawAedad sieaA o WnWwIXen

‘JuswWAedal Joj PapUaIXa J0U dJe Saxel se Suo| se 1wl 1gap 01 193[gns 10N
‘Buiaeay 211gnd pjoy 1sn|p

S1210A pPaJalsI8al Jo %S’/ — polsad uonnead Aep og

‘PBAI2IDI 24 SpUN) JaY1o Se Ajjenuue paledge si 1yl paysijqeisa Ans
xe1 dnyoeq yim (218 ‘pie a1els) weauls anusAal paspa|d d1y10ads wioly piedsy

1g da1s

'SPUOg SNUBNSY BUIBYY <

:T d21S — sso230.4d dals om|

SNOLLY.LINTT L93d NYHL ZY0N A¥Y SAIAN H LYHM




£20cg-unr-og "ou| Bupnsuo) |eldueuly sbury
- |
Jeap Anaq
NN N N N DN N N DN N DN DN DN DN DN NN NN
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O o o o o o
SO W W W W WW wWww W W NN N NN NN
= O W 0 N O U M WN BFPB O WOSNOO U N~ W
_\/_m.mm. | ST — - O ,
q] = T 000°00T
NSSSw - 000'00C  _
. 1 - - 00000E @
NS S & i e - 00000 .W
. 1 - 000005 3
nses= | i 000009 2
1 ,_ 00000L 3
000008
000006
0000007
|
|
€98l $|0LpLL $| 9Ly $ |20 $ | 886'852% | 000'0S6 $ | 000°G.LY $ [ 000°00S9 $
6L°L¥L $ | 80°88 $ | LevE $|2¢0 $ | 885°86L$ | 000°SE8 $ | 000'SLY $ | 000°00S‘S $
G6°86 $ | Iv19 $ | 66°€C $1|2c0 $ | 885'8€L$ | 000°0ZL $ | 000°GSE $ | 000°00SY $
89°65 $ | 80°L¢€ $ | v vl $[(¥LO $ | 885'¢8 $ | 000009 $ | 000°00€ $ | 000°00S°C $
[zivorz §  Ano Bunsix3 |
0S1L$ _ M00L$ _ 30S$ osealou| asealou] [Ana puog| Aaa puog spung
anjeA awoH ajey ey Jea) [euiq Jed) isdid Joaloid
Joedw xe| sajeuw}s3 juswAeday

9Jew}sa asealdul AY3 |[enuue % - 9NSS| JBAA 0Z
joedwy xe ] ® suondo buldoueui4

(edieHeT) LyE @S 09 ¥20ouey

SNOILJO LNAWAY IFY

1




FINANCIAL CONBULTING INC.







[948Y adAj]

s202 e
g 202 ™o ;K
~

anoy 1ad GT$ T esed n:m

Aep Jad 0ZTS ~1ayoea] gns

sng

Y- mN..uHm ;m_zu_t:u eJx3

Jy-00vIsS uelpoisn) Anug |

14— 00vTS ueIpOISN) — ANS |

- 00PTS T oo ans |
Y 00°LTS 0/€/0t 720 A1e1a0ss Auenug m_mvmwmh 1

A USSTITS 0/€/01 9107 | 00D peaH | esea) ‘vosuems

spvoy T/ 00¥1% o/¢/ot 0207 UBIPOISN) oy aams

ey \ a4 - 00°0Z5 o1/v/S1 170z | 1UIBIN PESH | [RBUDIA PRLSAIS

O\ Y- 76'825 o/€/ot 8007 sng | Apuey 1EWNYS |

AG\ v ST oo~ ) 1Y-GL9T$ o/¢/ot 010z OOD PESH | Iuaf ‘uoSpIeYdlY
] N v Auiw — 08¥S 3uoN - 19Jnseal) “uaJey ‘PpNN |

:_n.\y\vru\.u.a... 14 €9°'S anoge papnpauj - pads — sng “euuog ‘1IN
AN - - 76875 0/€/ot 600 sng euuog ‘|IeN |

) - \Jf (Ajuo
\\w\ﬁO { \»)m.u/ 1y - €9°STS anoge papn|duj . INV) M34d BN ‘MIYIBIA
7/ NKW(Y \— - 76'8TS o/€/ot €107 sng | e ‘MIYIBIN |
F - ) egevenNy |

Q w Y -00TES ST/¥/ST 110C Joueuly eINeT ‘Sauof
CuL T aukemy

Y- 76'87S o/g/0t L10T sng ‘Aasydwny

- 00'vTS 0/€/01 720t 3007 | A3 ‘@8esayiaq |

i DWW & 4-006TS oT/¥/ST €707 1SSY Utwpy allien 191990
L 1y-8T9TS ST/v/St 1107 ueipoisny | uosey aeq |

, palels
s3}ON | oseasou| Asejes vz A4 Asejes €7A4 uoiedep/|euosiad/Hais Jea) uoInIsod mm>o.QEu

199Us10M AJBJES JJBIS PAUILII)-UON/VIT-UON



€STT

£5CT
ESTT
£S¢T
€571

3749

€921
€51
2148
€521
£SCT
£9ZT

dVv3IA ¥3d
SHNOH #

£202/51/9

%¢CS 0
11°000'C $
0Z'709'v8¢ $
16'v09'98¢ $
6b'66¥'E $
6% 667'SE $
S1id3NIERIDVM
12°229'vLL $
- $
8L'BE9'EE $
00'2vL'Te $
26'010'vE $
1G°0ET'vT $
S1/4ANTFSIDOYM
sv'60.'0% $
9F'60L'0F $
SL1I4INIQSIOVM
GL'eLL'66) $
A $
12'65L'vE g
9.'8€9'e€ [
0S'¥68'2€ S
66'97€'SZ 8
11'€¥2'9e 8
05'¥68'2¢ $
S1I43INIFRIOVM
avliol
(1L & +3uapnis GLT)

%69'8-

(00'ovs's)
0£'s19'00L
0£'698'16

@ & H

06°'e6L'0L
06'€64'0L

2 &

SNI dd ag
02c-00L-52L1-0l

09'0L1'02 $

06'€61'0L $
o iy $
06'€61'0L ¢
oLy $

SNI ad ag
022-5021-0b
06°€6L°01 $
06'€61'04 $

SNI dd ag
0zz-0¢ee-0l

3

06'0L0°LS

06'€6L'0L
06°€61'0L
06'e6l'0l
o¥'Ly

06'€6L'0L
06'€64'0L

@O DB SPGB

'SNiad ad
02c-02ec0L

Aep Jad siy/ - shep 6L1

%¥S'E
L0'ezt
ezviv'e
9e'26S'E

[ -

wn.won w
98'80€ $
%SP L
IHvOId3N ad ad
€l2-6Z11-05

al'svl'l $

SlL'982
L0'lle
0/.°082
y2'662

© A BN

%S¥'|
IHvOId3IN ad a8
€12-60¢1L-05

Sh'zie $
Sv'cle $
%Sv'L
F4VIIJIN ad ag
€12¢-02¢e-08

68°992'L $
- $
8L'662 $
51982 $
10412 $
98'80€ $
G6'/1E $
10'LL2 $
%SP'L
Jdvolaan ad ag
£42-02€2-0S

¥Z0T-820C

%PbS'e

9¢'9¢S
15'658'71
£8'18e's)

99°02€'L
99°'02€'L
%029
vold'ad ‘ad
€1¢-5211-09

vo'cle'y

sg'eCe't
LLp8L'L
g8'ere’L
ov'zoe')

%02'9
vOIl4 'dd 'ad
€12-5021-08

95°265'L
9565’1l
%0Z'9
vOId4 'ad ‘ag
€1¢-0222-05

96'¥SS'L
ze'lee't
S5eCe')
LLv8L' L
99'02€'L
16°6GE'}
LLp8L' L
%02'9
vOld 'ad ‘a8
€12-02€2-0S

B B

2

$

¥ € O &F

L7 S R R R

%8}°9

91’609’}
20'c50'9Z
8¥'299'22

@*r A B

90'6/8°C $
90'6L€e'e $
%SL L
Junlad ‘ag
zlg-5Zhl-08

©

€9'9¢8'8

zr'ooz'e
15'0El'T
GE'SET'C
8z'0/2'2

& B D D

%S
44 ad "ag
€le-50¢1-05

+0'v98'C $
$0'798'C $
%S4 L1
44Wi dd "'dd
¢lc-0zee-0s

§2'985°cl $

12'S0€'C
zr00z'e
1S'0EL'T
90'6.€'C
z6'vYY'e
15°0EL'C
%SLLL
44Nl Gd "adg
clc-02ee-09

PO B D O

%bSe

86'.87'8
20'909'6€Z
00'v60'8VZ

00°L0E'LE
00°'L0E'Le
AHYIVS
$20Z-€202

62'252'6L

SLYEL'SL
G2'801'61
00'8¥0'0C
G2'19e'0C

AYIVS
$20z-€202

05'989'6Z
05'989'G2
AUYIVYS
¥20z-e202

sT¥se'1lzl

05'v29'02
SLYEL'BL
sz'eol'sl
00'L0E' 2
05'226'12
GZ'80L'61
AUVIVS
$202-£202

@ A B

L L 2 B B B “

@O D WIS N D

S1-001-G2L -0l

# INNOOJV

SLi-502L-0L
SL1-50C1-0}
Sii-goci-ol
SLL-60Z1-0L

# LNNODOV

0l1-0222-0l

# LNNODDV

SiLi-loL1-ol
SLE-LOLL-0L
G11-10L1-0l
SiLi-loll-ol
SLi-loLl-ol
Sti-loti-ol

30/3SVIEONI LSOO TVLO0L
SIOVM €202-220Z TVLOL

¥20Z-€20C Tv10L

SOddvdvd ans

Iviol
¥ITISSITO YNILSIHHO

M-3dd - 3IA0TdNE

aviol

HIWTVC 310dvd

IMMOLS FIANYHE
ILLINY34 IASLS
NILEYIN YIAYH

a3 03dS - 3A0TdINT

aviol
180X 3SINIa

EEINeRl[IE]

aviol

AGNNg 3ISSYD
d31H0d ATdHany
THVYH 31HHY0T

443N NI¥3

Ad¥d AQNID

TFHAINA YHANYSSYA

# LNNODJV 383408dVdvd - 3FA0TdINT

Auo soide.ed - TINNOSYId L¥OddNS

Sve

GC'9

89
PAR
199
969

et G

AR}
S§C¢9
209
LS
asealoul
0%

0S¥

0091

SLYT
0S'v1
00°sT
ST'ST

05'6T

0SPT
00'9T
05'9T
0s'vT
39VM
ATHNOH
€202-220T

00'sT

00T 8

SLST
ST'ST
0097
sTot

n s N m

050z [44

0s'9T
sL'st
Sz'sT
00'LT
0Ll OT
szl T
I9YM

AT4NOH

bZ0Z-€20Z dxdjo SIA

@ Nomo~

PZ-€C
Buipnjoul



§°895
(44
609
[44)
69T
§'995

0/8
50001
0802
080¢

CETT
ozet
0zeT

S2orT

008T

008T

HYIA ¥3d
SYNOH #

%S20
90'9/2'L $
T9'Z9v'6LS $
89'8€.°02S $
v6°'528'v0L $
9€'509'L1L $
0'i52'9} $
05°09¥%'82 $
€EVEB'L) $
8LG¥L'S $
98'82¥'6l $
S1I4INIFRIOVM
6L°156°}VL $
lcXiad" $
4 R47A:]" $
0Z'8€€'6S $
£8'868'6Y $
S1143N3g930VM
01°266°101 $
20°'801'0€ $
00°00%'GE $
80 7819 $
S1I4aINTaRIOVM
SO'pSY'6E $
S0'vSY'6E $
S1I43N3FeIOVM
00°09L'S $
00'092'G $
S1I43IN3IgRIDVYM
0820292 $
08'202'9. $
S1I3IN3IFTIOVM
00°Lv5°0S $
00°2¥5'08 $
SL1I4INIERIOVM
_dviol

%0€" L1
G6'190'6 $
50°S61°08 $
09'952°68 $
o' Z16'6 $
= $
- $
0v'216'6 $
s $
‘SNl dd ad
02¢-085¢-0
08've8'6l $
ov'/L6'6 $
ov'll6'6 $
‘SNidd a9
0cgc-0vSc-0C
0225262 $
0v'216'6 $
ov'L16'6 $
0v'.16'6 $
SNI dd ad
0¢2-096¢2-0l
ov'L16'6 $
o¥'/16'6 $
'SNI dd ad
0ze-01¥c-0L
- $
‘SNI ad ad
.oe.tm,m $
0v'216'6 $
‘SNI dd ag
0cc-0lGc-0l
ov'Lle'e $
ov'lL6'e $
Ov' 2166
SNi ad dsg
0¢¢-02€C-01
€207/51/9

%8G"L-
(91'v8)
90°€2ZL'S
06'8£2'S

@ B D

0Z'102°L $

¥l LeC
068lC
eegce
o68le
1829
¥l le2
%S
34VYOIa3N ad ad
€12-065¢-0§

PR B D

6706 $

19°9/1 $

69¢ce $

0c'€09 $

66°/8V $

%Sy L

34vOId3N dd ag
€le-0¥52-0¢

L1188 $

ol'ose
€0'LlE
09'0ce
%Sv' L
34v2ia3nN dd ad
€12-095¢-05

[ aN-c -4

€
15°09¢ $
16'09¢ $
%S L
3IYVYOIQIN ad asg
2ee-01¥2-0§

%SvL
I4VYOIa3N ad at

01°608 $
0l'608 $
%Sy L
34v2idaiN ad a9
€1¢-016¢-05
06'S6t $
06°G6¥ $
%St L
I4VYOIG3N ad a8
€12-02€2-05
¥¢0T-ET0T

%8G L-

(v8'65€)
19'09.°22
£8'00¥'22

[ " 1

S1'9EL's $

96°€l0'L
16’686
vL'L96
16'Ge6
G5'89¢C
96°€L0'L
%029
vOld 'dd 'ad
€12-0652-0S

PP BB N R

LLELE'S $

9165 $
81256 $
0Z'6/8'C $
15'980' $
%0¢C 9
vold4'ad a4
€l2-0¥52-05

oLoLL'e $

8€'690't
06'62€'L
z8'04€'L
%029
vJId 'ad 'ag
€1¢-096¢-0S

& B N

8pLYS'L $
8y Lys'L $
%029
vOId 'ad 'ad
€12-0L¥C-0S

%029
vOold 'ad 'ag

09'65V'€ $
09'661'€ $
%029
vJld 'ad ag
€lc-015¢-08

ov'oci'e $
or'ozL'e $

. %029

vol4 'ad 'ad
€12-02eC-05

%L0¥-

(02°2€5'})
£E'9LE'8E
£9°822°9¢

@w A B

90°0€L'S $

80721
€2'e89'l
96'¢8Y
05'€28'L
%G1 L
44Nl ad 'ag
¢l2-069¢-09

[N g

ZE V1L $

20'86€'L
8eCLL'L
0v'8E9'PY
Ly'esL'e
%S1 1L
44N ad 'ad
C12c-0v52-0§

O DD

60°08L'9 $

Glezs'l
89'L6ET
12'59%'T
%51 HE
44Nl ad 'ag
¢12-095¢-0§

B P hH

LVeLLT $
Lieil's $
%S 1L
44 ad ‘as
21z-0Lvz-08

%0021
44Nl ad 'dg

[T ¥AA:] $
04°122'9 $
%G1 LE
44Nl Od 'ag
Z12-0152-05

0£'£18'e $
oeele'e $

%S 1L
44Nl ad 'ag
¢l2-02ee-08

%9G |-

(08'€08'S)
75°098°CTLE
ZL'€90°29€

@ D

pL1p8°28 $

9z'¥5€'9l

¥2'960'G1

/9809'G)

¥2'960'S)

LVLEE'Y

9z ¥se'9l
AUVIVS
¥20g-€c0c

B D P DN

80°26.°201 $

HH/00' 1S
00'081'2)
89'/G€'S)
00009'LY
0v'vS9'EE

AUVIVS
¥20Z-€202

O ¥ N

00'808°09 $
UH00+1$
00'8¥Z' L1 $
00'05+'12 $
0001122 $
AYVIVS
¥202-€202

05°298°¢C $

05'298'v¢ $
AUYIVS
¥20Z-£202

00°09L°S
00°09.'G
AUVIVS
¥202-€20C

[ 4

00°008'SS
00'008'SS
AUVYIVS
¥202-€20¢

A B

00°00Z'vE $
00°002'¥€ $

AUVYIVS
¥20Z-€20¢

01 1-085¢2-0%
0} L-0652-0%
01 1-069¢2-0%
0L 1-055¢-0%
0l1-065¢-0F
0} L-05G¢-0%
0L1-065¢-0v

HILINAN LINNODJV

0L 1-0%5¢-0C
0l L-0¥5¢2-0¢
0L1-0¥S2-02
0l -0¥52-02
0L1l-0vSc-0¢

Y¥IFGWNN LNNODJY

0l 1-0952-01
0} L-0952-01
01 1-0952-01
0L 1-096¢-0l

Y3IFNNN INNODDY

SLi-0Lye-0b

HIGWNNN LNNODJVY

ote-0lec-0l

0lL-0l52-01

HIFNNN INNODIOV

§ll-0cec-0l

H3IGANNN LNNODJV

sosdesed L _Nn|IXs - TANNOSYHIA LYOddNS

08v$

03Q/ASVIAYUONI LSOO TV10L
SIADVYM €202-220Z V101

¥202-€202 V1Ol

Iviol

SHIAINA HYINDIFIYND v LX3

G2°19S 131 Wd 8 WV-AUHNNH INAYM
€ JLY INd '8 NV - YINVINNHS AGNVY
31 38 Wd 2 WY - T13N YNNOd
314 d % WY - T13N YNNOQ

ALY NV Ad

SL1BS L ALY INd % WY - MIHLYIA MEVYIN

EEINONL. U E]

aviol

1SN TAATAT AYLNT B "MIAWNS '9NS

§ MIYNLS ATI3IA
G2'S  SSIANM vdNvl
a319493IS 13avHOIN

HINVE NOUVYY

EENORLIIE]

Iv1l0L

SMO0D 13ATT AYLINI ? NS

FOVHIHLIA ATING
NOSNYMS vs331
NOSAQHYHOIY IN3F

EEINORLUE]

IvioL

JTvaS33L ANVLLIHE

33A01dIN3T

av1iol
AAanN NIYWY

Jviol
SIANOr ViNvl

33A071dN3

) aviol
¥31330 v

EEVNORE HE]

SC9T

76’8t
7682
£€9°6C
76'8C
£9'6¢C
68T

00'vT
00'vT
Se'st
00'0t
8T'9T

[eleh 49
00'vT
ST9T
SL9t

00°LT

00'Te

00'6T

IDYM
ATdNOH
Ec0z-720Z

St

7687
68T
£9'6T
7687
€9°5C
76'8¢

00'vT
00T
Se'eT
000t
8197

00'vT
00'vT
qT'97
SL9T

00°LT

00'TE

0067

IDYM
ATYNOH
¥T0T-€£20T



LaHarpe CSD #347 6-15-23

The average certified teacher increase per LEA contract from
2022-2023 to 2023-2024 is 6.24%



	0356_001
	0357_001
	0358_001
	0358_029
	0358_057
	0359_001
	0359_020
	0359_044
	0360_001

